Application to QECEW

Schuyler County Industtri-él
Development Agency (SCIDA)

For
Tax Exempt Bond Financing
and/or
Straight-Lease Transaction
And

Fee Schedule

Please contact the agency for more information
regarding project eligibility and application process.

Schuyler County Industrial Development Agency (SCIDA)
910 South Decatur Street
Watkins Glen, New York 14891




10.

INSTRUCTIONS

The Agency will not approve any applications unless, in the judgment of the Agency, said
application contains sufficient information upon which to base a decision whether to approve or
tentatively approve an action.

Fill in all blanks, using “none” or “not applicable” or “N/A” where the question is not appropriate to
the project which is the subject of this application (the “Project”).

If an estimate is given as the answer to a question, put “(est)” after the figure or answer, which is
estimated.

If more space is needed to answer any specific question, attach a separate sheet.

When completed, return this application to the Agency at the address indicated on the first page of
this application.

The Agency will not give final approval to this application until the Agency receives a completed
environmental assessment form concerning the Project.

Please note that Article 6 of the Public Officers Law declares that all records in the possession of the
Agency (with certain limited exceptions) are open to public inspection and copying. If the applicant
feels that there are elements of the Project which are in the nature of trade secrets or information, the
nature of which is such that if disclosed to the public or otherwise widely disseminated would cause
substantial injury to the applicant’s competitive position, the applicant may identify such elements in
writing and request that such elements be kept confidential in accordance with Article 6 of Public
Officers Law.

The applicant will be required to pay to the Agency all actual costs incurred in connection with this
application and the Project contemplated herein (to the extent such expenses are not paid out of the
proceeds of the Agency’s bonds issued to finance the project). The applicant will also be expected to
pay all costs incurred by general counsel and bond counsel to the Agency. The costs incurred by the
Agency, including the Agency’s general counsel and bond counsel, may be considered a part of the
project and included as a part of the resultant bond issue.

The Agency has established an application fee of $3,000.00 to cover the anticipated costs of the
Agency in processing this application. A check or money order made payable to the Agency must
accompany each application. THIS APPLICATION WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED BY THE
AGENCY UNLESS ACCOMPANIED BY THE APPLICATION FEE.

The Agency has established a project fee for each project in which the Agency participates.
UNLESS THE AGENCY AGREES IN WRITING TO THE CONTRARY, THIS PROJECT FEE IS
REQUIRED TO BE PAID BY THE APPLICANT AT OR PRIOR TO THE GRANTING OF ANY
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE BY THE AGENCY.

This application should be submitted to the Schuyler County Industrial Development Agency,

910 South Decatur Street, Watkins Glen, New York 14891 (Attn: Chief Executive Officer).



Schuyler County Industrial Development Agency (SCIDA)
910 South Decatur Street
Watkins Glen, New York 14891

Taxable and Tax Exempt Industrial Development Revenue Bonds

Application Fee: A fee of $3,000.00 is payable to SCIDA at the time the application is
submitted. $2,500 will be credited at closing; $500 is non-refundable. If

this Application is not accepted by the Agency, portions of the $2,500
deposit may be refunded.

Fee: 1.00% of the principal amount of the bond series.

Straight-Lease Transactions

Application Fee: A fee of $3,000.00 is payable to SCIDA at the time the application is
submitted. $2,500 will be credited at closing; $500 is non-refundable. If

this Application is not accepted by the Agency, portions of the $2,500
deposit may be refunded.

Fee: With a PILOT:
First $10 million — 1.00%
Second $10-$20 million - .5%
Anything greater than $20 million - .25%

No PILOT — 25% of the abatement value (based on savings from mortgage
tax and sales tax).



Schuyler County Industrial Development Agency (SCIDA) Application for
Tax Exempt Bond Financing and/or Straight-Lease Transaction

e e e
I. APPLICANT INFORMATION

Address: 2790 County Rte 16
Watkins Glen, NY 14891
Phone No.: 607-535-2486 )
Fax No.: 607-535-9250 -
Federal Tax ID: 16-1209038
Contact Person: Michael Printup
E-Mail: mprintup@theglen.com
Date: 4/15/2015

a. Form of Entity;

X Coarporation

Partnership (General ___or Limited ___; Number of General Partners ___ and, if applicable, Number of
Limited Partners ___, List Partners in seclion below.

Limited Liability Company, Number of Members ___

Sole Proprietorship

b.  Principal Owners/Officers/Directors: (List owners with 5% or more in equity holdings with percentage of ownership)

Name Address Percentage OQwnership/QOffice
international Speedway Corp. | Intemational Motarsperts Cir, One Daytona Bivd, Daytona Beach, FL 32114 100%

(Use attachments if necessary)

c. If a corporation, partnership, limited liability company:

What is the date of establishment? 10/2/1948 Place of organization WL L

If a foreign organization, is the Applicant authorized to do business in the State of New York? NA

{Attach organizational chart or other description if applicant is a subsidiary or otherwise affiliated with another entity)



d. If the applicant entity is a subsidiary of a corporation or ancther entity, provide all parent information:

Form of Entity:
X Corporation
Partnership (General ___or Limited ___; Number of General Partners ___ and, if applicable, Number of

Limited Partners

, List Partners in section below.

Limited Liability Company, Number of Members ___

Sole Proprietorship

Principal Owners/Officers/Directors: (List owners with 5% or more in equity holdings with percentage of ownership)

Name Address Percentage Ownership/Office
France Fam|]y Group Internationa! Motarsports Ctr, One Daytona Bivd, Daytona Baach, FL 32114 72%
Ariel Investments, LLC | Ariel Investment Trust, PO Box 701, Milwaukee, W 53201 5.07%
See Attachment A
{Use attachments if necessary)
d. Attach certified financial statements for the company's last three complete fiscal years. If the company is publicly

held, attach the latest Form 10K as well.

Il. APPLICANT'S COUNSEL

Name/Firm: Ben Odom, international Speedway Corporation

Address: International Motorsports Center, One Daytona Boulevard
Daytona Beach, FL 32114

Phone No.: 386-681-5793

Fax No.: 386-681-4996

E-Mail: bodom@iscmotorsports.com

lil. PROJECT INFORMATION:

a. Please provide a brief narrative description of the Project (attach additional sheets or documentation as necessary).

Walkins Glen Iremational will undertake a complete road race track moderization project. The raceway is 3.4 miles of asphalt and concrete

paved road course and was las{ resurfaced in 1998. Time has attributed 1o the need for updating the existing track and property. WGI

received funding through NYS ESD and Market NY to complete impravements in order o address these needs. Since the

allocation of funding WGI has determined that the “bool” of the track also needs improvements, which were nol Included in the awarded grant

application, Without the modernization improvements, top tier drivers and fans will migrate to the new track in Canada, jecpardizing our ability to

retain our NASCAR event and potentially causing a closing of the facility. This additional project will remove and replace the existing track and

and repave portions of the aprons/runoffs, and pit road pavement, create and install new calch fences and guide rails, and improve drainage

{See Attachmenl G: Location Map)



b. Location of Project

Project Address: 2790 County Rte 16
Town/Village of: Watkins Glen
Name of Schoaol District: Watkins Glen
Tax Map No.: 84.00-1-32
c. Are Utilities on Site? Water_x Electric;_x Gas:_x Sanitary/Storm Sewer;_x* Telecom:_X

d. Present legal owner of the site if other than Applicant and by what means will the site be acquired for this Project:

Watkins Glen International, Inc.

e. Zoning of Project Site:

Current: 522 - Racetrack Proposed; remaining the same

f. Are any zoning approvals needed? Identify; No

g. Local Permitting and Approvals — Does the project require local planning or permitting approvals? If so, please

explain, Ne Will 2 site plan application to be filed? Ne If so, please include copy if
prepared.

h. Has another entity been designated lead agent under the State Environmental Quality Review Act (*SEQRA™?
M Ifyes, please explain:

i. Will the Project result in the removal of a plant or facility of the Applicant or a proposed Project occupant from one area
of the State of New York to another area of the State of New York? Ne ; If yes, please explain:

j. Will the Project result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the Applicant or a proposed Project
occupant located in the State of New York? Ne ; If yes, explain:

k. If the answer to either question i. or j. is yes, indicate whether any of the following apply to the Project:

1. Is the Project reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of the Company or such Project
Occupant in its industry? Yes ; No . If yes, please provide detail:
Not applicable

2 Is the Project reasonably necessary to discourage the Company or such Project Occupant from removing
such other plant or facility to a location outside the State of New York? Yes ; No . [f yes,

please provide detail:

Not applicable

I. Does the Project include facilities or property that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods or services to
customers who personally visit such facilities? M __; If yes, please explain:




m. If the answer to |. is yes, what percentage of the cost of the Project will be expended on such facilities or property
primarily used in making retail sales of goods or services to customers who personally visit the Project? na %

n. If more than 33.33%, indicate whether any of the following apply to the Project:

1. Will the Project be operated by a not-for-profit corporation? Yes ___: No . If yes, please explain;

Not applicable

2, Is the Project likely to attract a significant number of visitors from outside the ecanomic development
region in which the Project will be located? Yes ; No . If yes, please explain:
Not applicable

a Would the Project occupant, but for the contemplated financial assistance from the Agency, locate the
Project and related jobs outside of New York State? Yes ; No . If yes, please explain:
Not applicable

4, Is the predominant purpose of the Project to make available goods or services which would not, but for

the Project, be reasonably accessible to the residents of the City, Town or Village within which the Project
will be located because of a lack of reasonably accessible retail trade facilities offering such goods or

services? Yes : No . If yes, please explain:
Not applicable
5. Will the Project be located in one of the following: (i) an area designed as an Empire Zone pursuant to

Article 18-B of the General Municipal Law; or (ii) a census tract or block numbering area {or census tract
or block number area contiguous thereto) which, according to the most recent census data, has (x) a
poverty rate of at least 20% for the year in which the data relates, or at least 20% of households receiving
public assistance, and (y) an unemployment rate of at least 1.25 times the statewide unemployment rate
for the year to which the data relates? Yes ; No . If yes, please explain:

Not applicable

0. Does the Company intend to lease or sublease mare than 10% (by area or fair market value) of the Project? Yes ;
No X . If yes, please complete the following for EACH existing or proposed tenant or subtenant:

Sub lessee name:

Present Address:

City: State: Zip:

Employer's ID No.:

Sub lessee is a; (Corporation, LLC, Partnership, Sole Proprietorship)

Relationship to Company:

Percentage of Project to be leased or subleased:

Use of Project intended by Sub lessee:

Date and Term of lease or sublease to Sub lessee:

Will any portion of the space leased by this sub lessee be primarily used in making retail sales of goods or
services to customers who perscnally visit the Project? Yes : No . If yes, please provide on a
separate attachment (a) details and (b) the answers to questions . 1-5 with respect to such sub lessee.



p. Project Costs (Estimates):

Category Amount

Land-acquisition

Buildings-Construction/Renovation

$9,036,430

Utilities, roads and appurtenant costs

Machinery and Equipment

Soft Costs (Architect and Engineering Fees)

$387,473

Costs of Bond issue

Construction Loan Fees and interest

Other (specify)

Total Project Costs

$9,423,903

q. Job Creation:

Construction jobs created by the Project:

35 8/1/2015
Anticipated Dates of Construction:

Permanent iobs created by the Proiect

Column A:

Column B:
Column C:
Column D:
Column E:
Column F;
Column G:

Insert the job titles that exist within the company at the time of application, as well as any job titles that will be
established as a result of the Praject.

Indicate the entry level wage for each listed job title either in terms of hourly pay or annual salary.

For each listed job title insert the number of positions that exist at the time of application,

Insert the number of jobs to be created during year one of the Project for each listed job title.

Insert the number of jobs to be created during year two of the Project for each listed job title.

Insert the number of jobs to be created during year three of the Project for each listed job title.

Indicate the total number of jobs to be created for each listed title as a result of the Project. (Column D + Column E +
Column F = Column G)

(A) (B) (&) D) (E) (F) (G)
Annual or Current Jobs Jobs Jaobs
Hourly Number of Created: Created: Created: Total Johs
Job Title Wages Positions | YearOne | YearTwo | Year Three | Created

See attached varies 160 0 0 0 0
organizational chart
and NYS-45 Forms

(Attachment C)
TOTALS: varies 160 0 0 0 0




Potential SCIDA Financial Assistance

A Estimated Project Costs eligible for Industrial Development Agency Financial Assistance
1. Sales and Use Tax
A.  Amount of Project Cost Subject to Sales and Use Tax: $ 5,534,994 see Attachment D
Sales and Use Tax Rate: 8.0%
B. Estimated Sales Tax (A X .075): $ 415,124 .55
2. Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption
A. Projected Amaunt of Mortgage: $
Mortgage Recording Tax Rate: 1.00 %
B. Estimated Mortgage Recording Tax (A X .0075): $
3. Real Property Tax Exemption
A.  Projected Increase in Assessed Value on Project: 3
B. Total Applicable Tax Rates Per $1000: $
C. Estimated Annual Taxes without PILOT (A X B)/1,000: 3
4. Interest Exemption (Bond transactions only)
a.  Total Estimated Interest Expense Assuming Taxable Interest: $
b.  Total Estimated Interest Expense Assuming Tax-exempt
Interest Rate: %
B. Estimated Benefits of Industrial Development Agency Financial Assistance
1. Current Company employment in Schuyler County 160
2. Current Company payroll in Schuyler County $ 1,433,691

3. Project Jobs to be Created over 3 years 35 construction

r. For Industrial Revenue Bonds ONLY, including this project, list capital expenditures of the company at Project
location:

Category Last Three Years Next Three Years
Land Not applicable

Building

Equipment
Soft Costs
Qther

Total

s. List any other positive impacts that the Project may have on Schuyler County:

WG racing wnd regional ovens arvacted akmedt 170,000 vistors annually with aver 75% comng from outtide a 50-ris radius. In addbon & the heodiner ovenis, WGI atracted ovar 20,500 peopia via track rentals, smal vents.

87 promotans tesl days whsch sccourt for aves 44 000 addiona) vautor days in the region snd simost 20 D00 room rsghis, al leeding 1o odditonal non-state snd fatign lounit invasimant i the regon WG hay become ona of the egon's

Larpest smpioyers ond crastes an 2025 p Jobs for local ress directty of ind: y Horn ity mestly in y. retal irsde. and traniporialion, wiie over 800 jobs are seasonal and s proviced o locat
ploryed regid: from aroas g Elmira, Coming, and other comrnurites in Tioga and Chemung Countes. (Plaase sae Attachment D for sdded banefts)

V. REPRESENTATIONS BY THE APPLICANT
The Applicant understands and agrees with the Agency as fallows:

A. Job Listings: In accordance with Section 858-b (2} of the New York General Municipal Law, the applicant
understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any Financial Assistance from the Agency, except as
otherwise provided by collective bargaining agreements, new employment opportunities created as a result of
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the Project will be listed with the New York State Department of Labor Community Services Division {the
‘DOL") and with the administrative entity (collectively with the DOL, the “JTPA Entities"} of the service

delivery area created by the federal job training partnership act (Public Law 97-300) (“JTPA"} in which the
Project is located.

B. First Consideration for Employment: In accordance with Section 858-b (2) of the New York General
Municipal Law, the applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any Financial Assistance
from the Agency, except as otherwise provided by collective bargaining agreements, where practicable, the
applicant will first consider persons eligible to participate in JTPA programs who shall be referred by the
JTPA Entities for new employment opportunities created as a result of the Project.

C. Annual Sales Tax Filings: In accordance with Section 874 (8) of the New York General Municipal Law, the
applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any sales tax exemptions as part of the
Financial Assistance from the Agency, in accordance with Section 874 (8) of the General Municipal Law, the
applicant agrees to file, or cause to be filed, with the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance,
the annual form prescribed by the Department of Taxation and Finance, describing the value of all sales tax
exemptions claimed by the applicant and all consultants or subcontractors retained by the applicant,

D. Annual Employment Reports: The applicant understands and agrees that, if the Project receives any
Financial Assistance from the Agency, the applicant agrees fo file, or cause to be filed, with the Agency, on
an annual basis, reports regarding the number of people employed at the project site.

E. Absence of Conflicts of Interest: The applicant has received from the Agency a list of the members,
officers, employees and Counsel of the Agency. No member, officer, employee, or Counsel of the Agency
has an interest, whether direct or indirect, in any transaction contemplated by this Application, except as
hereinafter
described:

HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT AND APPLICATION DISCLAIMER
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO NEW YORK STATE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION LAW (“FOIL™)

Applicant hereby releases the SCHUYLER COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY and the members,
officers, servants, agents and employees thereof (the "Agency") from, agrees that the Agency shall not be liable for and
agrees ta indemnify, defend and hold the Agency harmless from and against any and all liability arising from or expense
incurred by (A) the Agency's examination and processing of, and action pursuant to or upon, the attached Application,
regardless of whether or not the Application or the Project described therein or the tax exemptions and other assistance
requested therein are favorably acted upon by the Agency, (B) the Agency's acquisition, construction and/or installation of
the Project described therein and (C) any further action taken by the Agency with respect to the Project; including without
limiting the generality of the foregoing, all causes of action and attorneys' fees and any other expenses incurred in
defending any suits or actions which may arise as a result of any of the foregoing. If, far any reason, the Applicant fails to
conclude or consummate necessary negotiations, or fails, within a reasonable or specified period of time, to take
reasonable, proper or requested action, or withdraws, abandons, cancels or neglects the Application, or if the Agency or
the Applicant are unable to reach final agreement with the respect to the Project, then, and in the event, upon
presentation of an invoice itemizing the same, the Applicant shall pay to the Agency, its agents or assigns, all costs
incurred by the Agency in the processing of the Application, including attorneys' fees, if any.

Through submission of this Application for Financial Assistance (this "Application”), the Company acknowledges that the
Agency, as a public benefit corporation, is subject to the New York State Freedom of Information Law {*FOIL") and Open
Meetings Law (“OML"), as codified pursuant to the Public Officers Law (“POL") of the State of New York (the “State™).
Accordingly, unless portions hereof are otherwise protected in accordance with this Certification, this Application, including
all Company-specific information contained herein, is subject to public disclosure in accordance with applicable provisions of
the POL, Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law (‘GML") and the Public Authorities Accountability Act of 2005, as
codified within the Public Authorities Law (“PAL") of the State. Specifically, this Application may be disclosed by the Agency
to any member of the public pursuant to a properly submitted request under FOIL and the Agency is further required to
affirmatively disclose certain provisions contained herein pursuant to the GML and PAL, including the identification of the
Company, general project description, location proposed capital investment and job estimates.
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Natwithstanding the foregoing, the Company, pursuant to this Certification, may formally request that the Agency consider
certain information contained within this Application and other applicable supporting materials proprietary information and
“trade secrets”, as defined within POL Section 87(2)(d). Ta the extent that any such information should qualify as trade
secrets, the Company hereby requests that the Agency redact same in the event that formal disclosure is requested by any
party pursuant to FOIL. Application Sections or information requested by Company for Redaction™:

(" - Please indicate specific sections within Application that the Company seeks to qualify as “trade secrets”. Additional corespondence or
supporting information may be attached hereto. Please also note that notwithstanding the Company's request, the Agency shall make an
independent determination of the extent to which any information contained herein may be considered as such)

In the event that the Agency is served with or receives any subpoena, request for production, discovery request, or information request in
any forum that calls for the disclosure of the Application, in entirety, specifically including but not limited to any demand or request for
production or review of Company-designated trade secrets, the Agency agrees to nolify the Company as promptly as is reasonably
possible, and to ulilize its best efforts to: oppose or decline any such request; preserve the confidentiality and non-disclosure of such
requested confidential material, and maintain such information and prevent inadvertent disclosure in responding to any such discavery or
information request. The Company understands and agrees that all reasonable costs, induding attomey's fees, associated with any such
formal undertaking by the Agency to protect the trade secrets from disclosure shall be reimbursed by the Company to the Agency.

The undersigned officer of the applicant deponent acknowledges and agrees that the applicant shall be and is responsible for all cosls
incurred by the Agency and legal counsel for the Agency, whether or not the Application, the proposed project it describes, the attendant
negotiations, or the issue of bonds or other transaction or agreement are ulimately ever camied to successful conclusion and agrees that
the Agency shall not be liable for and agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the Agency harmless from and against any and all liability
arising from or expense incurred by (A) the Agency's examination and processing of, and action pursuant to or upon, the Application,
regardless of whether or not the Application or the proposed project described herein or the tax exemptions and other assistance
requested herein are favorably acted upon by the Agency, (B) the Agency's acquisition, construction and/or installation of the proposed
project described herein and (C) any further action taken by the Agency with respect to the proposed project; including without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, all causes of action and attomey’s fees and any other expenses incurred in defending any suits or actions which
may arise as a result of any of the foregoing.

By executing and submitting this Application, the applicant covenants and agrees lo pay the following fees to the Agency, the same to be
paid at the times indicated:

(a) A fee of $3,000.00 is payable to SCIDA at the time the application is submitted. $2,500 wil be credited

at closing; $500 is non-refundable. If this Appiication is not accepted by the Agency, portions of the $2,500
deposit may be refunded.

{b) An amount equal to 1.00% of the total project costs for projects with bond financing, and an amount reflecting the scaled

fee noted on page 3 for Straight-Lease Transactions for all other projects for which the Agency provides financial assistance, to
be paid at transaction closing;

c) An amount determined by Agency Staff payable to the Agency's bondfransaction counsel for the preparalion and
review of the inducement resolution, the environmental compliance resolution, TEFRA hearing proceedings and the tax

questionnaire assuming no further activity occurs after the completion of the inducement proceedings, to be paid within ten (10)
business days of the receipt of bond/transaction counsel's invoice,

(d) All fees, costs and expenses incurred by the Agency for (1) legal services, including but not limited to those provided by
the Agency's general counsel or bondftransaction counsel, and (2) other consultants retained by the Agency in connection with
the proposed praject; with all such charges to be paid by the applicani at the closing or, if the closing does not occur, within ten
{10) business days of receipt of the Agency’s invoices therefore please note that the applicant is entitled 1o receive a written
eslimate of fees and costs of the Agency's bandAransaction counsel,

(e) The cost incurred by the Agency and paid by the applicant, including bondfransaction counsel and the Agency’s general
counsel's fees and the processing fees, may be considered as a costs of the project and included in the financing of costs of the

propased project, except as limited by the applicable provisions of the Intemal Revenue Code with respact to tax-exempl bond
financing.

The applicant further covenants and agrees that the applicant is liable for payment to the Agency of all charges referred to abave, as well

as all other actual costs and expenses incurred by the Agency in handling the application and pursuing the proposed project
notwithstanding the occurrence of any of the following:

(a) The applicant's withdrawal, abandonment, cancellation or failure to pursue the Application;

11



(b) The inability of the Agency or the applicant to procure the services of one or more financial institutions to provide financing for
the proposed project;

{c) The applicant's failure, for whatever reason, to undertake andfor successfully complete the proposed project; or
(d) The Agency's failure, for whatever reason, to issue lax-exempt revenue bonds in lieu of conventional financing.
The applicant and the individual executing this Application on behalf of applicant acknowledge that the Agency and its counsel will rely on

the representations made in this Application when acling hereon and hereby represents that the statemenls made herein do not contain

any untrue statement of a material fact and do not omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements contained herein not
misleading.

Company Acknowledgment and Certification:

By o A ——, {:)_"—Q_:_;:—

T

Name: Michae! Printup

Title President

Swaorn to before me this

_\L__dayof 4!7/ , .2—0/5—

Iy C |

Notary Public
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Schuyler County Industrial Development Agency
Project Summary and Financial Assistance Cost Benefit Analysis

{This page to be completed by SCIDA Staff)

Company Name:

Project Description:

Project Location:

Town/Village:

School District:

Estimated Cost of Industrial Development Agency Financial Assistance

1. Sales and Use Tax Exemption
A.  Amount of Project Cost Subject to Sales and Use Tax: 3
Sales and Use Tax Rate: B.0%
B. Estimated Exemption (A X .0775). 3

2. Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption

A.  Projected Amount of Mortgage: $
Martgage Recording Tax Rate: 1.0%
B. Estimated Exemption (A X .0075): 5
3 Real Property Tax Exemption
A. Projected Increase in Assessed Value on Project. $
B. Total Applicable Tax Rates Per $1000: %
C. Total Annual Taxes without PILOT (A X B)/1,000: $
D. PILOT Exemption Rate {(see SCIDA Uniform Tax Exemption Policy): %%
E. Average Annual PILOT Payment (C X D): 3
F. Net Exemption over PILOT term {{(C-E) x 7, 10 or 15)): $
4. interest Exemption (Bond transactions only)
a. Estimated Interest Expense Assuming Taxable Interest; $
b. Estimated Interest Expense with tax-exempt Interest Rate: 3
c. Interest Exemption (a-b): $

Estimated Benefits of Industrial Development Agency Financial Assistance

Jobs to be retained in Schuyler County

Current Company payroll in Schuyler County 3
Project Jobs to be Created aver 3 years

Total Project Investment b

Non IDA financing leveraged $
Other project benefits:

S

Applicant Signature: Date:
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Iable of Conteis

DATE, TIME AND PLACE INFORMATION

Our Annual Meeting of Sharcholders will be held on Wednesday, April 8, 2015 commencing at 9.00 A M. (local time) at THE INTERNATIONAL
MOTORSPORTS CENTER, One Daytona Boulevard, Daytona Beach, Florida, 321 14. Sharcholider registration tables will open at 8:00 A M. The mailing
address of our principal executive offices is One Daytona Boulevard, Daytona Beach, Florida 321 14.

VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS

This Information Statement is being mailed commencing on or about March 10, 2015 to all of our sharcholders of record as of the Record Date. The Record
Date forthe Annual Meeting is Janvary 31,2015, As of the Record Date, we had 26,616,977 shares of class A common stock and 19,966,496 shares of class B
common stock issued and outstanding. Each share of the class A common stock is entitled ta one-fifih of one vote on matters submitted to sharcholder

approval ora vote of sharcholders. Each share of the class B common stock is entitled to one vote an matters submitted to sharcholder approval ora voie of
shareholders.

Percentage of

Combined
Number of Shares of Common Percentage of Voting Power of
Stock Reneficlally Owned (2} Common Stock Bencficially Owned Common Stack
Name of Beneficial Owner (1) Clasy A (3) Class B (4) Class A {5) Class B (6) {n
France Family Group (8) 18,338,213 18,179,581 40.93% 91.05% 72.00%
Jumes C. France (9) 6,214,471 6,121,757 18.89% 30.66% 24.28%
Betty Jane France (10) 6,244,474 6,244,474 19.02% 31.27% 24.69%
Aridel Investments, LLC(11) 6,415,756 0 24.10% 0.00% 5.07%
Blackrock, Inc. {12) 2,188.222 0 8.22% 0.00% 1.73%
Vanguard Group (13) 1,591,061 0 5.98% 0.00% 1.26%
‘River Road Asset Management; LLC (14) 1,583,260 I} 5.94% 0.004% 1.25%
Lesa France Kennedy (15)
794,577 732,717 291% 3.67% 2.95%
Brian Z. France (16) 378,140 359,056 1.42% 1.30% L.43%
John R. Saunders 62,107 11,286 0.19% 0.06% 0.08%
Edsel B.Ford II{17)
35,637 0 0:.13% 0.00% 0.03%
J. yatt Brown (18)
25,147 9,000 1.09% 0.04% 0.05%
Christy F. Harris (19) 22,002 150 0.08% 0.00% 1.02%
Mortera Hosscini-Kargar (20)
21,997 ] 0.08% 0.00% 0.02%
Daniel' W. Houser 11,350 0 £.08% 0.00% 0.02%
Joel 8. Chitwood 14,934 L] 0.06% 0.00% 0.01%
Brian K Wilsan 14,501 0 0.05% 1.00% 0.01%
William P. Graves 13,747 1} 0.05% 0.00% 0.01%
Sonia'M. Green 1,856 (1] 0.01% 0.00% 0,00%
Larry B, Woodard 1,856 0 0.01% 01.00% 4.00%
All'directors and executive officers us a group
{22 personaj21) 18?ﬁ57,84-1 18,202,891 41.65% 91.17% T7234%

The preceding table scts forth information regarding the beneficial ownership of our class A common stock and our class B common stock as of the Record
Dale by:

¢ All persons known to us who beneficially own 5% or more of cither class of our common stock;

= Each “named exccutive officer” in the Summary Compensation Table in this Information Statement;
+  Each of our directors and director nonuneces; and

*  All of our directors, director nominees and officers as a group.

As desceribed in the following notes 1o the table, voting and/or investment power with respect to cenain shares of common stock is shared by the named
individuals. Consequently, such shares may be shown as beneficially owned by more than one person.

(1)  Unless otherwise indicated the address of cach of the beneficial owners identified is ¢/o the Company, One Daytona Boulevard, Daytona Beach,
Florida 32114,
{2)  Unless otherwise indicated, each person has sole voting and investment power with respect to all such shares.

(3)  Reflects the aggregate number of shares held by the named beneficial owner assuming (i) the exercise of any options to acquire shares ofclass A
common stock that are held by such beneficial owner that are exercisable within 60 days and
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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)

EAnnual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the fiscal year ended November 30, 2014

or

OTransition Report Pursuant ta Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the transtton period from to

Commission File Number 000-02384

[GISC
INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY CORPORATION

{Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

FLORIDA 590709342
(State or ather jurisdiction of tncorporation) (LR.S. Employer ldentification Na.)
ONE DAYTONA BOULEVARD,
DAYTONA BEACIL, FLORIDA 32114
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip code)

Registrant's telephone number, Including arca code: (386) 254-2700

Securities registered pursnant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class mame of each exchange an which registered

Class A Common Stock — $.01 par value NASDAQ/National Market System

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12 (g) of the Act:
Comman Stock — 8,10 par value
Class B Common Stock — 5.01 par value
(Title of Class}

Indicate by check mark ifthe registrant is a well-known scasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securties Act. YES B NO O

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d} of the Act.
YES O NO

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reponts required 1o be filed by Section 13 or 1 5{d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

during the preceding 12 months {or for such shaner period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing
requirements for the past 90 days. YES @ NO O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted clectronically and posted an its corporate Website, if any, every Interactive Data File required 10

be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation 5-T (§232.405 af this chapter) during the preceding |2 months (ot for such shorter periad that
the registrant was required to submit and post such files). YES B NO O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant 1o ltem 405 of Regulation S-K (§229 405 of this chapier) is not contained hercin, and will

not be conlained, (o the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part 11l of this Fonm 10-K ot
any amendment to this Form 10-K. @

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smatber reporting company, See the
definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company™ in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer B Accelerated filer O
O

Non-accelerated filer O (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reponting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 ofthe Exchange Act).
YES O NO

The aggregate market value ofthe voting stock held by nonaffiliates of the registrant as ofMay 31, 2014 was $869,495,739.00 based upon the last repotted
sale price of the Class A Cammon Stock on the NASDAQ National Market System on Thursday, May 31,2014 and the assumption that all directors and



executive officers of the Company, and their families, are affiliates.

At December 31, 2014, there were outstanding: No shares of Common Stock, 5.10 par value per share, 26,617,267 shares of Class A Common Stock, $.01 par
value per share, and 19,966,996 shares of Class B Common Stock, 5.01 par value per share.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE. The information required by Part 1l is to be incorporated by reference from the definitive information

statement which involves the election of directors at our April 2015 Annual Meeling of Shareholders and which is 1o be filed with the Comemission not later
than 120 days after November 30, 2014.
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“INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY™ MEAN INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY CORPORATION, A FLORIDA CORPORATION, AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES,




INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY CORPORATION
FORM 10-K
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30,2014

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CERREBE BEEBEE BEE EE FEEwommmb



Table of Contents

PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
GENERAL

We are a leading owner of major motorsponts entertainment facilities and promoter of motorsports themed entertainment activities in the United States. Qur

motorsponts themed event operations consist principally of racing cvents at our major malorsports entertainment facilities. We currently own and/or operate
13 of the nation’s major motorspons ententainment facilities:

+  Daytona Intemational Speedway® ("Daytona”) in Florida;

*  Talladcga Superspeedway® ("Talladega") in Alabama;

*  Kansas Speedway & ("Kansas") in Kansas;

+  Richmond intemational Raceway B ("Richmond") in Virginia;

+  Michigan International Speedway® ("Michigan") in Michigan;

«  Auto Club Speedway of Southem Califomia™ {("Auto Club Speedway") in Califomia;
«  Darlinglon Raceway® ("Darlington"} in South Carolina;

¢« Chicagoland Specdway® ("Chicagoland") in Tlinois;

= Mainsville Specdway® ("Martinsvilie”) in Virginia;

+  Phoenix Intemational Raceway® ("Phoenix") in Arizona;

+  Homestcad-Miami SpcedwayS™ ("Homestead™) in Florida;

+  Watkins Glen Intemational® ("Watkins Glen") in New Yark; and
+  Route 66 Raceway™ ("Route 66) in [Hinois.

[n 2014, these motorsports entertainment facilitics promoted well over 100 stack car, open wheel, sports car, truek, motorcycle and other racing events,
including:

« 21 National Association for Stock Car Auto Racing (“NASCAR™) Sprint Cup Series events;
+ 15 NASCAR Xfinity Serics events;
* 9 NASCAR Camping Word Truck Series events;

* 3 Intemational Motor Sports Association {*IMSA™) Tudor United SportsCar Championship Series evenis including the premier sports car endurance
event in the United States, the Rolex 24 at Daytona,

*  One National Hot Rod Association ("NHRA™) Mellow Yellow drag racing series event;
+  One IndyCar{"IndyCar") Series event; and
* A pumberof other prestigious stock car, sports car, apen wheel and motoreycele events

Our business consists principally of promoting racing events al these major motorsports entertainment facilities, which, in total, eumently have approximately
831,500 grandstand scats and 527 suites. We eam revenues and generate substantial cash flows primanly from admissions, television media rights fees,
promotion and sponsorship fees, hospitality rentals (including luxury suites, chalets and the hospitality portion of club seating), advertising revenucs,
royalties from licenses of our trademarks, parking and camping, and track rentals. We own Amencrown Service Corporation (*Americrown™), which provides
catering, concessions and services at certain of our motorsponts entertainment facilities and Molorspons Authentics ("MA") which selis officially licensed
NASCAR and race team merchandise at our motorspons entertainment facilities as well as certain facilities we do not own. We also own and opetale the
Motor Racing Network, Inc. ("MRN") radio network, also doing business under the name “MRN Radio™, the nation's largest independent motorsponts rmdie

network in teoms of event programming. We alsa have an equity investment in a Hollywood Casine at Kansas Speedway that has generated substantial equity
earmnings and cash distnbutions 1o us since its opening in fiscal year 2012.

Atthe beginning of fiscal 2015, the NASCAR Nationwide Series became the NASCAR Xfinity Series. Throughout this document, the naming convention for
this series is consistent with the current branding.

INCORPORATION

We were incorporated in 1953 under the laws of the State of Florida under the name “Bill France Racing, Inc.” and changed our name to “Daytena
Intemational Speedway Corporation” in 1957, With the groundbreaking for Talladega Superspeedway in 1968, we changed our name to “Intemational
Specdway Corporation.” Our principal executive offices are located at One Daytona Boulevard, Daytona Beach, Florida 321 14, and our telephone number is
(386) 254-2700. We maintain a website at http:/'www. intemati speggdwaveo 10 /. The information on our website is not part of this report,
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OPERATIONS

The general nature of our business is a motorspons themed amusement enterprise, fumishing amusement to the public in the form of motorsports themed
entertainment. Our motorsports themed event operations consist principally of mcing events at our major motorspons entertainment facilities, which include
providing catering, and food and beverage concessions at our motorsports entertainment facilities that host NASCAR Sprint Cup Series events except for
catering, and food and beverage concessions at Chicagoland and Route 66 . Our other operations include MRN; our 50,0 percent equity investment in the
joint venture Kansas Entertainment, LLC (*Kansas Entertainment”), which operates the Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway; and certain ather activities
including souvenir merchandising operations. We derved approximately 86.3 percent afour 2014 revenues from NASCAR-sanctioned racing evenls at our
wholly owned molorsports entertainment facilitics. In addition to events sanctioned by NASCAR, in fiscal 2014, we promoted other stock car, sports car,
open wheel, motorcycle and go-kart mcing events.

Food, Beverage and Merchandise Operations

We conduct, either through aperations of the panicutar facility or through our wholly owned subsidiary, Americrown, souvenic merchandising operations,
food and beverage concession operations and calering services, both in suites and chalets, for customers at each of our motorsports entertainment facilities
with the exception of food and beverage concessions and catering services at Chicagoland and Route 66, We also sell officially licensed NASCAR and race
team merchandise at our motorsports entertainment facilities as well as cenain facilities we do not own, through our wholly owned subsidiary, MA. In January
2015, the Company entered into a 10-year agreement with Fanatics Retail Group Concessions, Inc ("Fanatics") for Fanaties to have exclusive retail
merchandise rights for its track trademarks and certain other intellectual propenrty at all 1SC iracks (sce Merchandising Operations in Future Trends In
Operating Results of MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS).

Motor Racing Network, Inc.

Ourwholly owned subsidiary, MRN, alzo does business under the name “MRN Radio”. While not a mdio station, MRN creates maotorsponts-related
programming content camried on radio stations around the country, as well as 2 national satellite radio service, Sirius XM Radio. MRN produces and
syndicates to radio stations live coverage of the NASCAR Sprint Cup, Xfinity and Camping World Truck series races and certain other races conducted at our
motorsponts ententainment facilities, as well as some races conducted at motarsports entertainment facilitics we do not own. Sidus XM Radio also
compensates MRN for the contemporancous re-airing of race broadeasts and certain other production services. MRN produces and provides unique content to
its website, htip:/'www matomacingnetwork.com!, and derives revenue fram the sale of advenising on such websile, Each motorsports entertainment facility
has the ability 10 separately contract for the rights to radio broadcasts of NASCAR and certain other events held at its location, In addition, MRN provides
production services for Sprint Vision, the trackside large screen video display units, at NASCAR Sprint Cup Series event weekends that take place at our
motorsports facilities, as well as at Dover Intemational Specdway and Pocono Raceway. MRN also produces and syndicates daily and weekly NASCAR
racing-themed programs. MRN denves revenue from the sale of national advenising contained in its syndicated programming, the sale of advertising and
audio and video production services for Sprint Vision, as well as from rights fees paid by radia stations that broadcast the programming.

EQUITY INVESTMENT
Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway

We have a 50/50 parinership with Penn Hollywood Kansas Inc. (“Penn™), a subsidiary of Penn National Gaming Inc., which operates a Hollywood-themed

and branded destination entertainment facility, overlooking tum two at Kansas. Penn is the managing member of Kansas Entertainment and is responsible for
the operation of the casino.

Other Activities

From time to time, we use our motorsports entertainment facilities for testing for teams, driving schools, dding experiences, car shows, auto fairs, concerts and
settings for television commercials, print advertisements and motion pictures. We also rent “show cars” for prometional events.

Competition

We are among the largest owners of major motorsports themed entertainment facilities based on revenues, number of facilities owned and or operated, number
of motarsports themed events promoted and market capitalization. Racing events compete with ather professional sports such as footbail, basketbali, hockey
and baseball, as well as other recreational events and activities. Our evenis also compete with other racing events sanctioned by various racing bodies such as
NASCAR, the American Sportbike Racing Association — Championship Cup Senes, United States Auto Club (“"USAC™), Sports Car Club of America
("SCCA"), IMSA, IndyCar Series, Automobile Racing Club of America ("ARCA”) and others, many of which are ofien held on the same dates at separate
motorsports entertainment facilities. We believe that the type and caliber of promoted mcing
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events, facility location, sight lines, pricing, variety of motorsports themed amusement options and level of customer conveniences and amenities are the
principal factors that distinguish competing motorsponts entenainment facilities.

Employees

As of November 30, 204 we had over 845 full-time employecs, We also engage a significant number of temporary personnel to assist during periods of peak
attendance at our events, some of whom are volunteers, Nane of our employecs are tepresented by a labor union. We believe that we enjoy a good
relationship with our employees.

Company Website Access and SEC Filings

The Company’s website may be sccessed at httpaffwww j ti cegdwa optipn.comy/, Through a link on the Investor Relatians portion of our
internet wehsite, you can access all of our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (*SEC"). However, in the cvent that the website is
inaccessible our filings are available to the public over the intemet at the SEC’s website at hittp: ‘www sec gov/. You may also read and copy any document
we file with the SEC at its public reference facilitics at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, D.C. 20549, You can also obtain copies of the documents at prescribed
rates by writing to the Public Reference Room of the SEC at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, D.C. 20549. Plcase call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further
information on the operation of the public reference facilities. You can also obtain information about us at the offices of the National Association of
Securities Dealers, 1735 K St., N.W,, Washington, D.C. 20006.

ITEM I A. RISK FACTORS

Forward-looking statements

This report contains forward-looking statements. The documents incorporated into this report by reference may also contain forward-looking statements. You
can identify a forward-looking statement by our use of the words “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,” “may,” “belicve,” “objective,” “projection,” “forecast,”

“goal,” and similar expressions, Forward-looking statements include our statements regarding the timing of future cvents, our anticipated future operations
and our anticipated future financial pesition and cash requirements

We believe that the expectations reflected in our forward-looking statements are reasonable. We do not know whether our expectations will ultimately prove
correct.

In the section that follows below, in cautionary statements made elsewhere in this repon, and in other filings we have made with the SEC, we list the
important factors that could cause our actual results to differ from our expectations, Our actual results could differ materialty from those anticipated in these
forward-looking statements as a result of the risk factors described below and other factors set forth in or incorporated by reference in this report.

These factors and cautionary statements apply to all future forward-looking statements we make. Many of these factors are beyond our ability to contro| or
predict. Do not put undue reliance on forward-looking statcments or project any future results based on such statements or on present or prior eamings levels.

Additional information conceming these or other factors, which could cause the actual results to differ materally from these in our forward-locking
statements is contained from time to time in our other SEC filings. Copics ol those filings arc available from us and/or the SEC.

Adverse changes in our relationships with NASCAR and ether motorsports sunctioning bodies, or their present sanctioning practices, could lnvit our future
sitceess

Our success has been, and is expected to remain, dependent on maintaining good working relationships with the organizations that sanction the mees we
promote at our facilities, panticularly NASCAR. NASCAR-sanctioned races conducted at our wholly owned motorspons ententainment facilities accounted for
approximately 86.3 percent afour total revenues in fiscal 2014, Each NASCAR sanctioning agreement {and the accompanying media rights foes revenue) is
awarded on an annual basis and NASCAR is not required to continue to enter into, renew or extend sanctioning agreements with us to conduct any event.
Any adverse change in the present sanctioning practices, or the present economic model, could adversely impact our operations and revenue. Moreover,
although our general growth strategy includes the possible development and/or acquisition of additional motorsponts entertainment facilities, we have no
assurance that any sanctioning body, including NASCAR, will enterinto sanctioning agreements with us te conduct mees ai any newly developed or
acquired motorsports entertainment facilities. Failure to obtain a sanctioning agreement for a major NASCAR event could negatively affect us. Similarly,
tlthough NASCAR has in the past approved our requests for realignment of sanctioned events, NASCAR is not obligated 1o modify its race schedules to
aliow us to schedule our races more efficiently or profitably.

Changes to media rights revenues could adversely affect us
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Domestic broadcast and ancillary media rights fees revenues derived from NASCAR's three nationa! touring series — the NASCAR Sprint Cup Series, Xfinity
Series, and Camping World Truck Series — are an important component of our revenue and eamings stream and any adverse changes to such rights fees
revenues could adversely impact our results.

Any material changes in the media industry that could lead to differences in historical practices or decreases in the term and/or financial value of fisture
broadcast agreements could have a materal adverse affect on our revenues and financial results.

Changes, declines and delays in consumer and corporate spending as well as illiquid credit markets could adversely affect us

Our financial results depend significantly upon a number of factors relating to discretionary consumer and comorate spending. including ceonomic
conditions affecting disposable consumer income and corporate budgets such as:

+  Employment;

«  Business conditions;

*  Interest rates; and

*  Taxation rates.

These factors can impact both attendance at our events and adventising and marketing dollars available from the motorsports industry’s principal sponsors
and potential sponsors. Economic and other lifestyle conditions such as illiquid consumer and business eredit markets adversely affect consumer and
comorate spending thereby impacting our revenue, profitability and financial results, Further, changes in consumer behaviar such as deferred purchasing
decisions and decreased spending budgets adversely impact our cash flow visibility and revenues. The significant econemic deterioration that began in fiscal
2008, for example, has impacted these areas of our business and our revenues and financial results.

Unavailability efcredit on favorable terms can adversely impact our growth, development and capital spending plans. General economic conditions were
significantly and negatively impacted by the Scptember | 1, 2001 temorist attacks and could be similarly affected by any futurc attacks, by a temorist attack at
any mass gathering or fear of such attacks, or by other acts or prospects of war, Any future attacks or wars or related threats could also increase our expenses
related to insurance, security or other related maltters. A weakened econamic and business climate, as well as copsumer uncenainty and the loss of consumer
confidence created by such a climate, could adversely affect our financial results, Finally, our linancial results could also be adversely impacted by a
widespread outbreak of a severe epidemiological crisis.

Delay, posiponement or cancellation of mujor motarsporis events because of weather or other fuctors could adversely affect us

We promote outdoor matorsports enlertainment events. Weather conditions affect sales of, among other things, tickets, food, drinks and merchandise at these
events. Poor weather conditions prior to an event, or even the forecast of paor weather conditions, could have a negative impact on us, perticulady for walk-
up ticket sales to events which are not sold out in advance, as well as renewals for the following year. [fan event scheduled for one of our facilities is delayed
or postponed because of weather or other reasons such as, for example, the general postponement of all major sperting events in the United States following
the September E1, 2001 terrorism attucks, we could incur increased expenses associated with conducting the rescheduled event, as well as possible decreased
revenues from tickets, food, drinks and merchandise at the rescheduled event, If such an event is canceled, we would incur the expenses associated with
preparing to conduct the event as well as losing the revenues, including any live broadcast revenues, associated with the event.

[fa canccled event is part of the NASCAR Sprint Cup, Xfinity or Camping World Truck series, in the year of cancellation we could experience a reduction in
the amount of money we expect to receive from television revenues for all of our NASCAR-sanctioned events in the series that experienced the cancellation.
This would oceur if, as a result of the cancellation, and without regard to whether the canceled event was scheduled for ane of our facilitics. NASCAR
experienced a reduction in television revenues greater than the amount scheduled to be paid to the promoter of the canceled event.

Fruance Family Group control of NASCAR creates conflicts of interest

Members of the France Family Group own and control NASCAR. James C, France, our Chaimman of the Board, and Lesa France Kennedy, our Vice
Chairwoman and Chief Executive Officer, are both members of the France Family Group in addition to holding positions with NASCAR. Each of them, as
well as our general counsel, spends part of his or her time on NASCAR s business. Because of these relationships, even though all related party transactions
arc approved by our Audit Committee, certnin potential conflicts of interest between us and NASCAR exist with respect to, among other things:

*  The terms of any sanctioning agreements that may be awarded to us by NASCAR:
*  The amount oftime the employees mentioned above and certain of our other employees devote to NASCARs affairs: and
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*  The amounts charged or paid to NASCAR for office rental, transponiation costs, shared executives, administrative expenses and similar items.

France Family Group members, together, beneficially own approximately 39.0 percent of our capital stock and control aver 72.0 percent of the combined
vating power of both classes of our common stock. Historically members of the France Family Group have voted their shares of common stock in the same
manner. Accordingly, they can (without the approvat of our other sharcholders) elcet our entire Board of Directors and determine the outcome af various
matters submitted to shareholders for approval, including fundamental corporate transactions and have done so in the past. If holders of class B common
stock otherthan the France Family Group ¢lect to convert their beneficially owned shares of class B common stock into shares of class A common stock and
members of the France Family Group do not convert their shares, the relative vating power ofthe France Family Group will increase. Voling control by the
France Family Group may discourage certain types of tansactions invelving an actual or potential change in control of us, including transactions in which
the holders of class A common stock might receive a premium for their shares over prevailing market prices.

Our success depends on the availability and performance of key personne!

Qur continued success depends upon the availability and performance of our senior management team, which possesses unique and extensive industry
knowledge and experience. Qurinability to retain and attract key employees in the future, could have a negative effect on our operations and business plans,

Our capital allocation plan may not achieve anticipated results

Enhancing the live event experience forour guests by investing in our major motorsports facilities is a critical strategy for our growth, and our Board of
Dircctors has endorsed a capital allocation plan for fiscal 2013 through fiscal 2017 related 1o this stricgy, which includes DAYTONA Rising. This plan
invalves significant challenges and risks including that the projects do not advance our business strategy or that we do not realize a satisfactory return on our
investrnent. It may take longer than expected to realize the full benefits from these projects, such as increased revenue, or the benefits may ultimately be
smaller than anticipated or may not be realized. These events could harm our operating results or financial condition. Funther, these projects may not be
completed an time, which could result in a negative financial impact.

Future impairment or loss on disposal of goodwill and other imtangible assets or long-lived assets by us or our equity investments and joint ventteres could
adversely affect our financial results

Our consolidated balance sheets include significant amounts of goodwill and ather intangible assets and long-lived assets which could be subject to
impairment or loss on retirement. During the fiscal years ended November 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014 we recorded before-tax charges as losses on retirements of
long-tived assets primarily attributable to the removal of certain other long-lived assets located at our motorsports facilities totaling approximately §11.1
million, $16.6 million and $10.1 million, respectively,

As of November 30, 2014, goodwill and other intangible assets and property and equipment accounts for approximately $1.7 billion, or 80.8 percent of our
total assets. We account for our goodwill and other intangible assets in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (*ASC") 350, “Intangibles =-
Goodwill and Other”, and for our long-lived assets in accordance with ASC 360, “Propenty. Plant and Equipment.” Both ASC 350 and 360 rcquire testing
goodwill and other intangible assets and long-lived assets for impainment based on assumptions regarding our future business outlook. While we continue 1o
review and analyze many factors that can impact our business prospects in the future, our analyses are subjective and are based on conditions existing at and
trends leading up to the time the assumptions are made. Actual resulis could differ materially from these assumptions. Our judgments with regard to our future
business prospects could impact whether or not an impairment is deemed to have occurred, as well as the timing of the recognition of such an impainnent
charge. If future testing for impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets or long-lived assets results in a reduction in their camrying value, we will be
required to take the amount of the reduction in such goodwill and other intangible assets or long-lived assets as a non-cash charge againsi operating income,
which would also reduce sharchelders® equity.

In addition, our growth strategy includes investing in certain joint venture opportunities. In these equity investments we exen significant influence on the
investce but do not have cffective control over the investee, These equity investments add an additional clement of risk where they may not advance our
business strategy or that we do not realize a satisfactory retum on our investment. It may take longer than expected to realize the full benefits from these
equity investments, or the benefits may ullimately be smalier than anticipated or may not be realized. These events could harm our operating results or
financial condition. Our equity investments total approximately $122.6 million at November 30, 2014,
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Personal injuries to spectators and participants could adversely affect financial results

Matorsports can be dangerous to participants and speciators, We maintain insurance policics that provide coverage within limits that we belicve should
genenally be sufficient to proteet us fiom a large financial loss due to liability for personal injuries sustained by persons on our property in the ordinary
course of our business. There can be no assurance, however, that the insurznce will be adequate ot available at all times and in all circumstances, Our
financial condition and results of aperations could be affected negatively to the extent claims and expenses in connection with these injuries are greater than
insurance recoveries or if insurance coverage for these exposures becomes unavailable or prohibitively expensive.

in addition, sanctioning bodies could impose more stringent rules and regulations for safety, security and operational activities, Such regulations include, for
example, the improvements and additions of retaining walls at our facilitics, which have increased our capital expendiwres, and increased security
procedures, which have increased our operational expenscs.

We aperate in a highly competitive environment

As an entertainment company, our racing events face competition from other spectator-oriented sporting events and other leisure, entertainment and
recreational activities, including professional football, basketball, hockey and baseball. As a result, our revenues are affected by the general popularity of
motorsports, the availability of eltemative forms of recreation and changing consumer preferences and habits, including how consumers consume
entertainment, Our racing events also compete with other mcing events sanctioned by various racing bodies such as NASCAR, USAC. NHRA, SCCA. IMSA,
ARCA and others. Many sports and entertainment businesses have resources that exceed ours.

We are subject to changing govermmental regulations and legal standards that could increase our expenses
We belicve that our operations are in material compliance with all applicable federal, state and local environmental, land use and other laws and regulations.

Ifit is determined that damage to persons or property or contamination of the environment has been caused or exacerbated by the operation or conduct of our
business or by pollutants, substances, contaminants er wastes uscd, generated or disposed of by us, or if pollutants, substances, contaminants or wastes are
found on properly cumently or previously owned or operated by us, we may be held liable for such damage and may be required 1o pay the cost of

investigation and/or remediation of such contamination or any related damage. The amount of such liability as to which we are selfinsured could be
material,

State and local laws relating to the protection ofthe environment also can include noise abatement laws that may be applicable to our mcing events.

Our cxisting facilities continue to be used in situations where the standards for new facilitics to comply with centain laws and regulations, including the
Americans with Disabilities Act, are constantly evolving. Changes in the provisions or application of federal, state or local environmental, land use or other
laws, regulations or requirements to our facilities or operations, or the discovery of previously unknown conditions, alse could require us to make additional
material expenditures to remediate or attain compliance.

Regulations goveming the use and development of real estate may prevent us from acquiring or developing prime locations for motorsports entertainment
facitilies, substantially delay or complicate the process of improving existing facilities. and/or increase the costs of any of such activities.

If we do not mainiain the security of customer-related information. we could damage our reputation with customers, incur substansial additional costs and
become subject to litigation

In the ordinary course of our business, we coltect and store cenain personal information including but not limited to name, address and payment account
information from individuals, such as our customers, emplayces and business partners. We also process customer payment card transactions. In addition, our
online operations depend upen the secure transmission of confidential, personal and payment account information over public networks, including
information permitting cashless payments. We mit the amount of payment information by using “takens™ which is an industry best practice that does not
require the credit card number to be stared, Significant resources are dedicated both intemally and with extemal experts to help us manage information
security, network security, data encryption, and other security practices to protect our systems and data, but these securily measures cannot provide absolute
security. As with all companies, these security measures are subject to third-panty security breaches, employee ermor or malfeasance, or other unanticipated
situations. Such a compromise of our security systems that results in personal or payment network information being obtained by unauthorized persons could
adversely affect our reputation with ur customers, the credit card brands (such as VISA, MasterCard and American Express)and others. Such 2 compromise
could aiso adversely affect our operitions, results of operations, financial condition and liguidity, and could result in litigation against us, the imposition of
penalties, restrictions or other requirements by regulatory
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bodies or the credit card brands. In addition, a security breach could require that we expend significant additionn] resources related to our informaticn

security systems and could result in a disruption of our opertions, particularly our sales operations. While we maintain insurance against this risk, not all
losses would be covered by such insurance,

Our guarterly results arc subject ta seasonaliny and variability

We derive most of our income from 2 limited number of NASCAR-sanctioned races. As a result, our business has been, and is expected to remain, highly
scasonal based on the timing of major meing cvents. Future schedule changes as determined by NASCAR or other sanctioning bodics, as well as the

acquisition of additional, or divestiture of existing, motorsponts entertainment fazilities could impact the timing of our major events in comparison to prioror
future penods.

{TEM IB. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Motorsports Entertainment Facilities

The following table sets forth cument information relating to each of sur motomparts entertainment facilitics as of November 30, 2014:

2014 YEAR END

CAPACITY NASCAR OTHER MEDIA
‘ SPRINT MAJOR MARKETS MARKET

TRACK NAME LOCATION SEATS SUITES CLP EVENTS EVENTS(1) SERVED RAMK
Daytona Intemational Daytona Beach, ; Orlando/Central
Speedway Florida 147,000 103 4 6 Flarida 18
Talladega Superspecdway Atlanta’

Talladega, Alabama 78,000 30 2 3 Birmingham 9/43
Kansas Speedway Kansas City, Kansas 74,000 56 2 3 Kansas City 3t
Richmond Intemational
Raceway Richmond, Virginia 71,000 40 2 2 Washington D.C. 8
Michigan Intemational
Specdway Brookiyn, Michigan 71,000 46 2 3 Detroit i2
Aute Club Speedway of
Southem Califomia Fontana, California 68,000 10 I 2 Los Angeles 2

Dariington, Seuth
Darlington Raceway Carolina 58,000 13 1 2 Columbia 17
Chicagoland Speedway Joliet, Nlinois 33,500 24 1 4 Chicago 3

Martinsville, Greensboro High
Mantinsville Speedway Virginia 35,000 20 2 2 Point 46
Phoenix [ntemational
Raceway Phoenix, Adzona 51,000 43 2 3 Phoenix 1
Homestead-Miami
Speedway Homestead, Flotida 46,000 G6 l 5 Miami 16
Watkins Glen International  Watkins Glen, New

Yok 33.000 4 | 3 Buffalo'Rochester 52/78
Route 66 Raceway Joliet, lhinois 24,000 nia = I 2] Ghicago 3

(1)  Othermajor events include NASCAR Xfinity and Camping World Truck series; ARCA; IMSA; IndyCar; and, AMA Pro Racing.
(2)  Route 66's other major event includes an NHRA Mellow Yellow Drag Racing Series event,

DAYTONA INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY. Daytona is a 2.5 mile high-banked, lighted, asphalt, tri-oval superspeedway that also includes a 3.6-mile road

course. We lease the land on which Daytona Intemational Speedway is located from the City of Daytona Beach. The lease on the property expires in 2054,
including renewal options, The facility is situated on 440 acres and is located in Daytona Beach, Florida,

9
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TALLADEGA SUPERSPEEDWAY. Talladega is a 2.7 mile high-banked, asphalt, tri-oval superspeedway with a 1,3-mile inficld road course. The facility is
situated on 1,435 acres and is located about 100 miles from Atlanta, Georgia and approximately 50 miles from Birmingham, Alabama.

KANSAS SPEEDWAY. Kansas is a 1.5 mile varisble-degree banked, asphali, tri-oval superspeedway with a 0.9-mile infield road course. The facilily is

situated on 1,000 acres and is located in Kansas City, Kansas. Overlooking tum two of Kansas is a Hollywood-themed and branded destination entertainment
facility (see Equity Investments).

RICHMOND INTERNATIONAL RACEWAY, Richmond is a 0.8 mile moderately-banked, lighted, asphalt, oval, intermediate speedway. The facility is
situated on 635 acres and is located approximately 10 miles from downtown Richmond, Virginia.

MICHIGAN INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY, Michigan is a 2.0 mile moderately-banked, asphalt, tn-oval superspeedway. The facility is situated on 1,180
acres and is located in Brooklyn, Michigan, approximately 70 miles southwest of Detroit.

AUTO CLUB SPEEDWAY OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA. Auto Club Speedway is a 2.0 mile modertely-banked, lighted, asphalt, tri-oval superspeedway.

The facility is situated on 566 acres and is located approximately 40 miles east of Los Angeles in Fontana, Califomia, The facility also includes a quarter
mile drag strip and a 2.8-mile road course.

DARLINGTON RACEWAY. Darlington is a 1.3 mile high-banked, lighted, asphalt, egg-shaped superspeedway. The facility is situated on 230 acres and is
located in Darlington, South Carolina,

CHICAGOLAND SPEEDWAY. Chicagoland is a 1.5 mile moderately-banked, tighted, asphali, tri-oval superspeedway. The facility is situated on 930 acres
and is located in Joliet, lllinois, approximately 35 miles from Chicago, litinois.

MARTINSVILLE SPEEDWAY. Martinsville is n 0.5 mile modcrately-banked, asphait and concrete, oval speedway. The facility is situated on 250 acres and
is located in Mantinsville, Virginia, approximately 50 miles north of Winston-Salem, North Carolina.

PHOENLX INTERNATIONAL RACEWAY, Phoenix is a [.0 mile low-banked, lighted, asphalt, oval superspeedway. The facility is situated on 598 acres that
also includes a 1.5-mile road course located near Phaenix, Arizana,

HOMESTEAD-MIAMISPEEDWAY. Homesteadis a 1.5 mile variable-degree banked, lighted, asphalt, oval superspeedway. The facility is situated on 404

acres and is located in Homestead, Florida. Homestead is owned by the City of Homestead, however we operate Homestead under an agreement that expires in
2075, including renewal options,

WATKINS GLEN INTERNATIONAL. Watkins Glen includes 3.4-mile and 2.4-mile road course tracks. The facility is situated on 1,377 acres and is located
near Watkins Glen, New York,

ROUTE 66 RACEWAY. Route 66 includes a quarter mile drag strip and dint oval speedway. The facility, adjacent to Chicgoland, is situated on 240 acres and
is located in Jolict, lllinois, approximately 35 miles from Chicago, lllinois.

OTHER FACILITIES: We own approximately 245 actes of real property near Daytona which is home to our corporate headquarters and other offices and
facilities. In addition, we also own 410 acres near Daytona on which we conduct agricultural operations except during events when they are used for parking
and other ancillary purposes. We lease real estate and office space in Talladega, Alabama and the property and premises at the Talladega Municipal Airport.
We lease office space in Watkins Glen, New York, in Concord, North Carolina and in Avondale, Arizona.

Intellectual Property

We have various registered and common law trademark rights, including, but not limited to, “California Speedway,” “Chicagoland Speedway,” “Darlington
Raceway,” “The Great American Race.” “Southem 500,” “Too Tough to Tame,” “Daytona Intemational Speedway,” * Daytona 500 EXperience,” the
“Daytona 500,” the 24 Hours of Daytona,” “Accelenation Alley,” “Daytlona Dream Laps,” “Speedwecks,” “World Center of Racing,” “Homestead-Miami
Speedway,” “Kansas Speedway,” “Murtinsville Speedway,” “Michigan Intemational Speedway,” “Phoenix Intemational Raceway,” “Richmond Intemationat
Raceway,” “Route 66 Raceway,” “The Action Track,” “Talladega Superspeedway,” “Watkins Glen Intemnational,” “The Glen,” “Americrown,” “Motor
Racing Netwark,” *“MRN,” and related logos. We also have licenses from NASCAR, various drivers and other businesses to use names and logos for
merchandising progrums and product sales. Our policy is to protect ourintellectual propenty rights vigorously, through litigation, if necessary, chiefly
because of their proprietary value in merchandise and promotional sales.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
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From time to Lime, we are 4 party o routine litigation incidental to our business. We do not believe that the resolution of any orall of such litigation will
have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of opemtions.

ITEM 4, MINE SAFETEY DISCLOSURES

None

PART I

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

At November 30, 2014, we had two issued classes of capital stock: class A common stock, 5.01 par value per share, and class B common stock, $.01 par value
per share. The class A common stock is traded on the NASDAQ National Market System under the symbol “ISCA.” The class B common stock is traded on the
Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board under the symbol “1SCB.OB™ and, at the option of the holder, is convertible to class A common stock at any time. As of
November 30, 2014, there were approximately 2,006 record hiolders of class A common stock and approximately 336 record holders of class B commeon stock.

The reported high and low sales prices or high and low bid information, as applicable, for each quarter indicated are as follows:

15CA ISCR.OB{1)
High Low High Low
$iscal 2013
First Quarter S 3109 S 2596 S 3100 S 25.70
Sccond Quarter 35.75 2930 35.00 29.70
Third Quarter 3517 3061 3473 31.30
Fourth Quarter 3499 3014 37.59 3034
Fiscal 2014
First Quatter 3 3801 8 3002 § 3740 % 3235
Second Quarter 34.96 29.90 34.00 2972
Third Quarter : 3532 29.67 3467 29.00
Fourth Quarner 3398 18.09 33.30 3100

(1) ISCB quotations were obtained from the OTC Bulletin Board and represent prices between dealers and do not include mark-up, mark-down or
commission, Such quotations do not necessatily represent actual transactions

11
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Stock Purchase Plan

An important component of our capital allocation strategy is retuming capital to sharcholders. We have solid operating margins that generate substantial

aperating cash flow. Using these intemally generated proceeds, we have returned a significant amount of capital to sharehalders primarily through our share
repurchase progmm.

The Company has a share repurchase program (“Stock Purchase Plan™) under which it is authorized to purchase up to $330.0 million ofits culstanding
Class A common shares. The timing and amount of any shares repurchased under the Stock Purchase Plan will depend on a variety of factors, including price,
corporate and regulatory requirements, capital availability and other market conditions. The Stock Purchase Plan may be suspended or discontinued at any

time without priot notice. No shares have been or will be knowingly purchased from Company insiders or their affiliates

()
Mavimum
number
of shares
{or
approximate
dollar
(¢} Total value of
number of shares)
sharey that mzy yet
purchased be
(b as purchased
Average part of under the
(a) Total price publicly plans or
number pald announced programs
of shares per plans or (in
Period purchased share Pragrams thousands)
December 1, 2013 — August 31,2014
Repurchase program(1) - — — 61,741
Employee transactions(2) 10,015 3234 —
September 1, 2014 — September 30, 2014
Repurchase program{!) — - — 61,741
October 1, 2014 = October 31, 2014
Repurchage program{1) - - 61,741
November 1, 2014 — November 30, 2014
Repurchase program{! ) —_ - — 61,741
10,015 —

{1)  Since inception of the Stock Purchase Plan through November 30, 2014, we have purchased 7,063,962 shares of our Class A commeon shares, for a total
of approximately $268.3 million. Included in these totals are the purchases of 405.538 shares of the Company's Class A common shares at an average
cost of approximately $25.40 per share (including commissions), for a total of approximately $£0.3 million , during the fiscal year ended Nov ember
30, 2012, These transactions eccurmred in open market purchases and pursuant to a trading plan under Rule 10b3-1. There were no purchases, under the
Stock Purchase Plan, of the Company's Class A common shares during fiscal 2013 and 2014, At November 30, 2014, we have approximately
$61.7 miition remaining repurchase authorty under the current Stock Purchase Plan

(2)  Represents shares of our common stock delivered to us in satisfaction of the minimum statutory tax withholding obligation of holders of restricted

shares that vested during the penod.

12
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Dividends

Annual dividends were declared in the quarter ended in May and paid in June in the fiscal years reported below on all comumaen stock that was issued at the
time {amount per share):

Annnal
Fiscal Year: Dividend
i'l_m 10 b} 0.16
2011 0.18
2012 020
2013 022
2014 0.24
Securities Authorized For Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans
Equity Compensation Pian Information
Number of
securities
remaining
available
for future
Number of issuance
securitles under equlty
10 he compensttion
Issued wpan plans
exercise of Weighted-ayverage {excluding
outsianding exercise price of securities
aptions, outstanding reflected in
warrants aptions, warrants calemn
and rights and rights {a))
Plan Category (a) (h) (<)
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders 163,048 39.82 477,084
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders _— — —
Tatal 163,048 39.82 477,084

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following tabie sets forth our selected financial data as of and for cach of the last five fiscal years in the penod ended November 30, 2014, The income
statement data for the three fiscal years in the penod ended November 30, 2014, and the balance sheet data as of November 30, 2013 and November 30,2014,
have been derived from our audited historical consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report. The balance sheet data as of November 30,
2012, and the income statement data and the balance shect data as of and for the fiscal years ended November 36, 2011 and 2010, have been derived from our
audited historical consolidated financial statements, which are available on our website. You should read the selected financial data set forth below in
conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ and our cansolidated financial statements and

the aceompanying notes included elsewhere in this report.



For the Year Ended Novcemher 34,
b0} 20011 2012 2013 14

{in thousands, except share and per share data)

Income Statement Datu:
Revenues:
Admissions, net 5 160476 § 144433 § 136,099 & 129824 § 129,688
Motarspons refated 420916 425,655 416,699 425,530 433,738
Food; beverage and merchandise (1) 53,527 47,863 45,985 44,046 72,880
Other 11,444 11,734 13,584 13,240 15,630
Total revenues 645,357 629,685 612,367 612,640 651936
Expenses:
Direct: :
Prize and point fund monies and
NASCAR sanction fees 157,571 154,562 134,673 159,349 162,988
Motorsports related 142,603 124,861 125072 125,928 128,229
Food, beverage and merchandise (1) 36,949 36,744 35,642 33,150 58,265
General and administeative 102,733 98,795 102,958 104,025 108,563
Depreciation and amontization (2) 74,465 76,371 77,870 93.989 90,352
Impeinnents / losses on retirements of long-
lived assets (3) 8,859 4,687 11,143 16,607 10,148
Total expenscs 523,180 496,520 507,338 533948 558,545
Opemating income 122,177 133,185 103,609 : 78,692 93,391
Intercst income (4) 170 139 i02 96 2107
Interest expense (3} (15216} (14,710} {13.501) (15.221) {9,182}
Interest rate swap expense (6) (23,878) — — -- _
Loss on early redemption ofdebt (T (6,535) - (9,144) - —
Other (8) - — 1,008 75 5380
Equity. in net {loss) income from equity
investments {9) (1,904) @.177) 2,757 9434 8,916
Income from continuing operations before
income taxes 74814 114,417 86,231 73,076 10,612
Income taxes (10) 20,236 44,593 31,653 27,784 33,233
Income from continuing operations 54,578 69424 54.578 45,292 67,379
Loss from discontinued operations 47 — — — -
Net income 5 54,531 § 69424 § 54578 § 45292 § 67,379
Basic and diluted camings per share:
Income from continuing opemtions 5 113§ 146 5§ 118§ 097 § 145
Loss from discontinued operations 0.00 — - - -
Net income § 1.13  § 146 § I8 8 497 S 143
Dividends per shere $ 06 § 018 § 020 § 022 8 024
Weighted avernge shares outstanding:
Basic 48242 555 47,602.5?4 46,386,355 46,470,647 46,559,232
Diluted 48,242,555 47611179 46,396,631 46,486,561 46,573,038
HBalunce Sheet Duta (nt end of period):
Cash and cash equivalents 5 84,166 § 110,078 § 78379 0§ 172827 § 158,847
Working capital 58,267 75,759 50,868 153,780 114,783
Total as:-ic.'ls 1,878,749 1,944,639 1941, 41 2,017,506 2,077,651
Long-tenn debt 303,074 313,388 274419 271,680 268,311
Total debt 306,290 316,152 276,932 274487 171,746
Total sharshotders' equity 1,187,177 1,212 466 1,248,810 1,287,155 1,346,432
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3)

@)
3)

(6)
(7)

@)

9)

(10)

Fiscal year 2014 includes consolidated operations of MA following Speedway Motorsports, Ine.'s ("SM1*) abandoament of its interest and rights in
SMISC, LLC on January 31, 2014, As a result, ISC recognized merchandise revenue and opemting expenses totaling approximately $25.7 million and
$24.7 million, respectively, for the 10-month period February 1, 2014 through November 30, 2014,

Fiscal year 2013 includes accelerated depreciation that was recorded due to the shortening the service lives of cetain assets associated with
DAYTONA Rising and capacity management initiatives totaling approximately $15.4 million. Fiscal year 2014 includes accelerated depreciation that
was recorded duc to the shortening the service lives of certain assets associated with DAYTONA Rising totaling approximately $11.1 million,

Fiscal 2000 impairment/losses on assct retirements is primarily attributable 1o the non-cash impainnent of certain costs related to a previous Daytona
development project and, to a much lesser extent, losses on the removal of cenain other long-lived assets. Fiscal 2011 losses associated with the
retirements of certain other long-lived assets is primarily autributable to the removal of certain assets in conncction with the repaving ofthe track and
grandstand enhancements at Phoenix as well as grandstand enhancements at Kansas and Talladega. Fiscal 2012 losses associated with the retirements
of cenain other long-lived assets is primarily attributable to the removal of certain assets in connectian with the repaving of the track at Kansas, and
certain other long-lived assets localed at our motorsports facilities. Fiscal 2013 losses associated with the retirements of certain ather long-lived assets
is primiarily attributablc to the removal of asscts not fully depreciated in connection with DAY TONA Rising, capacity management initiatives and
other capital improvements. Fiscal 2014 losses associated with demolition costs in connection with DAYTONA Rising, capacity management
initiatives and other capital improvemenis.

Fiscal 2014 includes approximately $ 1.8 million related to settlement of interest income on 2 long-tenm reccivable.

Fiscal 2013 and 2014 include approximately $0.8 million and $7.2 million, respectively, related to capitalized interest for DAYTONA Rising, (see
DAYTONA Rising in Liquidity and Capital Rescurces of MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS).

Fiscal year 2010 include expenses related to an intersst rate swap.

In fiscal 2010, we recorded a loss on early redemption of debt related to a cash tender offer where we purchased approximately $63.0 million of
outstanding senior notes. In fiscal 2012, we recorded 2 loss on early redemption of debt related to the redemiption of $87.0 million of outstanding
senior notes maturing in 20014,

Fiscal 2014 includes the valuation adjustment related to consolidation of MA, representing the fair value over the carrying value as of January 31,
2014, Fiscal 2012 includes the net gain on sale of certain assets.

Equity in net (loss) income from equity investments includes the Company's 50.0 percent pontion of Kansas Entertainment’s net income, more fully
discussed in Management's Discussion and Analysis, Equity and Other Investments, Fiscal 2010 and 201 | include pre-development apenting
expenses not capitalized prior to commencement of operations in February 2012, Fiscal 2012 reflects a pantial year of operations from the Casino
opening in February 2012 through November 30, 2012, Included in the Company's equity income in fiscal 2013 is a one-time property tax refund of
approximately $1.1 million, and, in fiscal 2014, an expensc equal te 1.0 percent of gross gaming revenue, approximately $0.6 million, since it did not
proceed with construction of'a hotel by the original deadline.

Fiscal 2010 income taxes include the de-recognition of potential interest and penalties assaciated with certain state tax settlements of approximately
£6.3 million.
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GAAP to Non-GAAP Reconciliation

The following financial information is presented below using other than U.S. gencrlly accepted accounting principles (“non-GAAP™), and is reconciled to
comparable information presented using GAAP. Non-GAAP net income and diluted eamings per share below are derived by 2djusting amounts determined in
accordance with GAAP for certain items presented in the accompanying selected operating statement data, net of taxes.

We believe such non-GAAP information is useful and meaningful, and is used by investors to assess our core operations, which consist of the ongoing
promotion of meing events ut our major motorsponts enterainment facilities. Such non-GAAP information identifies and separately displays the equity
investment eamings and losses of MA and Kansas Entertainment (prior to becoming pant of aur core operations in fiscal 2012) and adjusis for items that are
not considered to be reflective of our continuing core operations at our motorsponts entertainment facilities. We believe that such non-GAAP information
improves the comparability of the operating results and provides a better understanding of the performance of our core operations for the periods presented.
We use this non-GAAP information to analyze the cumrent performance and trends and make decisions regarding future ongoing operations. This non-GAAP
financial information may not be comparable to similarly titled measures used by other entities and should not be considered as an altemative to aperating
income, net income or diluted eamings per share, which are determined in accordance with GAADP. The presentation of this non-GAAP financial information
is not intended to be considered independent of or as a substitute for results prepared in accordance with GAAP. Management uses both GAAP and non-
GAAP information in evaluating and operating the business and as such deemed it important to provide such information ta investors.

The adjustments for 2010 relate to the pre-opening expenses for Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway — equity in net loss from equity investment,
impairment/loss on retirements of lang-lived assets primarily atibutable to centain costs related to a previous Daytona development project, which were
capitalized and are no longer expected to benefit the future development of the project and, to a much lesser extent, losses associated with the retitements of
certain other long-lived assets, interest rate swap expense, the loss on carly redemption of debt, and, the de-recognition of potential interest and penalties
associated with certain siate tax settlements.

The adjustments for 201! relate o the pre-opening expenses for Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway — equity in net loss from equity investment,
carying casts of our the Staten Island property, and losses associated with the retirements of certain other long-lived assets.

The adjustments for 2012 relate to camying costs of our Staten Island property, settlement of litigation, marketing and consulting costs incurred associated
with DAYTONA Rising, losses associated with the retirements of certain other long-lived assets, loss on early redemption of debt, and net gain on sale of
cernain assets.

The adjustments for 2013 relate to carrying costs of our Staten {sland property, legal judgment, marketing and consulting costs incumed associated with
DAYTONA Rising, accelerated depreciation associated with DAYTONA Rising and capacity management initiatives, losses associated with the retirements
of certain other long-lived asscts, capitalized interest associated with DAYTONA Rising and net gain on sale of certain assets.

The adjustments for 2014 relate to legal settlement, marketing and consulting costs incurrcd associated with DAYTONA Rising, accelerated depreciation,
lasses associated with the retirements of certain other long-lived assets, impairment of MA long-lived intangible asset, settlement of interest income related to
long-term receivable, DAYTONA Rising project capitalized interest, MA fair value adjustment and income tax benefits, and net loss on sale of cenain assets



Net income

Net loss from discontinued operations

Income from continuing operations

Equity in net loss from equity investments, net of iax
Consolidated income from continuing opemtiuné excluding
equity in net loss from equity investments
Adjustments, net of tax:

Camying costs relaied to Staten Island

Legal settlement judgment

DAYTONA Rising project

Accelerated depreciation

Losscs on retirements oflong-lived assets
Impaimment of MA’ long lived intangible asset
Interest settlement on long-term receivable
DAYTONA Rising project capitalized interest
Interest rate swap expense

[.oss on carly redempiion of debi

MA fairvalue adjustment and income tax benefits
Net loss {gain) on sale of centain assets

State tax settlements

Non-GAAP net income

Diluted eamings per share

Net loss fram discontinued operations

Diluted ecamings per share from continuing operations
Equity in netloss from equity investments, net of tax
Consalidated income from continuing operations excluding
equity in net loss from equity investments
Mjustmcnls, net of tax:

Carrying costs related to Staten Istand

Legai seitlementjudgment

DAYTONA Rising project

Accelerated depreciation

Losses on retirements of lang-lived assets
Impatrment of MA's long lived intangible agset
[nterest settlement on long-tenm receivable
DAYTONA Rising project capitalized intcrest
Interest rate swap expense

Loss on early redemption of debt

MA fair value adjustment and income tax benefits
Net loss (gain) on sale of certain assets

State tax senlements

Non-GAAP diluted eamings per share

For the Year Ended November 30

2010 2011 2012 2013 Io14
(in thousands, cxcept per share data)

54531 S 69424 5 54,578 § 45292 67,379
% - e o e

54,578 69424 54,578 45292 67,379 |
1,155 2,534 — — —-
55,733 71,958 54,578 451292 67379
—_— 1,664 5!,_780 1,728 —

_— —_ T4 310 (386)
— - 229 913 672
- — - 9358 6,758
5,_373 21845 6,775 10,097 5,802
— —- - — 605

- — _ - (1,116)

_— - —_— H467) (4387)
14,473 o — - —
3,963 —_ 5,560 — e
= — _ — {9.455)
— —_ {566) (46) 41
(6,338) - — — —
73204 S 76467 8 70070 § 67,185 65,913
113§ 46§ 1.18 S 0.97 145
0.00 0.00 —_ -— =
1.13 1.46 1.18 0.97 1.45
0.03 .05 - -
1.16 1.51 1.18 097 145
— 0.04 0.06 0.04 —_—

— = 0.01 0.01 {0.01}
-_ = 0.02 0.02
- —- = 0.20 a.14
0.11 0.06 0.15 0.21 0.12
e — —_ == 0.01

e —_ — {0.02)

= - — (0.01) (0.09)
0.30 - _ — -—
0.08 —_— 0.12 —_ —

-— — — ((r.20)
— ] {0.013 - —
(0.13) - — —
1552 S 161 § IS TS 144 § 1.42

17



Teble of Coptents

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT"S DISCUSSTON AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Results of Operations
General

The general nature of our business is a motorsports themed amusement enterprise, fumishing amusement to the public in the form of motorsports themed
entertainment. We derive revenues primarily from (i) admissions to motorspons events and motorsports themed amusement activities held at our facilitics,
(i} revenuce generated in conjunction with or as a result of motorsports events and motorspors themed amusement activities conducted at our facilities, and
(1ii) catering, cancession and merchandising services during or as & result of these events and amusement activities,

*Admissions, net” revenue includes ticket sales for all of our meing events and other motorsports activities and amusements, net of any applicable taxes.

“Motorsports related” revenue primarily includes television and ancillary media rights fees, promotion and sponsorship fees, hospitality rentals (including

luxury suites, chalets and the hospitality portion ol ctub seating}, advertising revenues, royalties from licenses of aur trademarks, parking and camping
revenues, and track rental fees.

“Food, beverage and merchandise” revenue includes revenues from concession stands, direct sales of souvenirs, hospitality catering, programs and other
merchandise and fees paid by third party vendors for the right to occupy space to sell souvenirs and concessions at our motorsports entertainment facilities.

Direct expenses include (i) prize and point fund monies and NASCAR sanction fees, {ii) motorsports related expenses, which include labor, advertising, costs
of competition paid to sanctioning bodies other than NASCAR and other expenses associated with the promotion of all of our motorsports events and
activities, and (iii) food, beverage and merchandise expenses, consisting primanly of 1abor and costs of goods sold.

Critdeal Accounting Palicies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Siates requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repored amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and lizbilities at the date of the financia)
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. While our estimates and assumptions are based an conditions
existing at and trends leading up to the time the estimates and assumptions are made, actual results could differ materizlly from those estimates and
assumptions. We continually review our accounting policies, how they arc applied and how they are reported and disclosed in the financial statements.

The fallowing is a summary of our critical accounting policies and estimates and how they are applied in the preparation of the financial statements,

Basis af Presentation and Consolidation. We consolidate all entities we cantrol by ownership of a majority voting interest and variable interest entities for
which we have the power to direct activities and the obligation to absorb losses. Our judgment in determining if we consolidate a variable interest entity
includes assessing which pany, if any, has the power and benefits. Therefore, we evaluate which activities most significantly affect the variable interest
entities economic performance and determine whether we, or another party, have the power to direct these activities.

We apply the equity method of accounting for our investments in joint veniures and other investees whenever we can exen significant influence on the
investee but do not have effective control over the investee. Our consolidated net income includes our share af the net camings or losses from these investees,
Our judgment regarding the fevel of influence aver cach equity method investee includes considering factors such as our ownetship interest, board
representation and policy making decisions, We periodically cvaluate these equity investments for potential impainnent where a decline in value is
determined to be other than temporary. We climinate all significant intercompany transactions from financial results.

Revenue Recognition. Advance ticket sales and event-related revenues for future events are defemed until camed, which is generally ence the events are
conducted. The recognition of event-related expenses is matched with the recognition of event-related revenues,

NASCAR contracts directly with certain network providers for television rights to the entire NASCAR Sprint Cup, Xfinity and Camping World Truck series
schedules. Event prometers share in the television rights fees in accardance with the provision of the sanction agreement for each NASCAR Sprint Cup,
Xfinity and Camping World Truck series event. Under the terms of this amangement, NASCAR retains 10.0 percent of the gross broadcast rights fees allocated

to each NASCAR Sprint Cup, Xfinity and Camping World Truck series event as a component of its sanction fzes. The promoter recards 90,0 percent of the
gross
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broadcast rights fees as revenue and then records 25.0 percent of the gross broadcast rights fees as pan of its awards to the competitors. Ultimately, the
promoter retains 65,0 percent of the net cash proceeds from the gross broadcast rights fees allocated (o the event.

Our revenues from marketing partnerships are paid in accordance with negotiated contracts, with the identitics of partners and the terms of sponsorship
changing from time to time. Some of our marketing pantnership agreements are for multiple facilities and/or events and include muliiple specified elements,
such as tickets, hospitality chalets, suites, display space and signage for each included event. The allocation of such marketing patnership revenues between

the multiple clements, cvents and facilitics is based on relative selling price. The sponsorship revenue allocated 10 an event is recognized when the event is
canducted.

Revenues and related costs from the sale of merchandise to retail customers, intemet sales and direct sales to dealers are recognized at the time of sale.

Business Combinations. All business combinations are accounted for under the acquisition method. Whether net assets or cormnmon stock is acquired, fair
values are determined and assigned to the purchased assets and assumed liabilities of the acquired entity. The excess of the cost of the acquisition over fair
value of the net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. Business combinations involving existing motorsports entertainment facilities commonly resultin a
significant portion of the purchase price being allocated to the fair value of the contract-based intangible asset associated with long-term relationships
manifest in the sanction agreements with sanctioning bodies, such as NASCAR and IMSA serics. The continuity of sanction agreements with these bodies has
historically enabled the facility operator to host motorspoas events year afier year. While individual sanction agreements may be of tenms as short as one
year, a significant portion of the purchase price in excess of the fair value of acquired tangible asscts is commonly paid to acquire anticipated future cash
flows from events promoted pursuant to these agreements which are expected to continue for the foreseeable future and therefore, in accordance with ASC
805-50, “Business Combinations,” are recorded as indefinite-lived intangible assets recognized apart from goodwill.

Capitalization and Depreciation Policies, Property and equipment are stated at cost. Maintenance and repairs that neither materially add to the value of the
property norappreciably prolong its life are charged to expense as incurred. Depreciation and amartization for financial statement purposes are provided on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. When we construct assets, we capilalize costs of the project, including, but not limited to,

certain pre-acquisition costs, penmitting costs, fees paid to architects and contractors, cenain costs of our design and construction subsidiary, property taxes
and interest.

We must make estimates and assumptions when accounting for capital expenditures. Whether an expenditure is considered an operating expense or a capital
asset is a matter ofjudgment, When constructing or purchasing assets, we must determine whether existing assets 2re being replaced or otherwise impaired,
which also is a matter of judgment. Our depreciation expense for financial statement purposes is highly dependent on the assumptions we make about our
assets’ estimated uscful lives. We determine the estimated useful lives based upon our experience with similar assets, industry, legal and regulatory factors,
and our expectations of the usage of the asset. Whenever events or circumstances occur which change the estimated useful 1ife of an asset, we account for the
change prospectively.

Interest costs associated with major development and construction projects are capitalized as part of the cost of the project. Intersst is typicaliy capitatized on
amounts expended using the weighted-average cost of our outstanding borrowings, since we typically do not borrow funds directly related to a development
or construction project. We capitalize interest on a praject when development or construction activities begin, and cease when such activities are
substantially complete or are suspended for more than a brief period.

Impairments / Losses on Retirements of Long-Lived Assets, Goodwill and Other Itungible Assers. Our consolidated balance sheels include significant
amounts of long-lived assets, goodwill and other intangible assets, which could be subject 10 impairments / losses on retirements. During the Gscal years
ended November 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014 we recorded before-tax charges as losses on retirements of long-lived assets primarily antributable to costs to
remove certain other long-lived assets located at our motorsports facilities totaling approximately $11.1 million, $16.6 million and $10.1 miltion,
respectively.

As of November 30, 2014, goodwill and other intangible assets and property and equipment account for approximately $1.7 billion, or 80.8 percent of our
total assets. We account for our goodwill and other intangible assets in accordance with ASC 350 and for our leng-lived assets in accordance with ASC 360,

We follow applicable authoritative guidance on accounting for goodwill and other intangible asscts which specifics, among other things, non-amortization
of goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and requires testing for possible impairment, either upan the occumence of an impaiment
indicator or at least annually. We complele our annual testing in our fiscal fourth quarter, based on assumptions regarding our future business outloak and
expected future discounted cash flows attributable to such assets {using the fair value assessment provision of applicable authotitative guidance), supported
by quoted market prices or compamble transactions where available or applicable.
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While we continue to review and analyze many factors that can impact our business prospects in the future (as further described in “Risk Factors™), our
analysis is subjective and is based on conditions existing at, and trends leading up to, the time the estimates and assumptions are made, Different canditions

or assumpltions, or changes in cash flows or profitability, if significant, could have a material adverse effect on the outcome of the impairment evaluation and
our future condition or results of operations.

[n connection with our fiscal 2014 assessment of goodwill and intangible assets for possible impaimment we used the methodology described above. We
believe our methods used to determing fair valuc and evaluate possible impairment were appropiate, relevant, and represent methods eustomarnily available
and used for such purposes. Our latest annual assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014 indicated there had been
no impairment and the fair value substantially exceeded the camying value for the respective reporting units.

[n addition, our growth strategy includes investing in certain joint venture apportunities. In these equity investments we exert significant influence on the
investee but do not have effective control over the investee, which adds an additional element of risk that could ham our operating results or financial
condition. The camying value of our equity investment was $122.6 million at November 30,2014,

Income Tuxes. The tax law requires that centain items be included in our tax retum at different times than when these items arc reflected in our consolidated
financial statements. Some of these difTerences are permanent, such as expenses not deductible on our tax retum. However, some differences reverse over time,
such as depreciation expense, and these temporary differences create deferred tax assets and liabilities. Our estimates of deferred income taxes and the
significant items giving rise to deferred tax asscts and liabilities reflect our assessment of actual fiture taxes to be paid on items reflected in our finaneial
statements, giving consideration 10 both timing and probability of rcalization. Actual income taxes could vary significantly from these estimates due to
future changes in income tax law or changes or adjustments resulting from final review of our tax retums by taxing authorities, which could alse adversely
impact our cash Bow.

In the ordinary course of business, there are many transactions and calculations where the ultimate tax outcome is uncenain. Accruals for uncenain tax
positions are provided for in 2ccordance with the requirements of ASC 740, “Income Taxes.” Under this guidance, we may recognize the tax benefit from an
uncertain tax position enly ifit is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the
technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such a position should be measured based on the largest benefit
that has a greater than 50.0 percent likelihood ofbeing realized upon the ultimate settlement, This interpretation also provides guidance on de-recognition of
income tax assets and Habilities, classification of current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities, accounting for interest and penalties associated with
lax positions, and income tax disclosures, Judgment is required in assessing the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in our financial
statements or tax returns, Although we believe the estimates are reasonable, no assurance can be given that the final outcome of these matters will not be
different than what is reflected in the historical income tax provisions and accruals. Such dilferences could have a material impact on the income tax
provision and operating results in the period in which such determination is made.

Comtingent Liabilities. Our determination of the treatment of contingent liabilities in the financial statements is based on our view af the expected outcome
of the applicable contingency. In the ordinary course of business, we consult with legal counsel on matters related to litigation and other expers both within
and outside our Company. We accrue a liability if the likelihood of an adverse outcome is probable and the amount of loss is reasonably estimable. We
disclose the matter but do not accrue a liability if the likelihood of an adverse outcome is reasonably possible and an estimate of loss is not determinable.
Legal and other costs incurred in conjunction with |oss contingencies are expensed as incurred,

Equity and Other [nvestments
Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway

Kansas Entertainment, 2 50/50 joimt venture of Penn, a subsidiary of Penn National Gaming, Inc. and Kansas Speedway Development Corporation (*“KSDC™),
a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of 1SC, operates the Hollywood-themed casino and branded destination entertainment facility, overlooking tum two at
Kansas Speedway. Pean is the managing member of Kansas Entertainment and is responsible for the operations of the casino.

We have accounted for Kansas Ententainment as an equity investment in our financial statements as of November 30, 2014, Stant up and related costs through
opening were expensed through cquity in net loss from cquity investments. Our 50.0 percent portion of Kansas Entertainment’s net income was
approximately $2.8 million, $9.4 million and $8.9 million for fiscal years 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively, and is included in equity in net income from
equity investrments in our consolidated statements of operations. Included in our fiscal 2013 income from equity investment amount is approximately

$1.1 million related to a one-time property tax refund.
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Per the Developmeni Agreement with the Unified Government of Wyandotte County 'Kansas City, Kansas (“Unified Govemnment™), the casino is subject to a
1.0 percent of gross gaming revenue penalty if it had not commenced construction on an adjacent hotel by the second anniversaty of its opening, which was
February 2014. In June 2014, the Unified Govemment approved an extension of the construction commencement date to give the Unified Govemment time
to complete a feasibility analysis for a new convention center that could be integrated with the hotel. Recently, the Unified Govemment decided not to
procecd with the integmied development, leaving Kansas Ententainment 100 days after the Unified Government’s notification of its decision. Consequently,
Kansas Entertainment has until April 10, 20135, subject to any additional time taking into acceunt that groundbreaking cannot realistically accur during
winter conditions, to commence construction prior 1o the enforcement of the aforementioned penalty.

The final decision to move forward with the proposed hotel will be market-based and subject to approval by Kansas Entertainment’s board. Should Kansas
Entertainment ultimately not build the hotel it will be subject 1o the penalty from the second anniversary of its opening forward, Accordingly, beginning
February 2014, Kansas Ententainment began reconding expense equal to 1.0 percent of gross gaming revenue since it did not proceed with construction of a

hotel by the ariginal deadline. Included in our income from equity investment amounts for fiscal 2014 is approximately $0.6 million expense related to this
penaliy.

Distributions from Kansas Entertatnment, for the year ended November 30, 2014, totaling $22.0 million, consist of $10.1 million received as a distribution
from its profits included in net cash provided by operating activitics on our statement of cash flows; the remaining $11.9 million received was recognized as
o return of capital from investing activities on our statement of cash flows. Subsequent to November 30, 2014, we received an additional $5.5 million
distribution from Kansas Entertainment. We reccived total distributions of approximately $21.5 million in fiscal 2013.

Motorspons Authentics

Prior to January 31, 2014, the Company was a panner with SMIin a 50/50 joint venture, SMISC, LLC, which, through its wholly owned subsidiary
Motorsports Authentics, LLC conducts busincss under the name MA. MA designs, promotes, markets and distributes matorsponts licensed merchandise, On
January 31, 2014, SMI abandoned its interest and rights in SMISC, LLC, cansequently bringing the Company's ownership to 100.0 percent. MA's aperations
are included in the Company's consolidated operations subsequent 10 the date of SMI's abandonment. Prior to January 31, 2014, MA was accounted for as an
equity investment in the Company’s financial statements.

As a result of SM1's abandonment of their interest in SMISC, LLC, we recorded other income of approximately 55.4 million, representing the fair value of
MA, over the carrying value, as of January 31, 2014, In addition, we recognized tax benefits of approximately $4.0 million, representing the tax benefit
associated with various opemting loss camyforwards of MA that are expected to be realized in its consolidated tax filings in the future and certain other tax
filing positions of SMISC, LLC. MA's operating income contribution, subsequemt to consalidation, was iminalerial.

Priar to the SM! abandonment of SMISC, LLC, we did not mecognize any equity income in prior periods, as MA operated at breakeven (see Merchandise
Operations in Future Trends [n Operating Results of MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ).

Staten Island Property

On August 5,201 3, we announced that we sold our 676 acre parcel of property located in Staten Island, New Yaork, to Staten Island Marine Development,
LLC ("Marine Development™. Marine Development purchased 100 percent of the outstanding equity membership interests of 380 Development LLC (“380
Development™), a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of 1SC and owner ofthe Staten Island property, for a total sales price of $80.0 million. [n addition, we

previously received approximately §4.2 million for an option provided to the purchaser that is nonrefundable and does not apply to the $80.0 million sales
price.

We rcceived $7.5 million, less closing and other administrative costs, of the sales price at closing. The remaining sales price was financed with us holding a
secured mortgage interest in 380 Development as well as the underlying property. The mortgage balance bears interest at an annual rate of 7.0 percent. In
accordance with the terms of the agreement, we have received a principal payment of approximately $6.1 million plus interest on the mongage balance
through November 30, 2014, and we will receive the emaining purchase price of $66.4 million, due March 5, 2016. Interest on the remaining mongage
balance is due quarterly, in arrears, and Marine Development is current with all payments through Yanuary 2015, Based on the level of Marine Development's
initial investment at closing and continuing investment, we have accounted for the transaction using the cost recovery method and have defered the
recognition of profit ofapproximately $1.9 million, and interest totaling approximately $5.6 million at November 30, 2014, until the carrying amount of the
property is recovered, which will not be until the final payment is made.

The net proceeds from the sale, combined with the mongage interest and related total cash tax benefit, will provide us with approximately $118.0 million 1n
incremental cash fiow through the term of the mongage.
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Income Tuxes

The reduction in the valuation allowance associated with the wind-up of certain Canadian business operations is the principal cause of the decreased
cffective income tax rte as compared to the statutory income tax rate, for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2012. Centain state settlements are the principal
cause of the decreased effective income tax rate as compared to the statutory income tax rate, for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2013, The principal
causes of the decreased income lax rate for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2014 are the tax wreatment related to the other income recognized as a result of
SMI's abandonment of their interest in SMISC, LLC on January 31, 2014, including the related tax benefits associated with various operating loss and other
carry forwards of MA and certain tax filing positions of SMISC, LLC totaling approximately S4.0 million, along with certain stale income tax adjusiments.

As a result of the above items, our effective income tax rate decreased from the statutory income rate to approximately 36.7 percent, 38.0 percent and 33.0
percent for the fiscal years ended November 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

Also of note, while not impacting the combined current and deferred income tax expense and related income 1ax rate during the fiscal year ended
November 30, 2014, as compared to the prior fiscat year, the tax benefit realized in fiscal 2013 attributable to the aforementioned sale of our Staten Island
property, as well as the effect of the December 2013 expiration of certain tax fegislation impacting depreciation deductions contributed substantially to
increased current income taxes paid during the fiscal year ended November 30, 2014 1otaling approximately $51.3 million as compared io approximately
$18.4 million during fiscal 2013, In addition this overall impact 1o the current fiscat year lax depreciation deduction substantially contributed Lo the overall
reduction of approximately $12.3 million in our long-term deferred income tax liabilities at November 30, 2014 as compared to November 30, 2013.

In December 2014, Congress passed the Tax Increase Prevention Act which included a retroactive renewal back to January 1, 2014, of the previously expired
tax legislation. The impact of this retroactive tax legislation will not affect our fiscal 2015 efiective tax rte, but will reduce related income 1ax payments.

Future Trends in Operating Results

Intemational Specdway Cormoration is the leading owner of major motorsperts entenainment facilitics and promoter of motorsponts-themed entertainment
activities in the United States, We compete for discretionary spending and leisure time with many other entertainment altematives and are subject to factors
that generally affect the recreation, leisure and sports industry, including general cconomic conditions. Our operations are also sensitive to factors that affect
comorate budgets. Such factors include, but are not limited to, gencral cconomic conditions, employment levels, business conditions, interest and taxation
rates, relative commodity prices, and changes in consumer tastes and spending habits.

The unprecedented adverse economic conditions that began in 2008, which significantly impacted consumer confidence and disproportionately affected
different demogeaphics of our target customers, continuc to infiuence the frequency with which guests attend our major motorspons entertainment events.
Recurring global and regional uncertainty, lack of a broad based middle class cconomic recovery, and/or further weakening in the domestic economy may
continue to adversely impact attendance levels, guest spending levels, and our ability 10 secure corporate marketing partnerships in the future. Reductions in
any of these categories can directly and negatively affect revenues and profitability. Beginning in 2009 we mitigated the decline of certain revenue
categories with sustainable cost containment initiatives. Beginning in 2012, we re-instituted regular merit pay increases to more normalized levels. Centain
nan-controllable costs, such as NASCAR sanction fees, have increased this yearand we may continue to experience incremental increases. While we are
sustaining the significant cost reductions previously implemented, we do not expect further significant cost reductions.

Looking ahcad, we expect to benefit from the continuing slow but uneven, recovery in the overall U.S. economy, which we anticipate will improve
attendance-related and corporate partnership revenues. Our industry will further benefit from NASCAR securing its broadeast rights through the 2024 season
with the largest broadcast rights deal in the sport’s 66-year history. Consistent with major sports properties throughout the warld, broadeast rights represent
our cotnpany's largest revenue segment. Expanding and extending this contracted revenue will provide us unparalleled long-tenn cash flow visibility. We

also believe the stiategic initiatives we and the motorsponts industry have undentaken to grow the sport will continue to strengthen the long-term health of
our Campany.

The industry and its stakelolders have demonstrated their commitiment to growing the sport by aligning with and executing upon growth initiatives
supporting NASCAR's [ndustry Action Plan ("[AP™). The LAP's objective is to build upon NASCAR's appeal by enhancing the connection with existing fans,
as well as atracting and engaging new Gen Y, youth and multicultural consumers in motorsports. Additional areas of focus within the IAP include building
greater product relevance, cultivating driver star power, growing social media activities and enhancing the event experience. In recent years NASCAR has
introduced several successfil on-track innovatiens such as the Gen 6 Car design, new qualifying formats and enhancements to the Chase for the
Championship that are direct results of 1AP tnitiatives.




Tublc of Coptents

In January 2014 NASCAR. announced a new championship format that puts greater emphasis on winning races all season long, expands the current Chase for
the NASCAR Spnnt Cup field to 16 drivers, and implements a new round-by-round advancement format that ultimately rewards a battle-tested, worthy
champion. The format makes every race matter even more, diminishes points acing, puls a premium on winning races and concludes with a best-of-the-best,
firststo-the-finish linc showdown race — all of which is exactly what fans want. The new Chase structure is expected to drive NASCAR Sprint Cup competition
to a whole new level with a thrilling, casy to understand format. The completion of the 2014 NASCAR season at Homestead-Miami Speedway saw very
encouraging results for both at-track consumer and cormporate interest, as well as improving year-over-year digital and media (Lelevision viewership, on-
lincisocial-media) consumption for the 2014 Chase cvents.

We support NASCAR's 1A on 2 number of fronts, As referenced above, we are committed to improving our major motorsports facilities to create stronger fan
engagement. [n particular and one of the most important projects in our history is the redevelopment of the frontstretch of Daylona, the Company's 55-year-
otd flagship motorsports facility, to enhance the event experience for our fans, marketing pantners, broadecasters and the motorsports industry (See
"DAYTONA Rising: Reimagining an American lcon®). We are confident that elevating the experience at the most important matorsports facility in North
Amenca will grow the Daytona 500 brand, our 12 other major motorsports facilities' brands and NASCAR’s brand. Ultimately this stmtegic project will
positively influence attendance trends, corporate involvement in the spor, and the long-term strength of future broadcast media rights revenues.

Admissions

Achieving event sellouts and ereating excess demand are crucial to the optimal performance of our major motorsports facilitics that host NASCAR Sprint Cup
Serics events. An important component of our operating strategy has been our long-standing practice of focusing on supply and demand when evaluating
ticket pricing and adjusting capacity at our facilities. By effectively managing both ticket prices and seating capacity, we have historicaily shown the ability
to stimulate ticket renewals and advance ticket sales.

Advance ticket sales result in earlier cash flow and reduce the potential negative impact ofactual, as well as forecasted, inclement weather. With any
ticketing initiative, we first examine our ticket pricing structure for each segmented area within our major motorsports cntertainment facilities to ensure prices
are on target with market demand, When determined necessary, we adjust ticket pricing. We belicve our ticket pricing is consistent with current demand,
providing attractive price paints for all income levels,

It is important that we maintain the integrity of our ticket pricing model by ensuring our customers who purchase tickets during the renewal period get
preferential pricing. We do not adjust pricing downward inside of the sales cycle 10 avoid rewarding last-minute ticket buyers by discouating tickets. Further,
we closely monitor and manage the availability of promotional tickets. Encouraging late eycle buying and offering excess promotional tickets could have a
detnimental effect an our ticket pricing model and long-term value of cur business, We believe it is more imporntant to encourage advance tickel sales and
maintain price integrity to achieve long-term growth rather than to capture short-term incremental revenue al the expense of our customers wha purchased
tickets during the renewal period. We continue to explore and implement innovative ticket pricing strategies whereby prices increase over time as well as
price increases week of/day ofraces to caplure incremental revenues.

Adjusting seating capacity is another consumer-focused strategy to promote seflouts, ¢create excess demand and in tum increase capacity utilization at our
major motorsports facilities. Over the past few years, we have reduced capacity at our major motorspons facilities. A significant portion of the capacity
reduction was a result of our goal to provide improved fan amenities such as wider scating, create social zones with greater fan interaction/engagement for our
gucsts, and remove sections that do not provide adequate sight lines. Based on our experience and the continual evolution of modem spons facilities, ticket
demand relies strongly en creating a more personal experience for the fans. Enhancing the live event experience 1o compete with the at-home television
experience is a critical strategy for our future growth. Other benedits from capacity management include improved pricing power for our cvenls, increasing
tickets sold in the renewal cycle; increasing customer retention; driving greater attendance to our lead-in eveats, such as NASCAR's Xfinity and Camping
World Truck series events; driving stronger interest from corporate sponsors; and creating a more visually compeliing event for the television audience.

Other key strategic focus areas to build fan engagement include providing enhanced at-track audio and visual experiences, additional concession and
merchandise points-of-sale, more social zones and greater wireless connectivity. We continue to monitor market demand and explore next generation live-
sports entertainment fan amenities, all of which could further impact how we manage capacity and spend capital at our major motorsports facilities,

Corporate Partnerships

NASCAR is a powerful brand with a loyal fan base that is aware of, appreciztes and supparts corporate participation to a greater extent than fans of any other
sports property. The combination of brand power and fan loyalty provides an attractive platform for robust corporate parinerships. The number of Fortune 300
companics invested in NASCAR remains higherthan
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any other sport. Approximately one-in-four Fortune 500 companies use NASCAR as part of their marketing strmtegy and the trend is increasing. The number
of Fortune 500 companies investing in NASCAR increased three percent in 2014 versus prior year; and is an eleven percent improvement versus 2008.

We belicve that our presence in key metropolitan statistical arcas, ycar-round event schedule, impressive portfolie of major metorsports events and atirctive
fan demographics are beneficial as we continue to pursue renewal and expansion of existing camporate marketing partnerships and establish new corporale
relationships. Companies are demanding more quantifiable retum on investment from their sperts marketing strategies and our company is focused on
deliveting enhanced value through our strategic initiatives. This includes enhanced facilities, more frequent and diverse content at our facilitics, and deeper
understanding of and integration with our customers' business, among other things.

From an entitlement perspective, we secured all NASCAR Sprint Cup and Xfinity and Camping World Truck series event entitlements for the 2014 fiscal
year, which allowed the sales team te focus more resources on media advertising, prospecting and growing official status categories. As a result, for our 2014
fiscal year, our corporate sales were within one percentage point of our 2014 target. Excluding sofl media sales, the company grew gross comorate partnership
revenue (versus prior year) for the first time since the beginning of the recession.

Looking forward te 2015, we continue to be encouraged by corporate sales trends that have us better positioned than at the same time in recent prior years. As
of late December 2015, we have sold all but one NASCAR Sprint Cup race entitlement, three Xfinity Series entitlements, and twa Camping World Truck
Series entitlements and have secured 74.0 percent of our total 2015 corporate sales target compared to 72.0 percent at this point for 2014. In addition, we
have secured two long-temm founding pannerships for DAYTONA Rising in Toyota and Florida Hospital, both in cxcess of ten year partnerships.

Television Broadcast and Ancitlary Media Rights

Domestic broadcast and ancillary media rights fees revenues are 1SC's largest revenue segment, accounting for approximately 46.5 percent of 2014 total
revenues. Starting in 2007, NASCAR cntered into combined cight-year agreements with Fox Sponts Group (“FOX"), ABC/ESPN, TNT and SPEED for the
domestic broadcast and related rights for its three national touring series - Sprint Cup, Xfinity and Camping World Truck.

For the first 26 regular season events in fiscal 2014 (i.e. through Richmond fall race), NASCAR Sprint Cup events were the number one or twa sporting event
on television for 21 of the 26 weekends (i.e. Texas Sprint Cup event aired on Monday due to rmin). Through 36 broadcast events culminating in the season
finale at Hamestead-Miami Speedway, the NASCAR Sprint Cup Series averaged 5.3 million viewers per event with approximately 62 million total unique
viewers. As the Chase for the Championship progressed under the new format, viewership ramped up. The final two events ofthe 2014 NASCAR Sprint Cup
season saw an approximately ten percent television viewesship increase over the same events in 2013, NASCAR has solidified its place among top major
televised sports, placing only second to the NFL for average viewership per event.Also, the NASCAR Xfinity Series and NASCAR Camping World Truck
Series rank as the second and third highest rated motorspotts series (respectively) on television after the NASCAR Sprint Cup Series.

As part of the 1AP, NASCAR and FOX Deportes, the number one U.S. Latino Sporis network, joined together to provide the sport’s most expansive Spanish-
language broadcast offering with coverage of 15 Sprint Cup Series races, including for the first time, a Spanish-language broadcast of the 2013 Daytona 500.
For the 2014 season, Hispanic viewership for the NASCAR Sprint Cup Series continued the double digit growth-trend, building on growth from the 2013
season that saw a 40.0 percent increase in that important demographic.

I August 2013, NASCAR finalized multi-platform broadcast rights agreements with NBCUniversal (*NBC™) and FOX for 10 years, beginning in 2015
through the 2024 season, for the broadcast and related rights for NASCAR's three national touring series. Financial terms were not disclosed but leading
industry sources value the combined agreements at approximately $8.2 billion over the 10 years, The agreements include Spanish-language rights and TV
Everywhere rights', which will allow NASCAR content to stream over the broadeasters-afliliated websaites,

FOX has exclusive rights lo the first 16 NASCAR Sprint Cup Series point races beginning each year with the prestigious Daytona 500. Tn addition, FOX
retains the rights to the NASCAR Sprint All-Star Race. The Sprint Unlimited, Budweiser Duel, 14 NASCAR Xfinity Series events and the entire NASCAR
Camping World Truck Serics. NBC has cxclusive rights to the final 20 NASCAR Sprint Cup Scrics points races, final 19 NASCAR Xfinity Serics events,
select NASCAR Regional & Touring Series events and other live content beginning in 2013, In total, NASCAR will have the same number of Sprint Cup
races on network tetevision, 16; 9 on FOX and 7 on NBC; as it does in the 2007 to 2014 ielevision package,

NASCAR's solid mtings as well as other factors such as the strong demand for live broadcasting and the proliferation of digital video recorders (“DVR™),
tablets, and on-demand content were significant factors for NASCAR signing the largest broadeast rights deal in the sport's 66-year history.
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In August 2013, FOX debuted its 24-hour Fox Sports | network to compete with ESPN. Fox Sports | is available in approximately 90 million TV households.
In addition to NASCAR (beginning in 2015), Fox Spons 1 has new or renewed deals for Major League Bascball, college football and basketball, Ultimate
Fighting Championship, Major Leaguc Soccer ("MLS"), United States Golf Association, as well as other sports. Fox Sparts 1 represents the latest in the long
migration of marquee sports from broadcast TV to cable/satellite, who generally can support a higher investment due to subscriber fees that are not available
to traditional networks. In eary 2014, the network performed exceptionally well broadcasting NASCAR events leading up to the DAYTONA 500, The
pantncrship continues in 2015 with Fox Sports § broadcasting 7 live NASCAR Sprint Cup events and 11 NASCAR Xfinity cvents.

NBC Sports Network is in more than 79 million homes, and in addition to NASCAR (beginning in 2015) serves sports fans by airing coverage of the Olympic
Games and Trials as well as the National Hockey League ("NHL"), MLS, IndyCar Series, Tour de France, major college football and basketball, and horse
racing surrounding the Triple Crown, among other cvents.

Domestic broadcast media rights fees provide significant cash flaw visibility to us, race teams and NASCAR over the contract term. Television broadcast and
ancillary rights fees received from NASCAR for the NASCAR Sprint Cup, Xfinity and Camping World Truck series events conducted at our facilities under
these agreements, and recorded as pan of motorsports related revenue, were approximately $281.2 million, $292.5 million and $302.9 mitlion for fiscal 2012,
2013 and 2014, respectively. Operating income generated by these media rights were approximately $204.4 million, $213.0 million and $220.1 million for
fiscal 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

Looking forward, television broadcast revenues under the new broadcast rights agreements beginning in 2015 will increase by 3.8 percent over 2014; and our
broadcast rights revenues under the new contracts are expected to increase between 3 percent and 5 percent annually over the 10-year contract tenn for an
average of 3.9 percent. Locking in our largest revenue source provides the company with a number of significant benefits. This includes greater cash flow
visibility and growth providing a solid base 10 continuc smanly reinvesting in our facilitics, We are also confident that working with best-in-class media
partners will take NASCAR to the next level, uitimately growing consumer and corporate participation.

As media rights revenues fluctuate so do the variable costs tied to the percentage of broadeast rights fees required to be paid to competitors as part of
NASCAR. Sprint Cup, Xfinity and Camping World Truck series sanction agrecments. NASCAR prize and point fund monies, as well as sanction fees
(“NASCAR dircet expenses™), are outlined in the sanction agreement for each event and are negotiated in advance ofan event. As previously discussed,
included in these NASCAR direct expenses are amounls equal to 25.0 percent of the gross domestic television broadcast rights fees allocated to our NASCAR
Sprint Cup, Xfinity and Camping Worid Truck series events, as pant of prize and point fund money (See “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates -
Revenue Recognition™), These annually negotiated contractual amounts paid 1o NASCAR contnbuice to the support and growth of the sport of NASCAR
stock car racing through payments to the teams and sanction fees paid to NASCAR. As such, we do not expect these costs to materially decrease in the future
a5 a percentage of admissions and motorsports related income.

A mpidly-growing element of our media platform is an expanded focus and investment in the digital media environment, This includes mobile applications
and social media engagement. A Novernber 2014 siudy of broad based digital media consumption habits found that amount of time spent on mobile devices
has increased twenty percent since 2010, digital video viewing timic has doubled since 2012, and 52 percent of on-line retail traffic now originates from
mobile devices. Trditional consumption channels like television and radio still make up a majority of the average time spent per adult day, but on-line
consumption whether using a desktop or mabile device now equals almost 25 percent of average daily time consuming audio and video content, skewing
higher for younger demographics.

Responding to shifts in the way sports fans consume content, in 2013 and 2014 NASCAR made enhancements to NASCAR.com and NASCAR Mabile Apps
that have strengthened the Industry's digital presence. In addition, NASCAR also created the Fan and Media Engagement Center to better understand digital
conversations and optimize engagement with the social community. In only the second full year of managing its digital rights in-house, NASCAR
experienced significant growth, exceeding one billion aggregate page views across NASCAR.com, NASCAR mobile web and the NASCAR Mobile app in
2014. The billion page view milestone marks a 45 percent year-over-year increase in engagement on the platform, sccording to data from Adobe Omniwire
SiteCatalyst, In the 2014 NASCAR season, NASCAR.cem averaged [ .4 million unique visitors on NASCAR Sprint Cup race days; and the NASCAR Mobile
applications were downloaded 4.5 million times. We expect these channels will continue to grow and the industry is well positioned to engage and monetize
these digital channels as our fans (miroring society-at-large) consume more content via this way.

Sanctioning Bodies

Qur success has been, and is expected to remain, dependent on maintaining good working relationships with the organizations that sanction events at our
facilities, panicularly with NASCAR, whose sanctioned events at our whotly owned facilities accounted forapproximately 863 percent of our revenues in
fiscal 2014. NASCAR continues to entertain and discuss proposals
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from track operators regarding potential realignment of their portfolio of NASCAR Sprint Cup Serics dates to more geographically diverse and potentially
more desirable markets where there may be greater demand, resulting in an epportunity for increased revenues to the track operators. We believe that
realignments have provided, and will continue to provide, incremental net positive revenue and eamings as well as fusther enhance the sport's exposure in
highly desirable markets, which we believe benefits the sport's fans, teams, sponsors and television broadcast panners as wetl as promoters,

Merchandise Operations

In 2015, NASCAR and NASCAR Team Properties announced a 10-year agreement with Fanatics to operate NASCAR's entire at-track merchandise business
and deliver fans an enhanced, experiential at-track shopping environment. As part of the agreement, Fanatics will be the exclusive retailer of NASCAR and
driver merchandise at trackside for all 38 NASCAR Sprint Cup Series events. In addition, Fanatics alse has contracted with ISC for 10 year exclusive retail
merchandise rights for its track trademarks and certain other intellectual propenty at ali ISC tracks. The new trackside retail model operted by Fanatics will
evolve from using solely hauiers for each specific team or driverto displaying all merchandise in a climate-controlted superstore retail envitonment
supported by, in instances, smaller satellite retail tlouch points around the track. The new model will provide a more personat and convenient shopping
experience for mee fans, We believe this improved trackside merchandise model, combined with an upgraded online and mobile experience, will better
pasition [5C and the industry to maximize merchandise sales while delivering top quality experience to our fans, Consequently, ISC's wholly aowned
subsidianies, Americrown and MA, will no longer provide at track merchandise to fans at motorsports events and therefore will no longer recognize related
revenues. Instead, the Company will receive a percentage of sales from Fanatics, recorded as pan of Food, Beverage and Merchandise Revenue. For fiscal
20135, we are projecting a reduction in operating income of approximately $4.0 million to $5.0 million related to this new merchandise business model.
Contributing significantly 10 this reduction are one-time, non-recumming opemting expenses totaling $3.5 million to $4.5 million related to panial year
operations, for which there is no associated revenue, and restructuring costs to effectively transition merchandise operations.

Capital Improvements

Enhancing the live event experience for our guests is a critical strategy for our future growth. We compete for the consumers’ discretionary dollar with other
entertainment options such as concens and other major sporting events not just motorsports events. In addition, fans continue to demonstrate willingness to
pay for more unigue, inversive, and segmented experiences that cannot be duplicated at-home. Today's consumer wants improved traffic flow, comfartable
and wider seating, clean and available facilities, more points of sale, enhanced audio and visual engagement, social zones and greater connectivity.
Providing thesc enhiancements ofien requires capital spending.

We remain confident that our focus on driving incremental eamings by improving the fan expenence will, in time, lead to increased ticket sales with beuter
pricing power, growth in sponsorship and hospitality sales, betier prospects for continued growth in broadcast media tights fees agreenents, and greater
potential to capture market share. As such, ISC's Board of Directors endorsed a capital allocation plan for fiscal 2013 through fiscal 2017 to not exceed
$600.0 million. The five-year capital expenditure plan encompasses capital expenditures for ISC's 13 major sports facilities, including DAYTONA Rising
(see "DAYTONA Rising: Reimagining an American lcon®), as well as any commitments Lo undertake ONE DAYTONA (see "ONE DAYTONA™). It is vital that
we continue to clevate our Daytona brand to ensure that it remains the pinnacle of motorsponts facilities, which will generate funther profitability and cash
flow to the Company. We also anticipate modest capital spending on other projects for maintenance, safety and regulatory requirements. We are confident

that by delivering memorable guest experiences, along with attractive pricing and fantastic racing, we will generate increased revenues as well as bottom-line
resulis,

While we focus on allocating our capital to generate retumns in excess of our cost of capital, certain of our capital improvement investments may not provide
immediate, dircctly traceable near term positive retums on invested capital but over the longer term will better enable us to effectively compete with other
entertainment venues for consumer and corporate spending.

Growth Strategies

Our growth strategies also include exploning ways to grow our businesses through acquisitions and extemal developments that offer attractive financial
retumns. This has been demonstrated through our joint venture to develop and operate a Hollywood-themed and branded entenainment destination facility
overlooking tum two of Kansas Speedway (see “Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway™).

The Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway provided positive cash flow to us and included positive equity income in our consolidated statcment of
operations for fiscal 2012, 2013 and 2014, We expect for our 2013 fiscal year that our shate of the cash flow from the casino's operations will be
approximately 520.0 million to §22.0 million dollars.

Also, we entered into 2 50750 joint venture with Atlanta-based Jacoby Development, Inc. to develop a mixed-use entertainment destination, named ONE
DAYTONA, located on 189 acres we own located directly across from our Daytona motorsports ententainment facility (see “Liquidity and Capital Resources -
ONE DAYTONA™).
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We retnain interested in pursuing further ancillary developments at certain of our other motorsponts facilitics which enhance our core business, are market-
driven, and provide a prudent retum on investment.

Current Operztions Comparison

The following table sets forth, for cach of the indicated periods, certain selecied statement of operations data as a percentage of total revenues:

For the Year Ended
2012 2013 2004
Revenues:
Adnissions, net 222% 212% 199 %
Motorsponts related 6R.} 69.5 66.5
Food, beverage and merchandise 7.5 12 1.2
Other 22 21 24
Total revenues 100.0 100.0 100.0
‘Expenses:
Direct;
Prize and point fund monies and NASCAR sanction fees 25.3 : 260 25.0
Motorspons related 20.5 0.6 19.7
Fuood, bevemge and merchandise ' 58 54 89
General and administrative 16.8 171 16.7
Depreciation and amortization 12.7 15.3 13.9
Losses on retirements of long-lived assets 1.8 2.7 1.5
"Fotal expenses 829 87.1 85.7
Operating income 17.1 12.9 14.3
Interest expense, net {212% {2.5) (L1}
Loss on early redemption of debt (1.5) —_ -
Other ; 02 - 0.8
Equity in net income from equity investments 05 1.5 1.4
Income before income taxes 14.1 119 154
Income taxes 52 4.5 3.0
Netincome 8.9 % 74% 103 %

Comparisen of Fiscal 2014 to Fiscal 2013
The comparison of fiscal 2014 to fiscal 2013 is impacted by the following factors:
» D racing events were held at Auto Club Speedway in fiscal 2014 that were not held in fiscal 2013;

»  The second annual Faster Horses music festival held during the third quarter of fiscal 2014 includes consolidation of concessions revenue and
expense as compared to similar services provided by a third panty for this event held the same perod in fiscal 2013;

+  OnJanuary 31,2014, SMIabandoned its interest and rights in MA, consequently bringing our ownership of MA 10 100.0 percent, MA's operations are
included in our consolidated operations subsequent to the date of SMI's abandonment. Priorto January 31, 2014, MA was accounted for as an equity
invesunent in our financial statements. As a result of SMI's abandonment of their interest in MA, we recorded other income of approximately $5 4
million representing the fair value of MA, over the camying value, as of January 31, 2014, In addition we recognized tax benefits selating to MA of
approximately $4.0 million for fiscal 2014 (see “Equity and Other Investments™ and “Income Taxes”), In addition, we recognized an impaimment ofa
Tong-lived intangible asset, related to MA, ofapproximately $0.6 million, or $0.01 perdiluted share. There was no comparable item in the same
period of fiscal 2013;

+  During fiscal 2013, we expensed approximately $2.8 million, or $0.04 per diluted share, of centain ongoing camying costs related 1o our Staten Island
praperty. There were no comparable costs in the same periods of fiscal 2014;

*  During fiscal 2014, we received a favorable settlement relating to a legal judgment of litigation involving certain ancillary operations of
approximately $0.6 million, or 50.01 per diluted share. During fiscal 2013, we recognized a charge relating to a settlement of a litigation involving
certain ancillary facility operations of approximately $0.5 million;
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*+  In fiscal 2014, we recognized approximately $1.1 million, or $0.02 per diluted share, in marketing and consulting costs that are included in generl
and administrative expense related to DAYTONA Rising. During fiscal 2013, we recognized approximately $1.5 million, or $0.02 per diluted share, of
similar costs;

*  During fiscal 2014, we recognized approximately $11.1 million, or $0.14 per diluted share, of accelerated depreciation that was recorded due to the
shortening the service lives of certain assets associated with DAYTONA Rising. During fiscal 2013, we recognized approximately $15.4 million, or
$0.20 per diluted share, of accelerated depreciation thar was recorded due to the shortening the service lives of certain asscts associated with
DAYTONA Rising and capacity management initiatives;

*  Infiscal 2014, we recognized approximately $10.1 million, or $0.12 per diluted share, of losses associated with asset retirements of losses primarily
attributable to demofition and/or assct relocation costs in connection with DAYTONA Rising, capacity management initiatives and other capital
improvements. Included in these losses were approximately $7.5 million of expenditures related to demolition and/or asset relocation costs, the
remaining charges were non-cash, which included an impairment of 2 long-lived intangible zsset related to MA, discussed above. During fiscal 2013,
we recognized approximately $16.6 million, or $0.21 per diluted share, of similar charges, of which approximately $6.6 million of expenditures
related to demolition and/or asset relocation costs, the remaining charges were non-cash;

+  During fiscal 2014, we recognized approximately $7.2 million, or $0.09 per diluted share, in capitalized interest related 1o DAYTONA Rising. During
fiscal 2013, we recognized approximately $0.8 million, or $0.01 per diluted share, of similar capitalized interest; and

+  During fiscal 2014, we recognized approximately $8.9 million of income from equity investments associated with our Hollywood Casino at Kansas
Speedway. During fiscal 2013, we recognized income ol approximately $9.4 million from this equity investment, which included a §1.1 milkion credit
for previously paid property taxes related to resolution of amounts under appeal.

Fiscal 202+ admissions revenue o€ $129.7 million was comparable to fiscal 2013. Factors driving attendance increases and higher average ticket prices
include:

*  Aschedule change for the Spring Cup event at Kansas featuring the first ruaning of this event in the evening under the Fcility s lights;
*  [MS5A and Sprint Cup cvents at Watkins Glen;

+  Increased atiendance for Sprint Cup Chase for the Championship events at Martinsville and Taliadega as wetl as sotd out events for the Fall Phoenix
and Homestead Sprint Cup races; and

+  Certain non-NASCAR events new to the Company's event schedule in 2014,
Scveral factors contributed to attendance decreases which offset the noted increases, including:

*  Inclement weather and the threat of inclement weather during Speedweeks, restlting in a six hour rin delay for the Daytona 500;

¢ Inclement weather resulting in postponement of the July Coke Zero 400 at Daytona to the following day:

*  Inclement weather impacting major events at Richmond and Mantinsville;

< Moving the Budweiser Duel during Speedweeks at Daytona from its historical Thursday afiemoon schedule to an early evening time slot; and
+  Otherdecrcases in certain markets,

Motorsports related revenue increased approximately $8.2 million, or 1.9 percent, in fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2013, The increasc is largely
attributable to increases in television broadcast revenue of approximately $12.1 millien, Also contributing to the increase were increased hospitality
revenucs of approximately S1.5 million, as well as the aforementioned drag race events held at Auto Club Speedway totaling approximately $1.0 million.
Partially offsetting the increase was lower MRN advertising and Sprint Vision revenues of approximately $2.5 million, as well as decreased sponsorship
revenues of approximately $2.2 million, and an adjustment in the 2013 first quarter to increase the ancillary rights fees attributable to fiscal 2012, of
approximately S1.7 million, with no comparable adjustment in fiscal 2014,

Food, beverage and merchandise revenue increased approximately $28.8 million, or 65.5 percent, in fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2013. predominately
due to the aforementioned consolidation of MA, of approximately $25.7 million. Also contributing to the increase were concession sales of approximately
$ 1.1 million related to the aforementioned non-motorspons event held in the third quarter of fiscal 2014, for which there was no comparable event in fiscal
2013.

Prize and point fund monies and NASCAR sanction fees increased by approximately $3.6 million, or 2.3 percent, in fiscal 2014 as compared 1o fiscal 2013,
The increases are primarily due 1o increases in television broadcast rights fees for the NASCAR
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Sprint Cup, Xfinity and Camping World Truck series events held during the period as standard NASCAR sanctioning agreements require a specific
percentage of television broadcast rights fees to be paid to competitors.

Motorsports related expense increased by approximately $2.3 million, ot 1.8 percent, in fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2013. The increase is primarily due
to personnel related expenses, incremental costs for certain events largely driven by inclement weather, and the aforementioned events held in fiscal 2014 for
which there were no comparable events in fiscal 2013, as well as advertising costs. Partially offsetting the increase were decreases in net purchased services of
approximately $0.1 million. Motorsports related expenses as a percentage of combined admissions and motorspons related revenue remained consistent at
approximately 22.8 percent for fiscal 2014, as compared 1o 22.7 percent for the same period in the prior year.

Food, beverage and merchandise expense increased approximately $25.1 million, or 75 .8 percent, in fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2013, The increase is
predominately attributable to the aforementioned consolidation of MA which increased related expenses by approximately $21.4 million. Also contributing
to the increase were increased catering and merchandise sales, as well as cancession sales related 10 the aforementioned non-motorsparts event held in the
third quanter of fiscal 2014, for which there was no comparable event in fiscal 2013. Foad, beverage and merchandise expense as a percentage of food,
beverage and merchandise revenue increased to appraximately 79.9 percent for fiscal 2014, as compared to 75.3 percent for the same period in the prior year.
The decrease in margin is primarily a result of the aforementioned consolidation of MA and the aforementioned non-motorsports event. Excluding MA and

the non-motorspons event, food, beverage and merchandise expense as a percentage of food, beverage and merchandise revenuc is comparable to the same
periods in 2013,

General and administrative expense increased approximately $3.6 million, or 3.5 percent, in fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2013. The increase is
predominately due to certain administrative costs and ancillary facility operations, totaling approximately $7.9 million, aFwhich approximately $2.5 million
was related to MA. Partially offseuting the increase was certain ongoing carrying costs related to our Staten Island property, of approximately $2.8 million,
that occuned in fiscal 2013, for which there were no comparable costs in the same period of fiscal 2014, Also contributing to offsetting the incrcase was a net
decrease to our general liability reserve of approximately S1.5 million, due to certain claims not reaching their full exposure, as was estimated, priot to being
resolved. General end administrative expenses as a percentage of total revenues decreased negligibly to approximately 16.7 percent for fiscal 2014, as
compared to 17.1 percent for fiscal 2013. The margin improvement was predominately due to the aforementioned adjustments in our general liability
insurance reserves in the 2014 period as well as camying costs related to our Staten Island propeny

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased approximately $3.6 million, or 3.9 percent, in fisczl 2014 a5 compared to fiscal 2013. The decrease was
primarily attributable to the service {ives ol certain assets associated with DAYTONA Rising and grandstand scating at Talladega and Richmond whosc lives
were reduced in the fiscal 2013 period and became fully depreciated in the the same period of fiscal 2014, Pantially offsctting the decrease are new assets
going into service, predominately associated with DAYTONA Rising.

Losses on retirements of long-lived assets of approximately $10.1 million during fiscal 2014 is primarily attributable to demalition costs in connection with
DAYTONA Rising, capacity management initiatives and other capital improvements, The losses on retirements of long-lived assets of approximately

$16.6 million in fiscal 2013 is primarily attributable 1o the removal of centain assets not fully depreciated in connection with DAYTONA Rising and
grandstand seating at Talladega, as well as guest enhancements at our other facilities.

Interest income during fiseal 2014 increased approximately $2.0 million as compared to fiscal 2013, The increase is predominately due to a settlement
reached in fiscal 2014 related 1o prior years interest associated with a fong-term receivable,

Interest expensc decrcased approximately $6.0 million, or 39.7 percent, in fiscal 2014, as compared to fiscal 2013, The decrease was predominately duc ta
higher capitalized interest associated with DAYTONA Rising.

Equity in net income from equity investments in fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively, represents our 50.0 percent equity investments in Hollywood Casino at

Kansas Speedway (see “Equity and Other Investments”). We did not recognize any net income or ass from our equity investment in MA in fiscal 2014 or in
fiscal 2013 (sec “Equity and Other Investments™).

Our effective income tax rate decreased from approximately 38.0 percent to approximately 33.0 percent during fiscal 2014 compared to fiscal 2013 (see
“Income Taxes™).

As a result of the foregoing, net income increased approximately $22.1 million, or $0 48 per diluted share, for fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2013,

Comparison of Fiscal 2013 to Fisca) 2012

The comparison of fiscal 2013 to fiscat 2012 is impacted by the following factors:
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*  Economic conditions, including thase affecting disposable consumer income and corporate budgets such as employment, business conditions,
interest rates and taxation rates, continued to impact our ability to sell tickets to our events and to secure revenues from corporte marketing
partnerships. We believe that unprecedented adverse economic trends, particularly the deeline in consumer confidence and the level of
unemployment, contributed 1o the decrease in attendance related as well as corporate pantner revenues fot certain of our motorsports entertainment
events beginning in mid-2008;

= Infiscal 20 3, we expensed approximately 52.8 million, or $0.04 per diluted share, of ¢ertain ongoing carrying costs related to our Staten Island
property. During fiscal 2012, we expensed approximately 34.6 mitlion of similar costs;

*  During fiscal 2013, we recognized a charge relating to a legal judgment of litigation invelving cenain ancillary facility operations of approximately
$0.5 million, or $0.01 per diluted share. During fiscal 2012, we recognized a charge relating to a scitlement of a litigation involving cenain ancillary
facility operations of approximately 51.2 million;

= Infiscal 2013, we recognized approximately $1.5 million, or $0.02 per diluted share, in marketing and consulting costs that are included in general
and administrative expensc related to DAYTONA Rising. During fiscal 2012, we recognized approximately $0.4 million of similar costs;

*  During fiscal 2013, we recognized approximately $15.4 million, ar $0.20 per diluted share, of accelerated depreciation that was recorded due to the
shortening the service lives of certain assets associated with DAYTONA Rising and capacity management intiatives. There were no comparable
amounts in fiscal 2012;

+ In fiscal 2013, we recognized approximately $16.6 million, or $0.21 per diluted share, of fosses associated with asset retirements primarily attributable
to the removal of assets not fully depreciated in connection with DAYTONA Rising, capacity management initiatives and other capital improvements
Included in these losses were approximately $6.6 million of expenditures related to demolition and/or asset relocation costs, the remaining charges
were non-cash. Doring fiscal 2012, we recognized approximately S11.1 million of similar charges;

+  Infiscal 2013, we recognized approximately $0.8 million, or $0.01 per diluted share, in capitalized interest related to DAYTONA Rising. There was
no comparable amounts related to DAYTONA Rising in fiscal 2012;

*  During fiscal 2012, we recognized approximately $9.1 million in expenses, or $0.12 per diluted share, related to the redemption of the remaining
$87.0 million principal 5.40 percent Senior Notes maturing in 2014;

* ln fiscal 2013, we recorded approximately $0.1 million, or less than $0.01 per diluted share, net gain on the sale of certain assets. In fiscal 2012, we
recognized approximately 50.9 million of similar net gains; and

+  During fiscal 2013, we recognized approximately $9.4 millian of income from cquity investments associated with our Hollywood Casino at Kansas
Speedway, which included a 81,1 million ¢redit for previously paid property taxes related 1o resolution of amounts under appeal. During fiscal 2012,
we recognized income of approximately $2.8 million from this equity investment, which included resulis of eperatians beginning in February 2012,
net of charges related to certain start up costs through the opening.

Admissions revenue decreased approximately $6.3 million, or 4.6 percent, in fiscal 2013 as compared to fiscal 2012. The decrease is largely attributable to
decreased attendance for centain events held dudng fiscal 2013, including certain events held during Speedweeks at Daytona and the impact of inelement
weather at Talladega and Chicagoland. To a lesser extent, a lower weighted average ticket price for certain of the events contributed to the decline. The 2012
Daytona 500 was pastponed fora day due to inclement weather. Historically, rain delayed or postponed evenis due to inclement weather have a negative
impact on the following year's tickct rencwals for those events. As a result of the postponement in 2012, we believe the 2013 Daytona 500 renewals were
negatively impacted, which contrbuted to a significant portion of the fiscal 2013 decline.

Motorsports related revenue increased approximately S8.8 million, or 2.1 percent, in fiscal 2013 as compared to fiscal 2012, The increase is largely
attributable to increases in television broadcast revenue. Also contributing to the increase was an incremental payout of fiscal 2012 ancillary nights fees
during fiscal 2013. Pantialiy offsetting the increascs were lower MRN advertising and Sprint Vision revenues.

Food, beverage and merchandise revenue decreased approximately $1.9 million, or4.2 percent, in fiscal 2013 as compared to fiscal 2012, The decrease is
targely due to atiendance decreases and lower catering revenues for certain events, To a lesser extent, higher sales in fiscal 2012 driven by an extra day of
selling opportunity as a result of the aforementioned rain delayed and rescheduled Daytona 500 contnbuted to the decrease in the cumrent year.

Prize and point fund monies and NASCAR sanction fees increased by approximately $4.7 million, or 3.0 percent, in fiscal 2013 as compared to fiscal 2012,
The increase is due to higher television broadcast rights fees for the NASCAR Sprint Cup, Xfinity and Camping World Truck series events held during the
periods as standard NASCAR sanctioning agreements require a specific percentage of television broadeast rights fees to be paid to competitors. Higher
sanction fees paid Lo NASCAR also contribuled to the increases.
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Motarsports related expense increased slightly by approximately $0.9 million, or 0.7 percent, in fiscal 2013 as compared to fiscal 2012, The slight increase is
reiated to aforementioned merit pay increases, advertising costs, maintenance costs and other purchased services as well as a net increase in costs for certain
non-comparable events year over year. Motorsports related expenses as a percentage of combined admissions and motorspornts related revenue remained
consistent at approximately 22.7 percent for fiscal 2013, as compared 10 22.6 percent for the same period in the prior year.

Food, beverage and merchandise expense decreased approximately $2.5 million, or 7.0 percent, in fiscal 2013 as compared to fiscal 2012, The decrease is
substantizlly attributable to lower catering and merchandise sales as well as improved margin on catenng and concession sales for events held during the
periods. Food, beverage and merchandise expense as a percentage of food, beverage and merchandise revenue decreased to approximately 75.3 percent for
fiscal 2013, as compared to 77.5 percent for the same period in the prior year. The increase in margin is 2 result of streamlined menus throughout our facilitics
aimed at reducing overall food costs by leverging purchasing pawer while clevating quality and delivery.

General and administrative expense incrcased approximately $2.0 million, or 1.9 percent, in fiscal 2013 as compared to fiscal 2012. The increase is primarily
attributable to certain costs related to DAYTONA Rising, the loss accrual associated with the incident at Daytona, a judgment in litigation involving certain
ancillary facility operations, and certain administrative costs including the aforementioned merit pay increases. Slightly offsetting the increases were
reductions in property taxes at certain facilitics and the settlement of litigation involving cenain ancillary facility operations in fiscal 2012. General and

administrative expenses as a percentage of total revenues increased negligibly to approximately 17.1 percent for fiscal 2013, as compared to 16.8 percent for
fiscal 2012,

Depreciation and amortization expense increased approximately $§6.1 million, or 20.7 percent, in fiscal 2013 as compared to fiscal 2012, The increasc was
primarily attributable accelerated depreciation resulting from shortening the service lives of certain assets associated with DAYTONA Rising and the
aforementioned capacity management initiatives at certain of our facilities.

Losses on retirements of long-lived assets of approximately $16.6 million during fiscal 2013 is primarily attributable to the aforementianed capacity
management initiatives at certain of our facilities, removal of certain assets related to DAYTONA Rising, as well as guest enhancements at our other facilities.
The losses on retirements of long-lived assets ofapproximately $11.1 million in fiscal 2012 is primarily attributable to the removal of cenain assets not fully
depreciated in connection with the repaving of the track at Kansas, as well as guest enhancements at our other facitities.

Interest income during fiscal 2013 was comparable to fiscal 2012,

Interest expense increased approximately $1.7 million, or 12.7 percent, in fiscal 2013, as compared 1o fiscal 2012, The increase is due to lower capitalized
interest, as well as interest on the $100.0 million principal 3.95 percent Scnior Notcs, issued in September 2012, Significantly offsetting the increase was the
redemption of the remaining $87.0 million principal 5.40 percent Senior Notes in March 2012 as well as there being no borrowings outstanding on our
£300.0 million revolving credit facility during fiscal 2013.

Equity in net income from equity investments in fiscal 2013 and 201 2, respectively, represents our 50.0 percent equity investments in 1ollywood Casino at
Kansas Speedway (see “Equity and Other Investments”). We did not recognize any net income or {oss from our equity investment in MA in fiscal 2013 orin
fiscal 2012,

Our effective income tax rate increased from approximately 36.7 percent to approximately 38.0 percent during fiscal 2013 compared to fiscal 2012 (sce
“Income Taxes").

As a result of the foregoing, net income decreased approximalely $9.3 million, or $0.21 per diluted share, for fiscal 2013 as compared to fiscal 2012.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
General

We have historically generated sufficient cash flow Irom operations to fund our working capital needs, capital expenditures at existing facilities, and return ot
capital through payments of an annuaf cash dividend and repurchase of our shares under our Stack Purchase Plan, In addition, we have used the proceeds
from offerings of our Class A Common Stock, the net proceeds from the issuance of iong-tenm debt, borowings under our credit facilities and state and local
mechanisms 1o fund acquisitions and developiment projects. The following table sets forth certain selected financial information as of November 30, {in
thousands):
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2012 2013 2014

Cash and cash equivalents $ 78379 § 172,827 § 158,847
Working capital 50,868 153,780 110,783
Total debt 276,932 274,487 271,746

At November 30, 2014, our working capital was primarily supported by our cash and cash equivalents totaling approximately $158.8 million, a decrease of

approximately $14.0 million from November 30, 2013. Significant cash flow items during fiscal the fiscal years ended November 3¢ are as follows {in
thousands):

2012 2013 2014
Net cash provided by operating activities (1} b} 150,925 § 173395 § 162,847
Capital expenditures (2) (82.871) (83,539) {183,936)
Distribution from equity investee and affiliate (3) 11,000 21 ,_SOli 22,000
Proceeds from sale of Staten Island propeny — 5322 6,100
Equity investments and advances to affiliate (4) (51,984} - (1,322)
Net payments related 1o our credit facility (50,000) - -
.Nclbmcccds (payments) related to Iorig-term debt l(]_,_69.4 2,513) (2,807)
Dividends paid and reacquisitions of previously issued common
stack (19,839 {10,488) (11,504)

(1) Variances in net cash provided by operating activilics were predominately duc to the amount and timing of cash payments for income taxes {see "lncome Taxes")
{2) Increase in capital expenditures is predominately duc 10 DAYTONA Rising (see "Capital Expenditures™)

(3) Distributions from equily investee and affiliates, consists of amounts received as distribution from their profits and returns of capital as detailed in our stntement of
cash Mows

(4} Amounts relate to Hollywoad Casino st Kansas Speedway (see “Equity and Other [nvestments™ and ONE DAYTONA (see "ONE DAYTONA"), respectively

Our liquidity is primarily gencrated from our ongoing motorsports operations, and we expect our strang operating cash flow to continue in the future, In
addition, us of November 30, 2014, we have approximately $296.0 million available to dmw upon under our 2012 Credit Facility, if needed. See “Future
Liquidity” for additianal disclosures relating 10 our credit facility and centain risks that may affect our near term operating results and liguidity

Allocation of capital is driven by our long-temm strategic planning and initiatives that encompass our mission, vision and values, Our primary uses of capital
arc to maintain modest debt levels that are consistent with our current investment grade debt mting from Standard and Poor’s. We will invest in our facilities
to improve the guest experience and we will make investments in strategic projects that complement our core business and provide value for our
sharcholders, all of which is balanced with returning capital to our sharcholders through share repurchases and dividends.

Capital Expenditures

As discussed in “Future Trends in Operating Results,” an important strategy for our future growth will come from investing in our major motorsports facilities
to enbance the live event experience and better enable us to effectively compete with other entertainment venues for consumer and corporate spending.

In June 2013, 1SC's board of directors endorsed a capital allocation plan for fiscal 2013 through fiscal 2017 not to exceed $600.0 million in capital
expenditures over that period. The five-year capital allocation plan encompasses all the capital expenditures for 1ISC's 13 majar motorspons fecilities,
including DAYTONA Rising, as well as any equity commitments to undenake ONE DAYTONA. Of the endamsed five-year capital allocation plan,
DAYTONA Rising will account for approximately $400.0 million of the $600.0 million.

Capital expenditures for projects at existing fucilities, including those related to DAYTONA Rising, grandstand seating enhancements at Talladega;
concounse improvements at Richmond; and a variety of other improvements and renovations, was approximately $183.9 million for our 2014 fiscal year. In
addition, we incurred charges of approximately $10.1 millian aflosses on asset retirements, of which approximately $7.3 million of of these charges were
cash expenditures related to demolition and ‘or asset relocation costs. In comparison, we spent approximately $85.5 million for fiscal 2013, on capital
expenditures for projects at our existing facilities,
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With the majority of the capital expenditures for DAYTONA Rising occurring in fiscal 2014 and 2015, we estimate capital expenditures, exclusive of
capitalized interest, across all of ISC's existing facilities will be approximately $200.0 million for fiscal 2015, based on the timing of construction payments.
With a target completion date for DAYTONA Rising in January 2016, capital expenditures will then decrease significantly with an expectation of capital
expenditures for projects at all of ISC's existing facilities, exclusive of capitalized interest, 1o be between $60.0 to $70.0 million in fiscal 2016 and fiscal
2017.

We review the capital expenditure program periodically and modify it as required 1o meet current business nceds.

Future Liquidity
General

As discussed in “Future Trends in Operating Results,” we compete for discretionary spending and leisure time with many other entertainment altcratives and
are subject to factors that generally affect the recreation, leisure and spans industry, including general economic conditions. Qur operations are also sensitive
to factors that affect coporate budgets. Such factors include, but are not limited o, general ecenomic conditions, employment levels, business cenditions,
interest and taxation rates, relative commodity prices, and changes in consumer tastes and spending habils, These factors may negatively impact year-aver
year comparability for our revenue categories for the full year, with the exception of domestic broadcast media rights fees. White we are sustaining the
significant cost reductions implemented subsequent to the unprecedented adverse economic conditions that began in 2008, we do not expect further
significant cost reductions.

Qur cash flow from operations consists primanly of ticket, hospitality, merchandise, catering and concession sales and contracted revenues arising from
television broadcast rights and marketing pantnerships. We believe that cash flows from operations, along with existing cash, cash equivalents and available
borrowings under our credit lacility, will be sufficient to fund:

+  operations of our major motorsports facilities for the foreseeable future;

+  the previously discussed five-year capital expenditures plan at our existing facilities, which includes DAYTONA Rising, any equity commitment to
ONE DAYTONA, as well as any future fan and campetitor safety, critical maintenance and regulatory compliance spending;

*  payments required in connection with the funding of the Unified Govemment's debt service requirements related to the TIF bonds;
+  payments related to our existing debt service commitments;

*  contributions in cannection with any future expansion of the Hollywood Casino at Kansas Speedway; and

« ourannual dividend payment and share repurchases under our Stock Purchase Plan.

We rermain interested in pursuing acquisition and/or development opportunities that would increase shareholder value, of which the timing, size, success and
associated potential capital commitments, are unknown at this time. Accardingly, a material acceleration of our growth strategy could require us to obtain
additional capital through debt and/or equity financings. Although there can be no assurance, we believe that adequate debt and equity financing will be
available on satisfactory temms.

While we expect our strong operating cash flow o continue in the future, our financial results depend significantly on a number of factors. In addition to
local, national, and global economic and financial macket conditions, consumer and corporate spending could be adversely affected by security and other
lifestyle conditions resulting in lower than expected future operating cash flows, General economic conditions were significantly and negatively impacted by
the September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks and the wars in Iraq and Afghanistan and could be similarly affected by any future attacks or fear of such attacks, or
by conditions resulting {from other acts or prospects of war, Any future attacks or wars or related threats could also increase our expenses related to insurance,
security or other related matters, Also, our financial resulis could be adversely impacted by a widespread outbreak of a severe epidemiological crisis, The
ttems discussed above could have a singular or compounded material adverse effcet on our financial success and fature cash flow.

Lang-Term Obligations and Commitments
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Qur $65.0 million principal amount of senior unsecured notes (*4.63 percent Scnior Notes”) bear interest at 4.63 percent and are due January 2021, require
semi-annual interest payments on January 18 and July 18 through their maturity. The 4.63 percent Senior Notes may be redeemed in whole or in pan, at our
option, at any time or frum time to time at redemption prices as defined in the indenture. Certain of our wholly owned domestic subsidiaries are guarantors of
the 4.63 percent Senior Notes. Certain restrictive cavenants of the 4.63 percent Senior Notes require that the Company's ratio of its Consolidated Funded
Indebtedness to its Consolidated EBITDA ("leverage mtio™) does not exceed 3.50 1o 1.0, and its Consolidated EBITDA ta Consolidated Interest Expense
(“intercst coverage ratio™) is not less than 2.0 to 1.0. In addition the Company may not permit the aggregate of cenain Priotity Debt 1o exceed 15.0 pereent of
its Cansolidated Net Worth. The 4.63 percent Senior Notes contain various other affimmative and negative restrictive covenants including, among others,
limitations on liens, sales ofassets, mergers and conselidations and cenain transactions with affiliates. As of November 30, 2014, the Company was in

compliance with its vatious restrictive covenants. At November 30, 2014, outstanding principal on the 4.63 percent Senior Notes was approximately $65.0
million.

Our 5100.0 million principal amount of senior unsecured notes (*3.95 percent Senior Notes™) bear interest at 3.95 percent and are due Septemiber 2024, The
3.95 percent Senior Nates require semi-annual interest payments on March 13 and September 13 through their maturity. The 3.95 percent Senior Notes may
be redeemed in whole orin part, at our eption, at any time or from time to time at redemption prices as defined in the indenture. Certain of aur wholly owned
domestic subsidiaries are guarantors of the 395 percent Senior Notes. Cenain restrictive covenants of the 3.935 percent Senior Notes require that the
Company's leverage ratio does not exceed 3.50 to 1.0, and its interest coverage ratio is not less than 2.0 to 1.0. In addition the Company may not permit the
aggregate of certain Priority Debt to exceed 15.0 percent of its Consolidated Net Worth, The 3.95 percent Senior Notes contain various other affirmative and
negative restrictive covenants including, among others, limitations on liens, sales of assets, mergers and consolidations and certain transactions with
affiliates, As of November 30, 2014, the Company was in compliance with its various restrictive covenants. At November 30, 2014, outstanding principal on
the 3.95 percent Senior Notes was approximately $100.0 million.

Out whaolliy owned subsidiary, Chicagoland Specdway, LLC, which owns and operates Chicageland and Route 66, has debt outstanding in the form of
revenue bonds payable (“4.82 percent Revenue Bonds”), consisting of economic development revenue bonds issued by the City of Joliet, llinois to finance
certain iand improvements. The 4.82 percent Revenue Bonds have an interest rate of 4.82 percent and a monthly payment of approximately 529,000
principal and intercst. At November 30, 2014, oulstanding principal an the 4,82 percent Revenue Bonds was approximately $0.3 million.

The term loan (6,25 percent Term Loan™), related to our Intemational Motorspoens Center, has a 25 year term due October 2034, an intcrest ratc of 6.25
pereent, and a current monthly payment of approximately $292,000 principal and intercst. At November 30, 2014, the outstanding principal on the 6.25
percent Term Loan was approximately $49.5 million.

At November 30, 2014, outstanding TIF bonds totaled approximately $56.9 million, net of the unamonized discount, which is comprised of 2 $7.7 million
principal amount, 6.15 percent term bond due December 1, 2017 and a $49.7 million principal amount, 6.75 percent term bond due December [, 2027. The
TIF bonds are repaid by the Unified Govemient with payments made in licu of property taxes (*Funding Commitment™) by our whaolly owned subsidiary,
Kansas Speedway Corporation (“KSC™}. Principal (mandatory redemption) payments per the Funding Commitment are payable by KSC on October | of each
year. The semi-annual interest component of the Funding Commitment is payable on April | and October | of each year. KSC granted a montgage and
security interest in the Kansas project for its Funding Commitment obligation.

In October 2002, the Unified Govemment issued subordinate sales tax special obligation revenue bonds (*2002 STAR Bonds™) totaling approximately $6.3
million to seimburse us for cenain construction already completed on the sccond phase of the Kansas Speedway project end to fund certain additional
construction, The 2002 STAR Bonds, which require annual debt service payments and are due December 1, 2022, will be retired with state and lacal taxes
generated within the Kansas Speedway's boundaries and are not our abligation. KSC has agreed to guarantee the payment of principal, any required premium
and interest on the 2002 STAR Bonds. At November 30, 2014, the Unified Govemment had approximately $1.4 million in 2002 STAR Bonds outstanding
Undera keepwell agreement, we have agreed to provide financial assistance 1o KSC, if necessary, to support its guarantee of the 2002 STAR Bonds.

The 2012 Credit Facility contains a feature that allows us to increase the credit facility from $300.0 million to a total of $500.0 million, subject to certain
conditiens, provides for separate sub-limits 0f$23.0 million for standby Yetters of credit and $10.0 million for swing line loans. The 2012 Credit Facility is
scheduled to mature in November 201 7. Interest accrues, at the Company's eption, at either LIBOR plus 100.0 — 162.5 basis points or a base rate loan at the
highest of 1) Wells Fargo Bank's prime lending rate, ii) the Federl Funds rate, as in effect from time to time, plus 0.5 percent, and iii) one month LIBOR plus
L0 percent, The 2012 Credit Facility also contains a commitment fee ranging from 0.125 percent to 0.225 percent of unused amounts available for
borowing. The interest rate margin on the LIBOR borowings and commitment fee are variable depending o the betier of the Company's debt rating as
determined by specified mting agencies or its leverage mtio. Cenain of
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the Company's wholly owned domestic subsidianes are guarantors on the 2012 Credit Facility. The 2012 Credit Facility requires that the Company's leverage
ratio docs not exceed 3.50 to 1.0 (4.0 to 1.0 for the four quaners ending afier any Permitted Acquisition), and its interest coverage ratio is not less than 2.5 to
1.0. The 2012 Credit Facility also contains various other affirmative and negative restrictive covenants including, among others, limitations on indebtedness,
investments, sales of assets, certain transactions with affiliates, entering into cenain restrictive agreements and making certain restricted payments as detailed

in the agreement. As of November 30, 2014, the Company was in compliance with its various restrictive covenants. At November 30, 2014, the Company had
no outstanding borowings under the 2012 Credil Facility.

At November 30, 2014 we had contractual cash obligations to repay debt and to make payments under operating agreements, leases and commercial

commitments in the form of guarantees and unused lines of credit. Payments due under these long-term obligations are as follows as of November 30, 2014
(in thousands):

Obligations Duc by Periad

Less Than Alter
Tatal One Year 2-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years

Long-term debt 3 272263 § 3435 % 7146 3 86i3 § 253,069
Interest 129,690 13,870 27,124 26,175 62,521
Motorsports entetainment facility opemting

agreement 20,340 2,220 2,207 2,110 13,803
Other operating leases 43,783 4,033 5373 3,586 30,791
Total Contractual Cash Obligations 5 466,076 § 23,558 § 41850 & 40484 § 360,184

Commercial commitment expirations are as follows as of November 30, 2014 (in thousands):

Commitment Expiration by Period

Less Than Alter
Tatal One Year 2-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
Guarantees $ 1410 § 2160 % 465 § DTSN S 46(
Unused credit facilities 300,000 — 300,000 —_ -
Total Commercial Commitments $ 301410 § 2i0. § 300465 § 2758 460

DAYTONA Rising: Reimagining an American lcon

DAYTONA Rising is the redevelopment of the frontstretch at Daytona, ISC's 33-year-0ld flagship motorsponts facility, to enhance the event experience for
our fans, marketing panners, broadeasters and the motorsports industry.

The vision for DAYTONA Rising places an emphasis on enhancing the complete fan experience, beginning with five expanded and redesigned fan entrunces,
orinjectors. Each injector will lead disectly to a series of escalators and elevators that witl transport fans to any of three different concourse levels, each
featuring spacious and strategically-placed social "neighbarhoods” along the nearly mile-long frontstretch.

As part of DAYTONA Rising, we entered into a Design-Build Agreement with Barton Malow Company (“Barton Malow"”), which obligates us to pay Barton
Malow approximately $316.0 million for the completion of the work described in the Design-Build Agreement. The amount is a stipulated sum to be paid for
the work, which may not change unless we request a change in the scope of work. The Design-Build Agreement contains cenain provisions and
representations usual and customary for agreements of this type, including. among others, provisions regarding liquidated damages to be assessed for work
thatis not completed according to the agreed upon schedule, provisions regarding puyment schedules, and provisions regarding bonding and liability
insurance policies applicable to the work, In addition, the Design-Build Agreement contains customary provisions regarding termination, review and
inspection of the work, wamranties and the use of subcontractors.

Atotal of | | neighborhoods, cach measuring the size of a football field, will enable fans to meet and socialize during events without missing any on-track
action, thanks to dozens of strategically-placed video screens in every neighbodiood. The central neighborheod, dubbed the *World Center of Racing,"
features open sight-lincs enabling fans to catch all the on-track action while celebrating the history of Daytona [ntemational Speedway and its many
unforgettable moments throughout more than 50 years of racing.

Every seat in Daytona's frontstreteh will be replaced with wider, more comfortable seating that will provide pristine sight-lines. There will also be twice as
many restrooms and three times as many concessions throughout the facility. For Budweiser Speedweeks 2013, fans can experience some of DAYTONA

Rising’s new amenities including fist-gver vertical transportation, approximately 40,000 new grandstand scats on the frontstretch near Tumn 1, and new
concessions and restrooms.
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In addition to improving the overall fan experience, the corporate entertainment platform at Daytona will be completely transformed, Comporale hospitality
will be moved into permanent structures inside the new grandstand, providing premier facilities for corporate entertaining throughout our events. Over 60
new trackside corporate suites will provide our premium guests with breathtaking views and first-class amenities befitting the “World Center of Racing.”

In February 2014, Daytona Intemational Speedway announced Tayota as its first Founding Partner for DAYTONA Rising, Through this parinership, Toyota
will sponsor Injector 4 and one of the neighborhoods, as well as reccive 20,000 square feet of innovative fan engagement space that will enhance the overal]
guest experience, and nearly 50,000 square feet of interior and exterior branding space. The parinership runs through 2025,

In November 2014, Florida Hospital was announced as the stadivm’s second Founding Partner taking ownership of Injector 1. As with Toyota, the Florida
Hospital brand will be represented on one of five fan injectors, including more than 20,000 square feet of engagement space. Within this injector, Florida
Hospital will also have a presence in one of the “neighborhoods™.

Beginning in January 2015, Florida Hospital will be the exclusive healthcare provider of Daytona, which includes providing medical equipment and
personnel for all events, managing the care center operations and providing ambulances to handle emergency situations,

in August 2014, Daytona announced that CommScope, Inc, ("CommScope”), a global leader in

infrastructure solutions for communications networks, has become the first technology partner in the expanding DAYTONA

Rising “We Built Daytona™ marketing platform. CommScope will deploy a new communications infrastructure at Daytona

providing the facility with the bandwidth and flexibility to offer services that will enhance o fan’s experience, as well as

improve stadium operations. The “We Built Daytona™ platform is designed 10 showcase partners invalved in the construction of

DAYTONA Rising through a marketing presence (once their role int the project begins). CommScope joins eight other

companies including Kingspan, a market leader in sustainable building product technology; USG Corporation, a leading building products company;
Sherwin-Williams, an industry leader in the development of technologically advanced paint and coatings; Big Ass Fans, a ceiling fan design and engineeting
company; P&S Paving, asphalt and paving company;

Jones Signs, leading national sign company; Schoeider Electric, global specialist in energy management; and ROSSETTI, an award-winning architectural
design and planning finn that is leading the master planning of the DAYTONA Rising project.

On Oclober 15, 2014 Daytona hosted DAYTONA Rising’s topping out ceremony, commemorating a significant milestone - the midway mark of construction.
Speedway officials, the Franee family and Barton Malow presided over the installation of the highest picce of steel on the project.

We expect that by providing our fans with a better experience as well as an expansive platform for our marketing panners, including an elevated hospitality
expericnce, DAYTONA Rising, upon campletion in 2016, is expected to provide an immediate incremental lift in Daytona's revenites of approximately $20,0
million, and earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amertization ("EBITDA™) lift of approximately $15,0 million with a mid-single-digit growth
rate. We also currently anticipate the project to be accretive to our net income per share within three years of completion. While these forward looking
gmounts are management’s projections and we believe they are reasonable, our actual results may vary from these estimates due to unanticipated changes in
projecied attendance, lower than expected ticket prices, or lower than forecasted corporate sponsorships. We do not know whether these expectations will
ultimately prove correct and actual revenues and operating results may differ materially from these estimates.

We currently anticipate DAYTONA Rising to cost approximately $400.0 million, excluding capitalized interest, which we expect to fund from cash an hand,
cash from our operations, and we may use bomowings on our credit facility for a limited period of time. In June 2014, House Bill 7095 was signed in Florida
creating the Florida Sports Development Program, establishing a process for distributing state tax revenue for the construction or improvement of
professional sports facilities. The DAYTONA Rising project is among the eligible applicants to receive sales tax incentives based on the project’s capital
investment and amount of sales tax generated by the facility. We filed our application and recently reccived approval from the staie’s Depanment of
Ecanomic Opportunity. The final appraval must come from the Legislative Budget Committee, whose decision is anticipated later in the first quarter of fiscal
20135. The new bill could potentially provide additional capital for the project.

Despite not anticipating the nced for additional long-1erm debt to fund this project, accounting rules dictate that we capitalize a portion of the interest on
existing outstanding debt during the construction period. We estimate that we will record approximately $11.0 million to $13.0 million of capitalized
interest from fiscal 2013 through fiscal 2016, with roughly half of the capitalized interest recorded in fiscal 2014,

Total spending incurred for DAYTONA Rising was approximately $119.3 mitlion for fiscal 2014, and is approximately $170.5 mitlion since the inception of
the project. Based on our cumrent expectations of DAYTONA Rising, we have identified existing assets that are expected to be impacted by the
redevelopment and that those assets will require accelerated depreciation, certain removal costs and losses on asset retirements, totaling approximately $50.0
million over the approximate
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26-month project time span. During fiscal 2014, we recognized accelerated depreciation, cerzin removal costs and losses on retirements of assets totaling
approximately 515.8 million. with a total of approximately $28.0 million recognized since the inception of the projeet.

In addition, our depreciation expense, related directly to DAYTONA Rising, will increase incrementally by approximately $12.0 million 10 S14.0 million in
fiscal 2015, and an additional $9.0 million to $10.0 million in fiscal 2016, respectively. The incremental increase in depreciation expense for fiscal 2015 is
based on the anticipation of apening approximately forty percent of the new stadium in time for Budweiser Speedweeks 2015, As a result, our total
depreciation expense for fiscal 20135 is estimated to be between approximately $93.0 million and $97.0 million, and approximately $100.0 million to

$105.0 million annually, in fiscal 2016, and then decreasing, due ta lower capital spending, to approximately $85.0 million to $90.0 million beginning in
fiscal 2019,

ONE DAYTONA

We entered into a 50/50 joint venture with Atlanta-based Jacoby Development, Inc. to develop a mixed-use entertainment destination, named ONE
DAYTONA, located adjacent to our 188,000 square foot affice building, the Intemational Motorsports Center, an |89 acres we own located directly across
from our Daytona motorspons entetainment facility.

We announced that the ONE DAYTONA joint venture has selected Shaner Hotels and Prime Hospitality Group ("PHG") as its hotel parntners, Shaner Hotels
and PHG are planning a 145.room full-service boutique property and are working with global hospitality leader Marrioit Intemational to bring an exclusive
Mamiott Autograph Collection hotel to Daytona Beach and ONE DAYTONA.

The joint venture conlinues to refine the conceptual design for the first phase of ONE DAYTONA. Bass Pro Shops £, America’s most popular outdoor store,
and Cobb Theatres, the highly respecied Southeastem-based exhibitor, have exccuted Jeases to anchor ONE DAYTONA. The joint venture is in active
discussions with other potential anchor tenants for ONE DAYTONA. We have approved land use entitlements for ONE DAYTONA to allow forup to 1.4
mitlion square feet of retail/dining/entertainment, 2,500 seats in a movie theater, 660 hotel rooms, 1,350 units of residential, 567,000 square feet of

additional office space and 500,000 square feet of commercial/industrial space, Final designs are being completed for ONE DAYTONA, and the joint venture
will incorporate the results of market studies, project costs and financing structures.

The joint venture has formed a Community Development District ("CDD") for the putpose of installing and maintaining public infrastructure at ONE
DAYTONA. The CDD is a local, special purpose govemnment framework authorized by Chapter 190 of the Florida Statutes for managing and financing
infrastructure to support community development.

The CDD has negotiated agreements with the City of Daytona Beach and Volusia County for a total of $40.0 million in incentives to finance a portion of the
estimated $53.0 million in infrastructure required to move forward with the ONE DAYTONA project. We are currently proceeding with the leasing phasc of
the project while simultancously completing the various necessary requirements for the CDD ta aceess the incentives to stan infrastructure work.

Speedway Developments

In light of NASCAR's publicly announced position regarding additional polential realignment of the NASCAR Sprint Cup Series schedule, we believe there
are still potential development opportunities for public/private partnerships in new, underserved markets across the country that would create value for our
shareholders. However, we are not currently pursuing any new speedway development opportunities.

Infation

We do not betieve that inflation has had a matenal impact on our operating costs and earnings,
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standands Board ("FASB") issued ASU No. 2013-02, “Reperting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated
Othier Comprehensive Income™. The objective of this Update is ta set requirements for presentation for significant items reclassified to net income in their
entirety during the period and for items not reclassified to net income in their entirety during the period. For public entities, the amended requirements are
cffective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 201 2. This statement only impacts disclosures of

reclassification adjustments and is nol material to our financial statement presentation. We have adopted the amendments of this statement in the first quarter
of fiscal 2014.

In May 2014, FASB, in conjunction with the Intemational Accounting Standards Board, issued ASU No, 2014+09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers™,
The objective of this Update is to significantly enhance comparability and clarify principles of revenue recognition practices across entities, industrics,

jurisdictions, and capital markets. For a public entity, the amendments in this Update are eflective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2016, including interim
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periods within (hat reponing period. Early application is not permitted. The standard can be adopted either retrospectively to cach prior reponting petiod
presented or os & cumulative effect adjustment as of the date of adoption. We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting this new guidance on our
finaneial position and results of operations and will adopt the provisions of this statcment in the first quanter of fiscal 2018.

Factors That May Affect Operating Results

This report and the documents incomporated by reference may contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 2s amended. You can identify a forward-looking statement by our use afthe
words “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,” “may,” “believe,” "objective,” “projection,” “forecast,” ““goal,” and similar expressions. These forward-looking
statements include our statements regarding the timing of future events, our anticipated future operations and our anticipated future financial position and
cash requirements. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in our forward-looking statements are reasonable, we do not know whether our
expectations will prove correct. We disclase the important factors that could cause our actual results to differ from our expectations in cautionary statements
made in this report and in other filings we have made with the SEC. All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us orto
persons acting on our behallare expressly qualified in their entirety by these cautionary statements. Qur actual results could differ materially from those

anticipated in these forward-looking stalements as a result of the risk factors described in this report and other factors set forth in or incorporated by reference
in this report.

Many of these factors are beyond our ability to control or predict. We caution you not to put undue reliance on forward-looking statements or to project any
future results based on such statements or on present or prior eamings levels. Additional information conceming these, or other factors, which could cause the

actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements is contained from time to time in our other SEC filings. Copics of those filings
are available from us and/or the SEC.

[TEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest mtes in the normal course of business. Our interest income and expense are most sensitive lo changes
in the general level of US. interest rates and the LIBOR rate. In order to manage this exposure, from time to time we use a combination of debt instruments,
including the use of derivatives in the form ofinterest rate swap and lock agreements. We do not enter into any derivatives for trading purposes,

The objective afour asset management activities is to provide an adequate level of interest income and liquidity to fund operations and capital expansion,
while minimizing market risk. We utilize evemight sweep accounts and short-term investments to minimize the interest rate risk. We do not believe that our
interest rate risk related to our cash equivalents and short-temm investments is material due to the nature of the investments,

Qur objective in managing our interest rate risk on our debt is to negotiate the most favomble interest rate structures that we can and, as market conditions
evolve, adjust our balance of fixed and variable rate debt to optimize our overall borrowing costs within reasonable risk parameters. Interest rate swaps and

locks are used from time Lo time to convert a portion af our debt portfolio from g variable rte to a fixed rate or from a fixed rate to a variable rate as well as to
lock in certain rates for future debt issuances.

The following analysis provides quantitative information regarding our exposure to interest rate risk. We utilize valuation models to evaluate the sensitivity
of the fair value of financial instruments with exposure to market risk that assume instantaneous, pamallel shifts in interest rate yield curves. There are certain

limitations inherent in the sensitivity analyses presented, primarily due to the assumption that interest mies change instantaneously, In addition, the analyses
are unable to reflect the complex market reactions that normally would arise from the market shifls modeled.

We have various debt instruments that arc issued at fixed rates, These financial instruments, which have a fixed rate of interest, are exposed to fluctuations in
fair value resuiting from changes in market interest rates. The fair vatues of long-tenm debt are based on quoted market prices at the date of measurement, Our
credit facilities approximate fair value as they bear interest rates that approximate market. At November 30, 2014, we had no variable debt outstanding.

At November 30, 2014, the fair value of our total long-term debt as determined by quotes from financial institutions was approximately $291.2 million. The
potential decrease in fair value resulting from a hypothetical 10.0 percent shift in interest rates would be approximately $6.7 million at November 30, 2014,

Credit tisk arises from the possible inability of counterpanties to mect the tenms of their contracts on a net basis, However, we minimize such risk exposures for

these instruments by limiting counterparties to large banks and financial institutions that meet established credit guidelines. We da not expect to incur any
lasses as a result of counterparty default,
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[TEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Sharcholders
Intemational Speedway Camporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Intemational Speedway Cerporation (the "Company”) as of November 30, 2014 and
2013, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, changes in sharcholders® equity, and cash flows for each of the threc
years in the period ended November 30, 2014. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at ltem 15(a). These financial

statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our respansibility is to express an opinion oa these financial statements and
schedule based on ouraudits.

We conducied our audils in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standands require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financizl statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overal! financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinian.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
Intemational Speedway Corporation at November 30, 2014 and 2013, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for cach of the three
years in the period ended November 30, 2014, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our apinion, the related financial
statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents faitly in all material respects the information set
forth therein,

We atso have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Intemational Speedway
Comporation’s intemal control aver financial reporting as of November 30, 2014, based on crileria established in Intemal Control-Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (1992 framework) and our report dated January 27, 2015, expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

/s! Emst & Young LLP
Centified Public Accountants

Jacksonville, Florida
January 27,2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Sharcholders
Intemational Speedway Corporation

We have audited Intemational Speedway Corporation’s intemal control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2014, based on criteria established in
Intemal Control-Integrated Framework issucd by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (1992 framework) {the COSO
criteria). International Speedway Comporation’s management is responsible for maintaining effective intemal control aver financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of intemal control aver financial reporting included in the accompanying Report of Management on Intemal Control aver
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s intemal control over financial reponing based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective intemal control over financial reporting was maintained in 21l material
respects. Qur audit included obtaining an understanding of intemal control over financial reponting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing
and evaluating the design and openting effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis foc our opinion.

A company’s intemal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial rcparting
and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepied accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes thosc palicics and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary ta penuit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally aceepied accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assumnce regarding prevention or
timely detection ofunauthorized acquisition, usc or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intemal control over financial reponting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
eflectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Intemational Speedway Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective intemal control over financial reporting as of November 30,
2014, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance shects
of Intemational Speedway Corporation as of November 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income,
changes in sharcholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended November 30, 2014 of International Speedway Corpormtion
and cur report dated January 27, 2015 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

s/ Emst & Young LLP
Centified Public Accountants

Jacksonville, Florida
January 27,2015
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INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY CORPORATION
Consolidated Balance Sheets

November 30,

2013 2014

{in thousands, except share
and per share amounts)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash cquivalents s 172,827 § 158,847
Receivables, less allowance of 51,000 in 2013 and 2014, respectively 25910 275398
Inventories 2,619 4,030
Income taxes receivable 17,399 6,202
Defened income taxes 3,122 1,789
Prepaid expenses and other current assels 13,965 8,099
Total Curmrent Assets 235,842 207,565
Propenty and Equipment, net 1,276,976 1,381,190
Other Assets:
Equity investments 134,327 122,565
Intangible assets, net 178,628 178,629
Goodwill 158,791 158,791
Other 72,942 68,911
504,688 488,896
Total Assets $ 2017506 § 2,077,651
LIABSLITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabihnies:
Cumrent portion of long-term debt 5 2807 8 3435
Accounts payable 27,669 41,491
Detemred income 35,679 33,043
Other current liabilities 15,907 18,813
Total Current Liabilities 82,062 96,782
Long-Term Debt 271,680 268,311
Deferred Income Taxes 366,53t 354276
Long-Temn Deferred Income 8,604 9.548
Other Long-Term Liabilities 1,474 2,302
Commitments and Contingencies - -
Sharcholders’ Equity:
Cluss A Common Stock, $.01 par value, 80,000,000 shares authonized; 26,182,518 and
26,248,081 issued and oulstanding in 2013 and 2014, respectively 261 262
Class B Common Stock, $.01 par value, 40,000,000 shares authorized: 19,994,663 and
19,967,202 issued and owtstanding in 2013 and 2014, respectively 200 200
Additional paid-in capitat 445,097 447,518
Retained carnings 846,233 902,433
Accumulated other comprehensive loss {4,638) (3.981)
Total Sharcholders® Equity 1,287,155 1,346,432
Total Liabilities and Sharcholders® Equity 3 2017,506 8 2,071,651

See accompanying notes
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INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Operations

REVENLUES:
Admissions, net
Motamsports related
Food, beverage and merchandise
Other

EXPENSES:

Direct:
Prize and point fund monies and NASCAR sanction fecs
Motorsporis related
Food, beverage and merchandise

General and administrative

Depreciation and amortization

Losses on retirements oflong-lived assets

Operating income
Interest income
Interest expense
Loss ont eardy redemption of debt
Other
Equity in net income from equity investments
Income before income taxes
Income taxes
Net income
Eamings per share:
Basic and diluted

Dividends per share
Basic weighted average shares outstanding

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding

Year Ended November 30,

1012 M3 014
(in thousands, except share and per share
amaounts)

$ 136,099 129,824 129,688
4 I6r_699 425,530 433,738

45,985 44,046 72,880

13,584 13,240 15,630

612,367 612,640 651,936

154,673 159,349 162,088

125,072 125928 128,229

35,642 33,150 58,265

102,958 104,925 108,563

71870 93,989 90_,352

P1.143 16,607 10,148

507358 533,048 558,545

105,009 78,692 93,391

102 96 2,107
(13,501) (15221) {9,182)

(9,144) — —

1,008 75 5,380

2,757 9,434 8ol6

86,231 73,076 100,612

31,653 27,784 33,233

$ 54,578 45,292 67,379
5 1.18 0.97 145
) 0.20 0.22 024
46.386,355 46.470.647 46,559,232
46,396.631 46,486,561 46,573,038

See accompanying notes
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INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incame

Year Ended November 30,

2012 2013 2014
(in thousands)

Net income 3 54578 8§ 4529288 S 67,379
Other comprehensive income

Foreign cumency translation, net of tax benefit (expense) of ($8), $0 and 50,

respectively (13) —_ -

Amorization of interest rate swap, net of tax benefit of §424, $424 and $425,

respectively 658 658 657
Comprehensive income $ 5322385 45950 S 68,036

See accompanying notes



INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Sharcholders’ Equity

{in thousands)

Class A Class 3
Cammon Comman Accumulated
Stock Stock Additlonal Total
5.01 Par $.01 Par Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Shareholders’
Value Value Capital Earnings (Loss) Income Equity
Balance at November 30, 2011 $ 264§ 200 8§ H5005 S 772938 (3945) 8 1,212,466
Net income — — e 54,578 — 54,578
Other comprehensive income — - — — 645 645
Cash dividends {$.20 per share) -- -— - (9,283) — (9,283)
Reacquusition of previously issued common sioek %) — {3,491} (7,061) — {10,556}
Other - -— (914) — — (914)
Stock-based compensation = - 1,874 - — 1,874
Balance at November 30, 2012 260 200 442474 811,172 {5,296) 1248810
Net income - — 45,292 —_ 45,292
Other comprehensive income - e - — 6358 658
Exercise of stock options 1 - 340 — — 341
Cash dividends ($ 22 per share) — — — {10,229) — (10,229}
Reacquisitien of previously issued cammon stock — — {259) - - 259}
Other ) — — 9 —- —_ 9
Stock-based com_pensnﬁun - — 2,533 — — 2,533
Balance at November 30, 2013 261 200 445,097 846,235 {4,638) 1.287,155
Net incorme — — 67,379 - 61379
(hbier comprehensive income - - — - 657 657
Cash dividends (8.24 per share) = - = {11,181 - {11,181)
Reacquisition of previously issued commuon stock - - {323) — — (323
Other 1 -- (82) o —_ (81}
Stock-based compensation — — 2,826 - . 24826
Balance ot November 30, 2014 s 2620mS 200 0 447,518 § 902433 (3,981) % 1,346,432

Sce accompanying notes
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INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended Navember 30,
2012 2013 2014

(in thousandsy

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 54578 § 45292 % 67,379
Adjustments to reconeile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Gain on assumption of controlling interest in equity investee - - (5447
Depreciation and amorntization 71,870 93,989 50,352
Stock-based compensation 1,874 1533 2,820
Amortization of financing costs 1,605 1,397 1,779
Interest received on Staten Island note receivable — - 5,087
Defermed income taxes 12,184 36,012 {12.346)
Income from equity investments (2,757) (9,434) {8,916)
Distribution from equity investee — 8216 10,076
Losses on retirements of long-lived assets, non-cash 8,035 10,023 2,644
Other, net 1829) (246) 380
Changes in operating asscts and liabilities
Receivables, net 5268 4,920 {1,776)
Inventories, prepaid expenses and other assets 966 479) 1977
Accounts payable and other liabilities 12,3213 3.658 {517)
Defemed income {3,023) (8,990) (1,692)
Income taxes (2,345) (13,716) 11,041
Net cash provided by operating activitics [50,925 173,395 162,847
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures (82,872) (85,539) (183.936)
Disttibution from equity investee and affiliate 11,000 13,284 £1,924
Equity investments and advances to affiliate (51,984 - (1,322
Procecds from sale of Staten [sland property — 5322 6,100
Cash included in assumption of ownership interest in equity investce - — 4,686
Other, net 1,423 646 32
Net cash used in investing activitics (122,433) (66,287) {162,516)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds under credit facility 130,000 — -
Payments under credit facility (180,000} — -
Proceeds from long-term debt 140,000 — —
Payment oflong-teom debt (89,304} (2,513} {2,807)
Defemred financing fees {1,046) — —_
Exercise of Class A comman stock options ~—— 341 o
Cash dividends paid (9,283} (10,229) (L181
Reacquisition of previously issued common stock {10,556) (259) {323)
Net cash used in financing activities (60,191) (12,660} {(§4,311)
Net {decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalenty {31,699) 94,448 (13.980)'
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of yeur 110,078 78,379 172,827
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year $ 78,3790 % 1728278 158,847

See accompanying notes
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INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOVEMBER 30,2014

NOTE | — DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS: Intemational Speedway Corporation ("ISC"), including its wholly owned subsidiaries (collectively the “Company™), is a

leading promoter of matorsports themed entertainment activities in the United States. As of November 30, 2014, the Company owned and'or operated 13 of
the nation’s major motorsports entertaimment facilitics as follows:

Track Name

Lacation Track Length
fDaytona Intemational Speedway Daytona Beach, Florida 2.5 miles
Talladega Superspecdway Talladega, Alabama 2.7 miles
Kansas Speedway Kansas City, Kansas 1.5 miles
Richmond Intemational Raceway Richmond, Virginia 0.8 miles
Michigan Intemational Specdway Brooklyn, Michigan 2.0 miles
Auto Club Speedway of Southem Califomia Fontana, Califomia 2.0 miles
Darington Raceway Darlington, South Carolina 1.3 miles
Chicagoland Speedway Jaliet, linois 1.5 miles
Martingville Spegdway_ Martinsville, Virginia 0.5 miles
Phoenix Intemational Raceway Phocnix, Arizona 1.0 miles
Homestead-Miami Speedway Homestead, Florida 1.5 miles
Watkins Glen International Watkins Glen, New York 3.4 miles
Route 66 Raceway Joliet, llinois 0.25 miles

In 2014, these motorsports entertainment facilities promoted well over 100 stock car, open wheel, sponts car, truck, motorcycte and other racing events,
including:

+ 21 National Association for Stock Car Anta Racing ("NASCAR™) Sprint Cup Series evenis;

+ 13 NASCAR Xfinity Senes events;

* 9 NASCAR Camping World Truck Series ¢vents;

* 3 intemational Motor Spons Association (“TMSA™) Tudor United SportsCar Championship Series events including the premier sponts car endurnce
event in the United States, the Rolex 24 at Daytona;

+  One Nationa! Hot Rod Association (“NHRA") Mellow Yellow drag racing series cvent;
¢ OneindyCar ("IndyCar”) Series event; and

* A numberof other prestigious stock car, spons car, open wheel and motoreycle events,

The general nature of the Company’s business is 2 motorsports themed amusement enterprise, fumishing amusement to the public in the form of motorspons
themed entertainment. The Company's matorsports themed event operations consist principally of meing events at these major motorsports entenainment
facilities, which, in total, currently have approximately 831,500 grandstand seats and 527 suites. The Company also conducts, either through operations of
the particular facility or through centain wholly owned subsidiaries operating under the name “Americrown,” souvenir merchandising operations, food and
beverage concession operations and catening services, both in suites and chalets, for customers at its motorsports entertainment facifities

At the beginning of fiscal 2013, the NASCAR Nationwide Series became the NASCAR Xfinity Series. Throughout this document, the naming convention for
this series is consistent with the cunent branding,

Motor Racing Network, Inc. (“MRN™), the Company’s proprietary radio network, produces and syndicates to radio stations )ive coverage of the NASCAR
Sprint Cup, Xfinity and Camping World Truck series races and certain other races conducted at the Company's motorsports cntertainment facilities, as well as
some races from motersports entectainment facilities the Company does not own. In addition, MRN provides production services for Sprint Vision, the
trackside barge screen video display units, at NASCAR Sprint Cup Series event weekends that take place at the Company's motorspons facilities, as well as at
Daver

46



Iable of Contents

Intemational Specdway and Pocono Raceway. MRN also produces and syndicates daily and weekly NASCAR racing-themed programs.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION: The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Intemational Speedway Comporation, and
its wholly owned subsidiaries. All material intercompany a2ccounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: For pumposcs of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, bank demand deposit accounts

and ovemight sweep accounts used in the Company’s cash management program. All highly liquid investments with stated maturities of three months or less
from the date of purchase are classified as cash equivalents.

The Company maintained its cash and cash equivalents with a limited number of financial institutions at November 30, 2014,

RECEIVABLES: Reccivables are stated at their estimated collectible amounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts is estimated based on historical
cxperience of write offs and current expectations of conditions that might impact the collectability of accounts.

INVENTORIES: Inventories, consisting of finished goods, are stated at the lower of cost, determined on the first-in, first-out basiz, or market,

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT: Property and cquipment, including improvements to existing facilities, are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided for
financial reporting purposes using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings, grandstands and motorspaits entertainment facilities 10-30 years
Fumiture and equipment 3-8 years
Leaschold improvements are depreciated over the shorter af the related lease term or their estimated usefu! lives. The camying values of property and
equipment are evaluated for impairment upon the occumence of an impairment indicator based upan expected future undiscounted cash flows. If events or

circumstances indicate that the camying value of an asset may not be recaverable, an impainment loss would be recognized equal to the difference between
the camrying value of the asset and its fair value.

CQUITY INVESTMENTS: The Company’s investments in joint ventures and other investees where it can exent significant influence on the investee, but does
not have effective control over the investee, are accounted forusing the cquity method of accounting. The Company’s equity in the net income (loss) from
equity method investments is recorded as income {loss) with a corresponding increase (decrease) in the investment. Distributions received from the equity
investees reduce the investment. Distributions from equity investees representing the Company’s share of the equity investec's eamings are treated as cash
proceeds from operations while distributions in excess of the equity investee's camings are considered a return of capital and treated as cash proceeds from
investing activitics in the Company's consalidated statement of cash flows. The Company recognizes the effeets of transactions involving the sale or
distribution by an equity investee of its common stock as capital transactions.

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS: All business combinations are accounted for under the purchase method. The excess of the cost of the acquisition
over fair value of'the net assets acquired (including recognized intangibles) is recorded as goodwill, Business combinations involving existing motorsports
entertainment facilities commonly result in a significant portion of the purchase price being allocated 1o the fair value of the contract-based intangible asset
associated with long-term relationships manifest in the sanction agreements with sanctioning bodies, such as NASCAR and IMSA. The continuity of sanction
agreements with these bodies has historically enabled the Company to host these motorsports events year afler year. While individual sanction agreements
may be of terms as short as enc year, a significant portion of the purchase price in excess of the fair value of acquired tangible assets is commonly paid to
acquire anticipated future cash flows from events promoted pursuant to these agreements which are expected to continue for the foreseeable future and
therefore. in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“*ASC™) 803, are recorded as indefinite-lived intangible assets recognized apart from
goadwill. The Company’s goodwill and ather intangible assets are all associated with our Motorsports Event segment.

The Company follows applicable suthoritative guidance on accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets which specifies, among other things, non-
amortization of goodwilt and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and requires testing for possible impairment. either upon the occurmrence afan
impaimment indicator or at ieast annually. The Company completes its annual testing in its fiscal founh quarter, based on assumptions regarding the
Company's future business outlook and expected
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future discounted cash flows attributable to such assets (using the fair value assessment provision of applicable authoritative guidance), suppotted by quated
market prices or comparable transactions where available or applicable,

In connection with the Company’s fiscal 2014 assessment of goodwill and intangible assets for possible impaimment, the Company uscd the methodology
described above. The Company believes its methods used o determine fair value and evaluate possible impairment were appropriate, relevant, snd represent
methods customarily available and used for such purposes, The Company’s latest annual assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets in the foutth
quarnier of fiscal 2014 indicated there had been no impainnent and the fair value substantially exceeded the camying value for the respective reporting units

During fiscal 2014, the Company believes there has been no significant change in the long-term fundamentals of its ongoing motorsports cvent business. The
Company believes its present operational and cash flow outlook funther support its conclusion, While the Company continues to review and analyze many
factors that can impact its business prospects in the future, its analysis is subjective and is bused on conditions existing at, and trends leading up ta, the time
the estimates and assumptions are made. Different conditions or assumptions, or changes in cash flows or profitability, if significant, could have a material
adverse effect on the outcome of the impairment evaluation and the Cotmpany’s future condition or results of operations.

DEFERRED FINANCING FEES: Deferred financing fees are amortized over the temm of the related debt and are included in other non-cument assets.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME: Comprehensive income is the changes in equity of an entemrise except those resulting from shareholder transactions.
Accumulated other comprehensive income consists of the following as of November 30, {in thousands):

2013 2014
Interest mtc swap, net of tax benefit of $3,025 and $2,600, respectively $ {4,638) § (3,981)

INCOME TAXES: Income taxes have been provided using the liability method. Under this method the Company s estimates of deferred income taxes and the
significant items giving rise 10 deferred tax assets and liabilitics reflect its assessment of actual future taxes 1o be paid on items reflected in its financial
statements, giving consideration to both timing and probability of realization.

The Company establishes tax reserves related to certain matters, including penaltics and interest, in the period when it is determined that it is probable that
additional taxes, penalties and interest will be paid, and the amount is reasonably estimable. Such tax reserves are adjusted, as needed, in light of changing

circumstances, such as statute of limitations expirations and other developments relating to uncenain tax positions and current tax items under examination,
appeal or litigation.

REVENUE RECOGNITION: Advance ticket sales and eventorelated revenues for fature events are deferred until camed, which is generally once the events
are conducted. The recognition of event-related expenses is matched with the recognilion of event-related revenues.

NASCAR contracts dircetly with certain network providers for television rights to the entire NASCAR Sprint Cup, Xfinity and Camping World Truck series
schedules. Event promoters share in the television rights fees in accordance with the provisien of the sanction agreement for cach NASCAR Sprint Cup,
Xfinity and Camping World Truck series event. Under the terms of this amangement, NASCAR retains 10.0 percent of the gross broadeast rights fees allocated
to cach NASCAR Sprint Cup, Xfinity and Camping World Truck series event as a component of its sanction fees. The promoler records 90.0 percent of the
gross broadcast rights fees as revenue and then records 25.0 percent of the gross broadcast rights fees as part of its awards to the competitors. Ultimately, the
promoter retsins 65.0 percent of the net cash proceeds fFom the gross broadeast rights fees allocated to the event.

The Company's revenues from marketing parinerships are paid in accordance with negotiated contracts, with the identities of partners and the terms of
sponsorship changing from time to time. Some of our marketing partnership agreements are for multiple facilities and/or events and include multiple
specified elements, such as tickets, hospitality chalets, suites, display space and signage for cach included event. The allocation of such marketing
parnership revenues between the multiple clements, events and facilities is based on relative sclling price. The sponsorship revenue allocated to an event is
recognized when the event is conducied.

Revenues and related costs from the sale of merchandise to retail customers, intemet sales and direct sales to dealers are recognized at the tie of sale.
Kansas Specdway ("Kansas”™) and Chicagoland Speedway ("Chicagoland®) offer Preferred Access Speedway Seating ("PASS") agreements, which give

purchasers the exclusive nght and obligation to purchase season-ticket packages for certain sanctioned racing events annually, under specificd terms and
conditions. Amang the conditions, licensees are required to purchase all
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season-ticket packages when and as offered each year. PASS agreements automatically terminate without refund should owners not purchase any offered
season tickets.

Net fees received under PASS agreements are deferred and are amortized into income over the term of the agreements, Long-tem deferred income under the
PASS agreements totals approximately $6.5 million and $3.5 million at November 30, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

ADVERTISING EXPENSE: Advertising costs are expenscd as incurred. Adventising expensc was spproximatcly $15.3 million, $15.1 million and $16.5
million for the years ended November 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

LOSS CONTINGENCIES: Legal and other costs incurred in conjunction with loss contingencies are expensed as incurmred.

USE OF ESTIMATES: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. genenlly accepted accounting prnciples requires management to
make estimates and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statemients and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS: In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued ASU Na, 2013-02, “Reporting of
Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income”. The objective of this Update is to sct requirements for presentation for significant
items reclassified to net incame in their entirety during the period and for items not reclassified to net income in their entirety during the period. For public
entitics, the amended requirements are effective for fiscal ycars, and interim periods within thosc years, beginning afier December 15, 2012, This statement

only impacts disclosures of reclassification adjustments and is not material to the Company’s financial statement presentation, The Company hus adopted the
amendments of this statement in the first quarter of fiscal 2014,

In May 2014, FASB, in conjunctien with the Intemational Accounting Standards Board, issued ASU No. 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.
The objective of this Update isto significantly enhance compambility and clarify principles of revenue recognition practices across entitics, industries,
jurisdictions, and capital markets. For a public entity, the amendments in this Update are effective for annual reponting periods beginning after December 15,
2016, including interim periods within that reponing period. Eady application is not permitted. The standard can be adopted either retrospectively to each
priorreponting period presented oras a cumulative effect adjustment as of the date of adoption. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting
this new guidance on its financial position and results of operations and will adopt the provisions of this statement in the first quarter of fiscal 2018.

NOTE 2 — EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted camings per share for the years ended November 30, (in thousands, except share and per
share amounts):

2012 2013 2014
Numerator: i
Net income g 54578 § 45292 8 67,379
Denominator:
Weighted average shares outstanding 46,386,355 46,470.647 46,559,232
Common stock options 10,276 15,914 13,806
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 46,396,631 46,486,561 46,573,038
Basic and diluted camings per shan; S L18 § 097 § 1.45
Anti-dilutive shares excluded in the computation of diluted eamings per
share 231,496 143,656 121,462

49



Table of Contents

MOTE 3 -— PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Propenty and equipment consists of the following as of November 30, (in thousands):

2013 014

Land and leaschold improvements , s 246,138 8 247,883
Buildings, grandstands and mototsports entertainment facilitios 1,520,405 1,529,904
Fumitre and equipment 3 169,979 175,845
Construction in progress 87,318 245,642
2,023 840 2,199,274

Less accumulated depreciation 746,864 818,084
3 1,276,376 % 1,381,190

Depreciation expense was approXimately $77.8 million, $94.0 mitlion and $20.2 million for the years ended November 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014,
respectively. The depreciation expense for the years ended November 30,201 3 and 2014 includes approximately $15.4 million and $11.1 million,
respectively, of accelerated depreciation that was recorded due to the shortening the serviee lives of cenain assets associated with DAYTONA Rising and
capacity management initiatives.

NOTE 4 — RETIREMENTS OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Company recorded before-tax charges relating to retirements of long-lived assets during the fiscal years ending November 30, as follows (in thousands):

212 2013 2014
Losses on retirements of long-lived assets s 11,143 5 16,607 $ i0,148
Less: cash portion of losses on asset retirements 3,088 6,584 7,"504
Non-cash losses on retirements of long-lived assets 3 8,055 $ 10,023 $ 2,644

The fiscal 2012 retirements are primarily attributable wo the ongoing removal of cenain assets in connection with the repaving of the track and grandstand
cnhancements at Phoenix Intemational Raceway (“Phoenix™) and the grandstand enhancements at Kansas and Talladcga Superspeedway (“Talladega™).

The fiscal 2013 retirements are primarily attributablce to the ongoing removal of centain assets in connection with the track repaving at Kansas, a5 well as
guest enhancements at Talladega, Richmond Intemational Raceway (“Richmond™) and cenain of the Company's other facilitics.

The fiscal 2014 retirements are primarily auributable to the removal of assets not fully depreciated in connection with DAYTONA Rising, capacity
management initiatives and other capital improvements.

NOTE 5 — EQUITY AND OTHER INVESTMENTS
Hollywood Casino a1 Kansas Speedway

Kansas Entenainment, LLC, {*Kansas Entertainment”) a 50/50 joint venturz of Penn Hollywood Kansas, Inc. {*Penn), a subsidiary of Penn Nutional Gaming,
Inc. and Kansas Speedway Development Comparation (“KSDC™), a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of ISC, operates the Holtywood-themed casino and

branded destination entertainment facility, overlooking tum two at Kansas Speedway. Penn is the managing member of Kansas Entertainment and is
responsible for the operations of the casino.

The Company has accounted for Kansas Entertainment as an equity investment in its financial statements as of November 30, 2014, The Company's 50.0
percent portion of Kunsas Entettainment's net income was approximately $2.8 million , $9.4 million and $8.9 million for fiscal years 2012, 2013 and 2014,
respectively, and is included in equity in net income from equity investments in the Company's consolidated statements of eperations, Included in the
Company's fiscal 2013 income from equity inv estment amount is approximately $1.1 million related to a one-time propeny tax refund. Beginning February
2014, Kansas Entertainment began recording expense equal to 1.0 percent of gross gaming revenue since it did not commence with construction of a hotel by
the original deadline. Included in the Company’s income from equity investment amounts for fiscal 2014 is approximately $0.6 miltion expense,
respectively, related to this penalty,
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Distributions from Kansas Ententainment, for the years ended November 30, are as foltows (in thousands):

2012 2013 2014
Distribution from profits § - '3 83160 § 10,076
Distrtbution in excess of profits 11,0600 13,284 11,924
Total Distributions $ 1,000 ' 21,500 S 22,000

Subsequent to November 30, 2014, the Company received an additional $35.5 million from Kansas Ententainment.
Staten [sland Propenty

On August 3, 2013, the Company announced that it sold its 676 acre parcel of propenty located in Staten Island, New York, to Staten Island Marine
Developmient, LLC (“Marine Development”). Marine Development purchased 100 pereent of the outstanding equity membership interests of 380
Development LLC (380 Development”), a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of ISC and owner of the Staten Island property, for a tetaf sales price of $80.0

million. In addition, the Company previously received approximately $4.2 million for an option provided to the purchaser that is nonrefundable and does
not apply to the $80.0 million sales price.

The Company received 57.5 million, less closing and other administrative costs, of the sales price at closing. The remaining sales price was financed with the
Company holding a secured morigage interest in 380 Development as well as the underlying property. The morigage balance bears interest at an snnual rate
of 7.0 pereent, In accordance with the terms of the agreement, the Company has received a principal payment of approximately $6.1 million plus interast on
this mornigage balance through November 30, 2014, and will receive the remaining purchase price of $66.4 million, due March 5, 2016. Interest an the
remaining mortgage balance is due quarterly, in arrears, and Marine Development is cusrent with all payments through January 20135, Based on the level of
Marine Development's initial investment at closing and continuing investment, the Company has accounted for the transaction using the cost recavery
method and has deferred the recognition of profit of approximately $1.9 million, and intercst totaling approximately $5.6 million at November 3¢, 2014,
until the camying amount of the propeny is recovered, which will not be until the final payment is made.

The net proceeds from the sale, combined with the mongage interest and related total cash tax benefit, will provide the Company with approximately S118.0
million in incremental cash flow through the term of the mantgage.

Motorsports Authentics

Prior to January 31, 2014, the Company was partners with Speedway Motorsponts, Inc. ("SM1") in a 50/50 joint venture, SMISC, LLC, which, through its
wholly owned subsidiary Motorsports Authentics, LLC conducts business under the name Motorsports Authentics (“MA"). MA designs. promotes, markets
and distributes motorsports licensed merchandise. On January 31, 2014, SM{abandoned its interest and rights in SMISC, LLC, consequently bringing the
Company's ownership to 100.0 percent, MA's operations are included in the Company's consolidated operations subsequent to the date of SMI's
abandonment. Prior ta January 31, 2014, MA was accounted for as an cquity investment in the Company’s financial statements,

As a result of SMT's abandonment of their interest in SMISC, LIL.C, the Company recorded other income of approximately $5.4 million, representing the fair
vajue of MA, over the carying value, as of January 31, 2014. The fair value was based on a discounted cash flow analysis using level 3 inputs. Most of the
fair value represents the value of MA's working capital and the fair value was not sensitive to assumptions used in the discounted cash fiow analysis. In
addition, the Company recognized tax benefits of upproximately $4.0 million, representing the 1ax benefit associated with various operating loss

carry forwards of MA that are expected 10 be realized in its consolidated tax filings in the future and certain other tax filing positions of SMISC, LLC. In
November 2014, the Company recognized an impairment of a long-lived intangible asset of approximately $0.6 million, which is included in non-cash losses

on retirements of long-lived assets. MA's operating income contribution, subsequent 1o consolidation, was immaterial, and is included in the Motorsports
Event segment.

Prior to the SMIabandonment of SMISC, LLC, no cquity incame was recognized in prior periods, by the Company, as MA operated at breakeven,
Swnmarized financial infonnation of the Company’s equity investments as ofand for the years ended November 30, are as follows (in thousands):
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2012 2013 2014
Cumrent assels § 46,054 § 43,063 % 33340
Noncurrent assels 258,23_9 238,772 215226
Current liabilitics 22379 21,510 19,273
Noncugrent liabilities 1,819 1,242 -
Hct sales 144,715 170,721 141,849
Gross profit 63,516 82,838 72,031
Operating income 8914 21,776 20,153
Net income 9,266 21986 20,153

NOTE 6 — GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The gross carrying value and accumulated amortization of the major classes of intangible assets relating to the Motorsports Event segment as of November
30, are as follows (in thousands):

2013
Gross Net
Carryling Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amartlzation Amaunt
Amortized intangiblc assets:
Food, bevermge and merchandise contracts S 1w s B 8§ 2
Other 92 72 20
Total amontized intangible assets 102 80 il
Non-amortized intangible asseis:
NASCAR — sanction agreemients 177,813 — 177,843
Other 793 = 793
Total non-amortized intangible assets 178,606 —_ 178.606
Total intangible assets $ 178,708 § 80 § 178,628
20t4
Gross Net
Carrying Accumuiated Carrying
Amount Amartization Anount
Amortized intangible assets:
Foad, bevermge and merchandise contracts S ¢ 8 9 5 |
Other 109 87 22
Total amortized intangible assets 119 96 23
Non-amortized intangibles assets:
NASCAR — sanction agreements 177,813 - 177,813
Other 793 — 793
Total non-amortized intangible assets 178,606 — 178,606
[Tatal intangible pssets $ 178,725 S 96, S 178,629

The following table presents current and expected amortization expense of the existing intangible assets as of November 30, for each of the following periods
(in thousands):
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IAmortization expense for the year ended November 30, 2014 . 3 16
Estimated amontization expense for the year ending November 30:
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

= — =] o =)

There were no changes in the carying value of goodwill during fiscal 2013 and 2014.

NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debi consists of the following as of November 30, {in thousands):

2013 2014

4.63 percent Senior Notes b3 63,000 § 65,000
3,95 percent Senior Notes 100,000 100,060
4 .82 percent Revenue Bonds 662 339
6.25 percent Term Loan 49,948 49,524
TIF bond debt service funding commitment 58,877 56,883
Revolving Credit Facility - _—
274,487 271,746
Less: current portion 2,807 3,435

3 271,680, S 268,311

Schedule of Payments {in thousands)
Forthe year ending November 30:

2015 $ 3435
2016 3,408
2017 3,738
2018 4,091
2319 4,522
Thereafter 253,069
272,263

Net preminm {517}
Total $ 271,746

The Company's $65.6 million principal amount of senjor unsecured notes (*4.63 percent Senior Notes™)bear interest at 4.63 percent and are due January
2021, require semi-annual interest payments on January 18 and July 18 through their maturity. The 4.63 percent Senior Notes may be redeemed in whole or
in part, at the Company”s option, at any time or from thne ta time at redemption prices as defined in the indenture. Certain of the Company’s wholly owned
domestic subsidianes are guarantors of the 4.63 percent Senior Notes. Cenain restrictive covenants of the 4.63 percent Senior Notes require that the
Company's rtio of its Consolidated Funded Indebiedness to its Consolidated EBITDA ("leverage mtio™ does not exceed 3.50 1o 1.0, and its Consolidated
EBITDA to Consolidated Interest Expense ("interest coverage ratio”) is not less than 2.0 to 1.0, In addition the Company may not permit the aggregate of
certain Priority Debt to exceed 15.0 percent of its Consolidated Net Worth. The 4.63 percent Senior Notes contain various ather affirmative and negative
restrictive covenants including, among others, limitations on liens, sales of assets, mergers and consolidations and certain transactions with aMiliates. As of
November 3¢, 2014, the Company was in compliance with its various restrictive covenants. At November 30, 2014, outstanding principal on the 4,63 percent
Senior Notes was approximately $65.0 mitlion,
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The Company's $100.0 million principal amount of senior unsecured notes (*3.95 percent Senior Notes™) bear interest at 3.95 percent and are due September
2024. The 3.95 percent Senior Notes require semi-annual interest payments on March 13 and September 13 through their maturity. The 3.95 percent Senior
Notes may be redeemed in whole or in part, at our option, at any time or from time to time at redempiion prices as defined in the indentire. Certain of the
Company's wholly owned domestic subsidinries are gusrantors of the 3.93 percent Senior Notes. Cenain restrictive covenants of the 3.95 percent Scnior
Notes require that the Company's leverage ratio does not exceed 3.50 to 1.0, and its interest coverage ratio is not less than 2.0 to 1.0, In addition the
Company may not permit the aggregate of certain Priarity Debt to exceed 15.0 percent of its Consolidated Net Worth. The 3.95 percent Senior Noles conlain
various other affirmative and negative restrictive covenants including, among others, limitations on liens, sales of assets, mergers and consolidations and
certain transactions with affiliates. As of November 30, 2614, the Company was in compliance with its various restrictive covenants, At November 30, 2014,
outstanding principal on the 3.95 percent Senior Notes was approximately $100.0 million.

Debt associated with the Company's wholly owned subsidiary, Chicagoland Speedway, LLC, which owns and eperaies Chicagoland and Route 66 Raceway,
consists of revenue bonds payable (#4.82 percent Revenue Bonds™) consisting of economic developiment revenue bonds issued by the City of Joliet, [Hinois
to finance cenain land improvements. The 4.82 percent Revenue Bonds have an interest rate of 4.82 percent and a monthly payment of approximately
529,000 principal and interest. At November 30, 2014, outstanding principal an the 4,82 percent Revenue Bonds was approximately $0.3 million.

The term lozn (*6.25 percent Term Loan™), related to the Company s Intemational Motorsports Center, has a 25 year term due October 2034, an interest rate

0f6.25 pereent, and a current monthly payment of approximately $292,000 principal and intcrest, At November 30, 2014, the outstanding principal on the
6.25 percent Term Loan was approximately $49.5 million.

At November 30, 2014, in connection with the financing of Kansas Specdway, totaled approximately $56.9 million, net of the unamonized discount, which
is comprised of'a $7.7 million principal amnount, 6.15 percent term bond due Becember |, 2017 and a $49.7 million principal amount, 6.73 percent term bond
duc December 1, 2027. The TIF bonds are repaid by the Unified Govemnment of Wyandotie County/Kansas City, Kansas (“Unified Govemment™) with
payments made in lieu of property taxes (*Funding Commitment”) by the Company's wholly owned subsidiary, Kansas Speedway Corporation (“"KSC™).
Principal (mandatory redemption) payments per the Funding Commitment are payable by KSC on October | of each year, The semi-annual interest

component ofthe Funding Commitment is payable on April 1 and October 1 of cach year. KSC granted a mongage and security interest 1n the Kansas project
for its Funding Commitment obligation,

The Company's $300.0 million revolving credit facifity (*2012 Credit Facility™) contains a feature that allows the Company to incrcase the credit facility to a
total 0f3500.0 million, subject to cenain conditions, provides for separate sub-limits of $23.0 million for standby letters of credit and $10.0 million for swing
line loans. The 2012 Credit Facility is scheduled to mature in November 201 7. Interest accrues, at the Company's option, at either LIBOR plus 100.0 — 162.5
basis points or a base ric loan at the highest of i) Wells Fargo Bank's prime lending rate, ii) the Federal Funds rate, as in effect from time to time, plus 0.5
percent, and 1ii) one montl LIBOR plus 1.0 percent. The 2012 Credit Facility also contains a commitment fee ranging from 0.125 percent to 0.225 percent of
unused amounts available for borrowing. The interest rate margin on the LIBOR bomowings and commitment fee are variable depending on the betierof the
Company's debt mtinyg as determined by specified rating agencies or its leverage ratio. Certain of the Company's whally owned domestic subsidiaries are
guarantors on the 2012 Credit Facility. The 2012 Credit Facility requires that the Company's leverage ratio does not exceed 3.50 to 1.0 (4.0 to 1.0 for the four
quarters ending after any Penmitted Acquisition), and its interest coverage mtio is not less than 2.5 to 1.0. The 2012 Credit Facility also contains various other
affirmative and negative restrictive covenants including, amang others, limitations on indebtedness, investments, sales of assets, certain transactions with
affiliates, entering into certain restrictive agreements and making certain restricted payments as detailed in the agreement. As ol November 30, 2014, the
Company was in compliance with its various restrictive covenants. At November 30, 2014, the Company had no outstanding bormowings under the 2012
Credit Facility,

At November 30, 2014, the Company has approximatcly $4.0 million, net of tax, deferred in accumulated other comprehensive loss associated with a
terminated interest rate swap which is being amortized as interest expense over life ofthe 4.6 pervent Senior Notes (see above), The Company expects to
recognize approximately $0.7 million, net of tax, of this balance during the next 12 months in the consolidated statement of operations.

Total interest expense incurmed by the Company for the years ended November 30, are as follows (in thousands);

012 2013 2014
{Interest expense 5 17,220 § 16,576 § v 16,479
Less: capitalized interest 379 1355 7,297
Net interest sxpense b 13,501 8§ 15,22 [ 18S 9,182
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Financing costs of approximately $4.4 million and $3.7 million, net of accumulated amontization, have been deferred and are included in other assets at

Navember 30, 2013 and 2014, respectively. These costs are being amortized on a straight line method, which approximates the effective yield method, over
the life of the related financing.

NOTE 8 — FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAXES

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the camying amounts of asscts and liabilities for financial tepotting
puposes and the amounts used for income lax purposes.

Significant components ofthe provision for income taxes for the years ended November 30, are as follows {in thousands):

12 2013 2014

Gurrent tax expense (benefit):

Fedenl 5 18466 § (8,008) S 42243

State 1,003 (220) 3336
Deferred tax expense (benefit):

Federal 8,608 33,235 (13,450)

State 3.881 2,777 1,i04

Foreign (303) — -
Provision forincome taxes b9 31653 0§ 27,784 8§ 332313

The reconciliation of income tax expense computed at the federl statutory tax rates to income tax expense from continuing operaticns for the years ended
November 30, is as follows (percent of pre-tax income):

042 2013 2014

Income tax computed at federal statutory rutes 35.0% 35.0% 35.0 %
State income taxes, nel of federa] 1ax benefit 4.5 4.2 38
MA abandonment benefit ' - - (59)
Valuation allowance 2.7 —_ —
State tax credits, net of federal tax benefit {0.6) — -
Other, net 05 (1.2) 0.1

36.1% 38.0 % 33.0%
The companents of the net deferred tax assets (liabilities) at November 30, are as follows {in thousands):

0t3 04

Loss earryforwards s 9819 § 13,518
Deferred revenues 3,684 3313
Accruals 3,754 4,649
Compensation related 3,075 3,556
Interest 4,749 4,077
Other 901 895
Deferred tax assets 26,082 30,008
Valuation allowance (1,363) (7.832)
Deferred tax assets, netof valuation allowsnce 24,719 22,176
Amortization and depreciation (381,144) (369,033)
Equity investment 16,620} {4,285)
Other {3a4) (345)
Deferred tax liabilitics : (388,128) {373,663)
Net deferred tax liabilites ) (363,409) £ {351 487)
Deferred tax assets— current b3 3022 8 2,789
Defeired tux liobilities—noncurrent {366,531) (354,276)
Net deferred tax liabilities ] (363,409) § {351,487)
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The increase in the valuation allowance at November 30, 2014 is primarily a result of the consolidation of MA and related varous state lass camyforwards for
which they camied a full valuation allowance. At November 30, 2014 the Company has deferred tax assets related to these and other vadous state loss
carryforwards totaling approximately $13.5 million that expire in varying amounts beginning in fiscal 2019. The valuation allowance has been provided due
to the uncertainty regarding the realization of stale deferred tax nssets associated with these loss camyforwards. In evaluating the Company's ability to
recover its deferred income tax assets it considers all available positive and negative evidence, including operting results, ongoing tax planning and
forecasts of future taxable income on a jurisdiction by jurisdiction basis.

Federl retums for fiscal years 2010 through 2013 remain open and subject 10 examination by the Intemal Revenue Service. The Company files and remits
state income taxes in various states where the Company has determined it is required to file state income taxes, The Company’s filings with those states
remain open for audit for the fiscal ycars 2009 through 2013,

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax Liability is as follows (in thousands):

Balance at December 1,2013 ' $ 430
Additions bascd on tax positions related 1o the cunent year —
‘Additions fortax positions of prior years -
Reductions fortax positions of prior years aln
Balance at November 30, 2014 $ 399 |

Fhe reduction in the valuation allowance associaled with the wind-up of cortain Canadian business operations is the principal cause of the decreased
effective income tax rate g5 compared to the statutory income lax rate, for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2012, Certain state settlements are the principal
cause of the decreased effective income 1ax rate as compared to the stalutory income tax rate, for the fiscal year ended November 30, 201 3. The principal
causes of the decreased income tax rate for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2014 are the tax treatment related to the other income recognized as a result of
SMT's abandonment of their interest in SMISC, LLC on January 31, 2014, including the related tax benefits associated with various operating loss and ather
carryforwards of MA and cenain tax filing positions of SMISC, LLC totaling approximately $4.0 miltion along with certain state income tax adjustments.

Asa result of the above items, the Company's effective income tax rie decreased from the statutory income rate to approximately 36.7 percent, 38.0 percent
and 33.0 percent for the fiscal years ended November 30,2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

Also of note, while not impacting the combined current and deferred income tax expense and related income tax rate during the fiscal year ended

November 30, 204, as compared to the prior fiscal year, the tax benefit realized in fiscal 2013 attributable to the aforementioned sale of the Company’s
Staten fsland property, as well as the effect of the December 2013 expiration of centain tax legislation impacting depreciation deductions contributed
substantially to increased current income taxes paid during the fiscal year ended November 30, 2014 totaling approximately $31.3 million as compared to
approximately $18.1 million during fiscal 2013. In addition this overll impact to the current fiscal year tax depreciation deduction substantially contributed

to the overall reduction of approximately $12.3 million in our long-term deferred income tax liabilitics at November 30, 2014 s compared to November 30.
2013,

In December 2014, Congress passed the Tax Increase Prevention Act which included a retroactive renewal back 10 January 1, 2014, of the previously expired

tax legislation. The impact of this retroactive tax legislation will not affect the Company’s fiseal 2015 effective tax rate, but will reduce related income tix
payments,
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NOTE 9 — CAPITAL STOCK

The Company’s autharized capital includes 80.0 million shares of Class A Common Stack, par value $.01 (“Class A Common Stack™), 40.0 million shares of
Class B Common Stock, par value .01 ("Class B Common Stock™), and 1.0 miltion shares of Preferred Stock, par value §.01 (“Preferred Stock™). The shares
of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock are identical in all respects, except for voting rights and conversion rights as described below. Each
share of Class A Common Stock catitles the holder to one-fifth (1/5) vote on cach matter submitted 1o a vote of the Company’s sharcholders and cach share of
Class B Common Stack entitles the holder to ane (1) vote on each such matter, in each case including the election of directors. Holders of Class A Common
Stock and Class B Common Stock arc entitled to receive dividends at the same rate if and when declared by the Board of Directors out of funds legakly
available there rom, subject to the dividend and liquidation rights ofany Preferred Stock that may be issued and outstanding. Class A Common Stock has ne
conversion rights. Class B Comman Stock is convertible into Class A Common Stock, in whole or in part, at any time at the option of the holder on the basis
of one share of Class A Common Stock for each share of Cless B Comimon Stock converted. Each share of Class B Common Stack will also automatically
convert into one share of Class A Common Stock if, on the record date of any meeting of the sharcholders, the number of shares of Class B Common Stock
then owstanding is less than 10.0 percent of the aggregate number of shares of Class A Common Stock and Class B Commaon Stock then outstanding.

The Board of Directors of the Company is authorized, without further sharcholder action, to divide any or all shares of the authorized Preferred Stock into
serigs and fix and determine the designations, preferences and relative rights and qualifications, limitations, or restrictions thereon of any series so
established, including voting powers, dividend rights, liquidation preferences, redemption rights and conversion privileges. No shares of Preferred Stock are
outstanding. The Board of Directors has not authorized any series of Preferred Stock, and there an: no plans, agreements or understandings for the
authorization or issuance of any shares of Preferred Stock.

Stock Purchuse Plan

The Company has a share repurchase program (“Stock Purchase Plan™) under which it is authorized to purchase up to $330.0 million of its autstanding

Class A common shares. The timing and amount of any shares repurchased under the Stock Purchase Plan will depend on a varicty of factors, including price,
corporate and regulatory requirements, capital availability and other market conditions. The Stock Purchase Plan may be suspended or discontinued at any
time without prior notice. No shares have been or will be knowingly purchased from Company insiders or their affiliates.

Since inception ofthe Stock Purchase Plan through November 30, 2014, the Company has purchased 7,063,962 shares ofits Class A common shares, fora
total of approximately $268.3 million. There were no purchases of the Company's Class A shares during fiscal 2013 or 2014. Transactions occurin open
market purchases and pursuant to a trading plan under Rule 10b3-1. At November 30, 2014, the Company has approximately $61.7 million remaining
repurchase authority under the current Stock Purchase Plan.

NOTE 10 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Intemational Speedway Corporation has a salary incentive plan (the “ISC Plan”) designed to qualify under Section 401 (k) of the Internal Revenue Code.
Employees of Intemational Speedway Corporation and certain panicipating subsidiarics who have completed one monih of continuous service arc cligible to
participate in the ISC Plan. After twelve months of continuous service, matching contributions are made to 3 savings trust (subject to certain limits)
concurrent with employees’ contributions. The level of the matching contribution depends upon the amount of the employce contribution. Employees

become 100 percent vested upon entrance ta the I1SC Plan. The contribution expense for the ISC Plan was approximately $1.4 million, $1 .4 million and S1.6
million for the years ended November 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

The estimated cost to complete approved projects and current construction in progress at November 30, 2014 at the Company's existing facilities is
approximately $172.3 million,

[n Octaber 2002, the Unified Govemnment issued subordinate sales tax special obligation revenue bonds (~2002 STAR Bonds™) totaling approximately $6.3
million to reimburse the Company for certain construction already completed on the second phase of the Kansas Speedway project and to fund cenain
additional construction. The 2002 STAR Bonds, which requirc annual debt service payments and are due December 1, 2022, will be retired with state and
local taxes generated within the speedway’s boundaries and are nat the Company s obligation. KSC has agreed to guarantee the payment of principal, any
required premium and interest on the 2002 STAR Bonds. At Nevember 30, 2014, the Unified Govemnment had approximately 51.4 million outstanding on

2002 STAR Bonds. Under a keepwell agreement, the Company has agreed to provide financial assistance to KSC, if necessary, to suppost KSC's guarniee of
the 2002 STAR Bonds.

The Company operates ITomestead-Miami Speedway underan operating agreéement which expires December 31, 2032 and provides for subsequent renewal
terms through December 31, 2075. The Company operates Daytona Intemational Speedway
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under an operating lease agreement which expires November 7, 2054. The Company also has various operating leases for office space and equipment. The

future minimum payments under the operating agreement and leases utilized by the Company having initial or remaining non-cancelable terms in excess of
one year at November 30, 2014, arc as follows (in thousands):

Operating Operating

For the year ending Navember 30: Agreement Leases
2015 § 222080 S 4,033
2016 £,152 2,974
2017 1,055 2,399
2018 1,055 2,005
2019 1,055 1,581
Thercafter 13,803 30,791

Tatal s 20,340 € 43,783

Total expenses incumred under the track operating agreement, these operating leases and all other shan-term rentals during the years ended November 39,
2012,2013 and 2014 were epproximately $13.5 million, $13.5 million, and $14.7 million, respectively.

In connection with the Company’s automobile and workers® compensation insurance coverages and cenain construction contracts, the Company has standby

letter of credit agreements in favor of third parties totaling approximately $4.0 million at November 30, 2014, At November 30, 2014, there were no amounts
drawn on the standby etters of credit.

Current Litigation

The Company is from time to time a party to routine litigation incidental to its business. Management does not beligve that the resolution of any orall of
such litigation will have a material adverse effect an the Company's financial condition or results of operations,

NOTE 11 —RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES AND TRANSACTIONS

All of the racing events that take place during the Company's fiscal year are sanctioned by various racing organizations such as the American Historic Racing
Motoreyele Association, the American Motorcyclist Association, the Automobile Racing Club of Amcrica, the American Sportbike Racing Association —
Championship Cup Series, the Federation Intemationale de L' Automobile, the Federation Intemationale Motacycliste, IMSA, Historic Spontscar Racing,
IndyCar Series, NASCAR, NHRA, the Porsche Club of America, the Sports Car Club of America, the Sponscar Vintage Racing Association, the United States
Auto Club and the World Karting Association. NASCAR, which sanctions many of the Company’s principal racing events, is a member of the France Family
Group which controls over 72.0 percent of the combined voting power of the outstanding stock of the Company, as of November 30, 2014, and some
members of which serve as directors and officers of the Company. Standard NASCAR sanction agreements require mcetrack operators to pay sanction foes and
prize and point fand monies for cach sanctioned event conducted. The prize and point fund monies are distdbuted by NASCAR to participants in the events.
Prize and point find monies paid by the Company to NASCAR for disbursement to competitors, which are exclusive of NASCAR sanction fees, totaled
approximately §128.7 million, $132.2 million and $134.5 million, for the years ended November 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively. The Company has

outstanding receivables related 1o NASCAR and its affiliates of approximately $18.5 million and $19.3 million at November 30, 2013 and 2014,
respectively.

Under current agreements, NASCAR contracts directly with certain network providers for tefevision rights to the entire NASCAR Sprint Cup, Xfinity and
Camping World Truck series schedules. Under the terms of this armingement, NASCAR retains 10,0 percent of the gross broadcast rights fees allocated to each
NASCAR Sprint Cup, Xfinity and Camping World Truck series event as a component of its sanction fees. The promoter records 90.0 percent of the gross
broadcast rights fees as revenue and then records 25,0 percent of the gross broadeast rghts fees as part of its awards te the competitors. Ultimaiely, the
promoter retains 65,0 percent of the net cash proceeds from the gross broadcast rights fees allocated to the event. The Company’s television broadceast and
ancillary rights fees received from NASCAR for (he NASCAR Sprint Cup, Xfinity and Camping World Truck series events conducted at its wholly owned
facilities were approximately $281.2 million, $292.5 million and $302.9 million in fiscal years 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively,

In addition, NASCAR and the Company share a varicty of expenses in the ordinary course of business. NASCAR pays rent, as well as a related maintenance
fee (allocated hased on square footage), to the Company for office space in Daytona Beach, Florida. NASCAR pays the Company for radio, program and
strategic initiative advertising, hospitality and suite rentals, various tickets and credentials, catering services, participation in a NASCAR racing event
banquet, and track and other equipment rentals based on similar prices paid by unrelated, thicd pany purchasers of similar items. The Company pays
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NASCAR for certain advertising, participation in NASCAR mcing scries banquets, the use of NASCAR tmdemarks and intellectual images and praduction
space for Sprint Visian based on similar prices paid by unrelated, thind party purchasers of similar items. The Company's payments to NASCAR for MRN's
broadeast rights to NASCAR Camping World Truck races represent an agreed-upon percentage of the Company’s advertising revenues attributable to such
race broadcasts. NASCAR also reimburses the Company for 50.0 percent of the compensation paid 10 certain personnel working in the Company's Jegal, risk
management and trapsportation departments, as well as 50.0 percent of the compensation expense associnted with cenain receptionists, The Company
reimburses NASCAR for 50.0 percent of the compensation paid to cenain personnel working in NASCAR's legat depantment. NASCAR's reimbursement for
use of the Company’s mailroom, janitorial services, security services, catering, graphic ans, photo and publishing services, telephene system and the
Company's reimbursement of NASCAR for use of corporate aircraft is based on actual usage or an allocation of total actual usage, The aggregate amount
received from NASCAR by the Company for shared expenses, net of amounts paid by the Company for shared expenses, totaled approximately $8.6 million,
$9.3 million and $10.5 million during fiscal 2012,2013 and 2014, respectively.

IMSA, a wholly owned subsidiary of NASCAR, sanctions various events ai centajn of the Company's facilities. Stundard IMSA sanction agreements reguire
racetrack operators to pay sanction fees and prize and point fund monies for cach sanctioned event conducted. The prize and point fund manics are
distributed by IMSA to panticipants in the events. Sanction fees paid by the Company ta IMSA totaled approximately S1.2 million, $1.3 million and

§1.3 million for the years ended November 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively,

AMA Pro Racing, an entity controlled by a member ofthe France Family Group, sanctions various events at certain of the Company's facilitics. Standard
AMA Pro Racing sanction agreements require racetrack operators to pay sanction fiees and prize and point fund menies for each sanctioned event conducted.
The prize and point fund moenies are distributed by AMA Pro Racing to participants in the events. Sanction fees paid by the Company to AMA Pro Racing
totaled approximately $0.6 million, $0.6 million and $0.5 mitlion during fiscal 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

The Company strives to ensure, and management believes that, the terms of the Company s trunsactions with NASCAR, IMSA and AMA Pro Racing ate no
less favorable to the Company than could be obtained in arms-length negatiations,

Certain members of the France Family Group paid the Company for the utilization of security services, event planning, event tickets, purchase ofcatering
services, maintenance services, and certain equipment. The amounts paid for these items were based on actual costs incurred, similar prices paid by unrelated
third party purchasers of similar items or estimated fair market values, The net amount received by the Company for these items, totated approximately
$318,000,$398,000 and $320,000 during fiscal 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

Croity, Bartiett & Kelly, P.A. (“Crotty, Bartlett & Kelly™), is a law firm controlied by family members of W. Garrett Crotty, one of the Company's exccutive
officers. The Company engages Crotty, Bartlett & Kelly for cenain legal and consulting services. The aggregate amount paid to Crotty, Banlen & Kelly by
the Company for legal and consulting scrvices totaled approximately 530,000, $31,000 and $31,000 during fiscal 2012, 2013 and 20143, respectively.

-

J. 1lyatt Brown, one of the Company''s directors, serves as Chairman of Brown & Brown, Inc. (“Brown & Brown™). Brown & Brawn has received commissions
far serving as the Company's insurance broker for several of the Companys insutance policies, including the Company's property and casualty policy and
certain employee benelit programs. The aggregale commissions received by Brown & Brown in connection with the Company’s policies were approximately
§466,000, 5487,000 and $492,000 during fiscal 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively, In fiscal 2013 and 2014, Brown & Brown paid the Company
approximately $122,000 and $100,000, respectively, for the purchase af tickets. The amounts paid for these items were based on actual costs incumed, similar
prices paid by unrelated third pany purchasers of similar items or estimated fair market values,

One of'the Company”s directors, Christy F. Hamis, is Of Counsel to Kinsey, Vincent Pyle, L.C., a law firm that provided legal services to the Company during
fiscal 2012,2013 and 204, The Company paid approximately $83,000, $114,000 and $78,000 for these services in fiscal 2012, 2013 and 2014,
respectively, which were charged to the Company on the same basis as those provided other clients.

NOTE 12 — SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid for income 1axes and interest for the years ended November 30, is summarized as follows (in thousands):

112 2013 14
Income taxes paid ) 20923 § 18,141 3 51,314

Interest paid $ 15099 § 14731 8 14,429
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NOTE 13 — LONG-TERM STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

On November 30, 2014, the Company has two share-based compensation plans, which are described below. Compensation cost included in aperating
cxpenses in the accompanying statement of operations for those plans was $1.9 million, $2.5 million, and §2.8 million for the years ended November 30,
2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively. The total income tax benefit recognized in the income statemeat for share-based compensation arangements was
approximately $0.7 million, $1.0 million and 51.2 million for the years ended November 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

The Company’s 1996 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan (the “1996 Pian") autharized the grant of stock options (incentive and nonqualified), stock
appreciation rights and restricted stock. The Company reserved an aggregate of 1,000,000 shares (subject to adjustment for stock splits and similar capital
changes) of the Company’s Class A Cammon Stock for grants under the 1996 Plan. The 1996 Plan terminated in September 2006. All unvested stack options
and restricied stock granted prior to the termination will continue to vest and will continuc to be exercisable in accordance with their original termis,

In April, 2006, the Company's sharcholders” approved the 2006 Long-Tem Incentive Plan (the “2006 Plan™) which authorizes the grant of stock options
{incentive and non-qualified), stock appreciation rights, restricted and unrestricted stock, cash awards and Performance Units (as defined in the 2006 Plan} to
employees, consullants and advisors of the Company capable af contributing to the Company's performance. The Company has reserved an aggregate of
1,800,000 shares (subject to adjusiment for stock splits and similar capital changes) of the Company’s Class A Common Stock for grants under the 2006 Plan.
Incentive Stock Options may be granted only to employees eligible to receive them under the Intemal Revenue Code of 1996, 2s amended. The 2006 Plan
appraved by the shareholders appoints the Compensation Committee {the "Commitiec™} to administer the 2006 Plan, Awards under the 2006 Plan will
contain such terms and conditions not inconsistent with the 2006 Plan as the Commitiee in its discretion approves, The Committee has discretion to
administer the 2006 Plan in the manner which it determines, from time to time, is in the best interest of the Company.

Restricted Stock Awards

Restricted stock awarded under the 1996 Plan and 2006 Plan (collectively the “Plans™) generally is subject to forfeiture in the event of termination of
employment prior lo vesting dates. Prior to vesting, the Plans participants own the shares and may vote and receive dividends, but are subject to cenain
restriclions. Restrictions include the prohibition of the sale ar transfer of the shares during the period priar to vesting of the shares. The Company also has the
right of first refusal to purchasc any shares of stock issued under the Plans which are offeted for sale subsequent to vesting. In accordance with ASC 718,
“Compensation « Stock Compensation” the Company is recognizing stock-based compensation on these restricted shares awarded on the accelerated method
over the requisite service period. The fair value of nonvested restricted stock is determined based on the opening trading price of the Company's Class A
Comman Stock on the grant date.

The Company granted 171,802, 80,514 and 91,076 shares of restricted stock awards of the Company's Class A Common Stock during the fiscal years ended
November 30,2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively, to certain officers, managers, and other employces under the Plans. The shares of restricted stock awarded
vest at the rate of 5.0 percent on the third anniversary of the award date and the remaining 50.0 percent on the fifth anniversary of the award date. The
weighted average grant date fair value of these restricted stock awards was $26.69, 532.87 and $31.44 per share, respectively.

The Company granted 9,168, 9,540 and 8,1 18 shares of restricted stock awards of the Company's Class A Common Stock during the fiscal years ended
November 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively, 1o non-employee directars as partial compensation for their service as a director. The shares of restricted
stock awarded vest at the rate of 100.0 percent on the one year anniversary after the date of gmnt. The weighted average grant date fair value ofthese
restricted share awards was §26.18, 531,47 and $33.28 per share, respectively.

60



Iable of Contents

A summary of the status of the Company’s restricled stock as of November 30, 2014, and changes during the fiscal year ended November 30, 2014, is

presented as follows:

Welghted- Weighted-
Average Average
Grant- Remalning
Date Cantractual
Restricted Fair Value Term
Shares {Per Share) {Years)
Unvested at November 30, 2013 338389 § 28.88
Granted 99,194 31.59
Vcster.:l {43,_3 16} 28.28
Forfeited (20,287) 29.16
Unvested at November 30,2014 364,980 29.68 35

As of Navember 30, 2014, there was approximately $5.2 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related ta unvested resiricted stock awards granted
under the Stock Plans. This cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-zverage period ofapproximately 3.5 years . The total fair value of restricted
stack awards vested during the fiscal years ended November 30,2012, 2013 and 2014, was approximately $1.3 million, $1.3 million and $1.5 million,
respectively.

Nengualified and Incentive Stock Options

In fiscal 2010 o partion of cach non-employee director's compensation for their service as a director is through awards of opticns to acquire shars of the
Company’s Class A Common Stock under the Plans. These options become exercisable one year efter the date of grant and expire on the tenth anniversary of
thhe date of grant. The Company also grants options to certain non-officer managers to purchase the Company *s Class A Comman Stock under the Plans.
These options generally vest over a two and one-half year period and expire on the tenth anniversary of the dute of grant. The Company records stock-based
compensation cast on its stock options awarded on the straight-line method over the requisite service period.

The fair vilue of each option granted is estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing valuation model that uses the
assumptions noted in the following table. Expected volatilitics are based on implied volatifities from historical volatility of the Company’s stock and other
factors. The Company uses historical data to estimate option exercises and employee tenninations within the vatuation mode). Separate groups of employees
that have similar histarical exencise behavior are considered separately for valuation purpases. The expected term of options granted is estimated based on
historical exercise behayior and represents the penod of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding. The risk-free rate for periods within the
contractual life ofthe option is based on the LS. Treasury yicld curve in effect at the time of grant,

A summary of option activity under the Stock Plan as of November 30, 2014, and changes during the year then ended is presented as follows:

Weighted-
Average
Weiphited- Remalning
Average Cantractual Aggregate
Exercise Term Intrinsic
Options Shares Price {Years) Vahte
Outstnndin_g_ at November30,20(3 194,073 § 41.03
Expired (31,025) 47.34
Exercised -, —
Forfeited - —
Outstanding at November 30, 2014 : 163,048 39.82 34 § 324,338
Vested and Exercisable at November30, 2014 163048 & 39.82 34 8 324338

There were no options granted in fiscal years 2012, 2013 and 2014, There were zero, 13,250, and zero options exercised during fiscal years 2012, 201 3and
2014, respectively. The total intrinsic value ol options exercised during the fiscal years ended November 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively were
upproximately zero, 5102,000 and zero, respectively. The actual tax
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benefit realized for the tax deductions from exercise of the stock options totaled approximately zero, $40,000 and zero for the fiscal years ended November
30,2012, 201 3and 2014, respectively.

As of November 30, 2014, there was no unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested stock options granted under the Stock Plan.

NOTE 14 — FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

[n accordance with the “Financial Instruments™ Topic, ASC 825-10 and in accordance with the “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures” Topic, ASC 820-
[0, these topics discuss key considerations in determining fair value in such markets, and expanding disclosures an recuring fair value measurements using
unobservable inputs {Level 3), clarification and additional disclosure is required about the use of fair value measurements.

Various inputs are considered when determining the camying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued

liabilities. These items approximate fair value due to the short-term maturities of these assets and liabilities. These inputs are summarized in the three broad
levels listed below:

Level | -~ obsen able market inputs that are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets ar liabilities in active markets
Level 2 — other significant observable inputs (including quoted prices for similar securities, interest rates, credit risk, ete.)
Level 3 —significant unobservable inputs (including the Company's own assumptions in determining the fair value of investments)

At November 30, 2014, the Company had moncy market funds totaling approximaiely $62.6 million and arc included in cash and cash equivalents in
consolidated balance sheets. All inputs used to detennine fair value are considered level 1 inputs.

Fair valucs of long-tenm debt are based on quoted market prices al the date of measurement. The Company's credit facilities approximate fair value as they
bear interest rates that approximate market. These inputs used to determine fair value are considered level 2 inputs. At November 30, 2014, the fair value of

the fong-term debt, as determined by quotes from financiol institutions, was approximately $291.2 million compared to the carrying amount of
approximately $271.7 million,

The Company had no level 3 inputs as of November 30, 2014,

NOTE 15 —QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)

The Company derives most of its income from a limited number of NASCAR-sanctioned races. As a result, the Company's business lias been, and is expected
to remain, highly seasonal bascd on the timing of major events.

The following table presents centain unavdited financial data for each quarter of fiscal 2013 and 2014 (in thausands, except per share amounts);

Fiscal Quarter Ended

February 28, May 31, August 31, November 30,
2013 2013 2013 2013
Total revenue 128,552 178374 8 117,046 8§ 188,668
Operating income 25,147 37,030 {13,067} 29512
Net income (loss) 13,513 22,440 (7,866) 17,205
Basic and diluted camings (loss) per share 0.29 048 {0.17) 0.37
Fiscal Quarter Ended
February 28, May 31, August 31, November 30,
4 2004 2014 014
Total revenue 131,789 19031t $ 130,083 § 199,753
Operating income {loss) 21339 34,739 {3,325 39,838
Net income 19,805 21469 191 15_‘.324
Basic and diluted eamings per share 0.43 046 - 0.55
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NOTE 16 — SEGMENT REPORTING

The general nature of the Company s business is a motarspons themed amusement enterprise, fumishing amusement to the public in the form of motorsponts
themed entertainment. The Company’s motorsports event operations consist principatly of mcing events at its major motorspons entenainment facilities, The
reporting units within the motorsports segment portfolio are reviewed together as the nature of the products and services, the production processes used, the
Lype or class of customer using our products and services, and the methods used 1o distribute our products or provide their services are consistent in
objectives and principles, and predominately uniform and centralized throughout the Company. The Company's remaining business units, which are
comprised of the mdio network production and syndication of numerous racing events and programs, certain souvenir merchandising operations not
associated with the promotion of motorspons events at the Company’s facilities, construction management services, leasing operations, and financing and
licensing operations arc included in the “All Other” segment. The Company evaluates financial perfonnance of the business units on operating profit afier
allocation of coparate general and administrative (*G&A™) expenses. Comporate G& A expenses are allocated to business units based on each business unit's

net revenues to tolal net revenues.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies, Intersegment sales are accounted
for at prices compamble to unaffiliated customers, Intersegment revenues were approximately $2.1 million, $2.4 million and $2.0 million for the years ended
November 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively. The following table shows infonnation by operating segment (in thousands):

Revenues

Depreciation and amortization
Operating income (loss)
Cquity investinents income
Capital expenditures

Total assets

Equity investments

Revenues

Depreciation and amortization
Operting income (loss)
Equity invesunents income
Gapital expenditures

Total assets

Bquity investments

Revenues

Depreciation and amonization
Openating income {loss)
Equity investments income
Gupital expenditures

Total assets

Equity investments
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For the Year Eaded November 30, 2012

Matorsports All
Fvemt Other Total
585097 § 20338 NS 614,435
71,781 6,089 71870
107,118 {'2_,_109_]_ 105,009 |
- 2,757 2,757
79,334 3_,_538 82872
1,598,551 343.190 1,941,741
—_ 146,378 146,378
For the Year Ended November 30, 2013
Matnrsports Al
Event Other Total
589435 3§ 25!6| i 615,053
88,499 5,490 93,989
82,500 {3,808) 78,692
_— 9434 9,434
81938 3,601 85,539
1,520,069 497437 2,017,506
- 134,327 134,327
For the Year Ended November 30, 2014
Matarsports All
Event Other Total
609973 S 43981 § 653,954
84,614 5,738 90,352
99,332 {5.941) 93,391
—_ 8,916 8916
177,318 6,618 183,936
1,621.726 455,925 2,077,651
- 122,565 122 565
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Schedule Il — Valuation and Qualilying Accounts (in thousands)

Additions
charged Balance
Balance o at end
heginning costs and Deductions of

Description of period expenses (A) period
For the ycar ended November 30, 2012 Allowance for doubtfil accounts $ 1000 § 341 3 341 1,060
For the year ended November 30, 201 3 Allowance for doubtful accounts 1,000 382 382 1,000
‘For the year ended November 30, 2014 Allowance for doubtfu] aceounts 1,000 101 101 1,000

(A)  Uncollectible accounts written off, net of recoveries.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
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[TEM 9A, CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We conducted an cvaluation of the effectivencss of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such temm is defined under Rule
13a-15(¢) promulgated under the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (Exchange Act), under the supervision af and with the panicipation of our
management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. Based on that eveluation, our management, including the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures, subject to limitations as noted below, were effective at
November 30, 2014, and during the period priorto and including the date of this repon.,

Because of its inherent limitations, our disclosure controls and procedures may not prevent or detect misstatements. A control system, ne matter how well
conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met, Because of the inherent

limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been
detected.

Repart of Management on Intemal Control Over Financial Reporting
January 27,2015

We, as members of management of Intemational Speedway Cormporation, are responsible for cstablishing and maintaining adequate intemal control over
financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). Intemal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasenable assurance regarding the refiability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for exiernal purpases in accordance with U.S.
generally aceepled accounting principles. intemal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of our asscts; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recarded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with US. genemlly accepted accounting principles, and
that our receipts and expendilures are being made only in accordance with authortzations of our management and direclors; and (3) provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of our assets that could have a matetial effect on the
financial statements,

Becausce of its inherent limitations, our disclosure controls and procedures may not prevent or detect misstatements, A controf system, no matter how well
conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Because of the inherent
limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, ifany, have been
detected, Also, projections ofany evaluation of effectiveness to future perods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies and procedures may deteriorate.

We, under the supervision of and with the panticipation of our management, including the Chiel Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, assessed the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2014, based on criteria for effective internal control aver financizl repotting
described in ~Internal Contml-lntegrated Framewark” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (1992 framework).
Based on this assessment, we concluded that we maintained effective intemal control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2014, based on the
specified criteria. There were no changes in our intermal control over financial reporting during the quarier ended November 30, 2014, that have matedally
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our intemal control over fingncial reporting.

The effectiveness ofour intermal control over financial reporting has been audited by Emst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm,
as stated in theirreport which is included herein.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None
PART LI
ITEM 10, DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this [tem is set forth under the headings “Directors, Nominees, and Officers " and under the subheading “Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance™ in the Company’s 2015 Proxy Statement to be filed with the U.S, Secunties and Exchange Commission (“*SEC") within

120 days after November 30, 201+ in connection with the solicitation of proxies for the Company’s 2015 annual meeting of shareholders and is incorporated
herein by reference.

63



Table ofContents

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this ltem is set forth under the heading “Executive Compensation™ and under the heading “Directors, Nominees and Officers™ in
the Company’s 2015 Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC within 120 days afier November 30, 2014 and is incomporated herein by reference,

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is set forth under the headings “Voting Securities and Principal Holders” and under the heading “Directors, Nominees

and Officers™ in the Company’s 2015 Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after November 30, 2014 and is incomorated herein by
reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this ltem is sct forth under the heading under the subheading "Compensation Commintee Interlocks and Insider Panticipation”
under the heading "Executive Compensation® and under the subhcadings "Dircctors Holding Office Uil 2015 Annual Meeting”, "Board Leadership® and
“Certain Relationships and Related Transactions”™ under the heading “Dircctors, Nominees and Officers” in the Company's 2015 Proxy Statement to be filed
with the SEC within 120 days after November 30, 2014 and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The informatien required by this em is set forth under the heading "Registered Independent Public Accounting Firm™ and subheading “Policy on Audit
Committee Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures™ under the heading “Registered Independent Public Accounting Firm™ in the Company’s 2015 Proxy
Statemnent to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after November 30, 2014 and is incorpomted herein by reference.

PARTIV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Documents filed as a pant of this repont
|. Consolidated Financial Statements listed below:

Intematienal Speedway Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets
— November 30,2013 and 2014
Consolidated Statements of Operations
~= Ycars cnded November 30, 2012, 2013, and 2014
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive lncome
— Years ended November 30, 2012, 2013, and 2014
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Sharcholders’ Equity
— Years ended November 30,2012,2013,and 2014
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
- Years ended November 30,2012,2013,and 2014
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

2. Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules listed below:
Il — Valuation and qualifying accounts

All other schedules are omitted since the required information is not present or is not present in amounts sufficient to require submission of'the schedule, or
because the information required is included in the financial statements and notes thereto.
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3, Exhibits:

Exhibit
Number Deseription of Exhibit
3.1 — Articles of Amendment of the Restated and Amended Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as filed with the Florida
Department of State on July 26, 1998. (3.1)*
32 —_— Conformed Copy of Amended and Restated Articles of Incomporation of the Company, as amended as of July 26, 1999,
3.2°
33 — Conformed Copy of Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company. (3Ki)**
4.1 — Note Purchase Agrecmient, dated as of September 13, 2012, among the Company and purchasers party thereta, (4.2)***
4.2 Form of Series 201 2A Note due 2024 (included in Exhibit 4.1). (4:2)***
4.3 — Amended and Restated Resolving Credit Agreement, dated as of November 15, 2012, among the Company, certain
subsidianes and the lenders party thereto. (10.1)****
4.4 — Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of January 18,2011, among the Company and purchasers party thereto, (10,1)7%4**
4.3 — Form ot Series 2011 A Note due 2021 (included in Exhibit 10.1). (10.1)*=***
10.1 - Daytona Property Lease. (10.4)%#* 2%+
10.2 — 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan. (10.6)******
103 - 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan, (4)®# =4 %=+
104 — Design-Build Agreement, (10.1) *»***%**
21 — Subsidianes of the Registrant — filed herewith.
231 — Consent of Emst &Young LLP — filed herewith.
3t — Rulc [3a-14(a) [ | 5d-14{a} Cerlification of ChiefExecutive Officer — filed herewith
3i2 _ Rule 13a-14{a) / 1 5d-14{x) Certification of Chief Financial Officer — filed herawith,
32 pars Section 1350 Certification — filed herewith.
10LINS - XBRL Instance Document
101.85CH - XBRL Texonomy Extension Schema
101.CAL — NBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
161.DRE — XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
101.LAB —_ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase
101.PRE —= XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase
> Incorporated by reference to the exhibit showrt in parentlieses and filed with the Company’s Report on Fonn 8-K dated July 26, 1999,
-y Incomporated by reference to the exhibit shown in parentheses and filed with the Company s report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
February 28, 2003.
L Incompomated by reference to the exhibit shown in parentheses and filed with the Company’s report on Form B-K filed on September [ 8,
2042,
neme Incorporated by reference to the exhibit shown in parentheses and filed with the Company’s report on Form 8-K filed on November 19,
2012,
S Ineorporated by reference to the exhibit shown in parentheses and filed with the Company's repon on Form §-K filed on January 20, 2011.
ohol Incorporated by reference to the exhibit shown in parentheses and filed with the Company’s Report on Form 10-K for the vearended
November 30, 1998.
=LA AL Incorporated by reference to the exhibit shown in parentheses and filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-8 as filed on
Febmuary 11,2010.
LEEEREE TS

[ncomorated by reference to the exhibit shown in parentheses and filed with the Company's Amended Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May
31,2013,
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalfby the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Intemational Speedway Comoaration

By:  /s/ Danicl W. Houscr

Daniel W, Houser
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Dated: January 27,2015
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the

registrant and in the capacitics and on the dates indicated.
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Signature Title Date
/s! Lesa France Kennedy Chief Executive Officer and Vice Chaimman of the Board Janvary 27,2013
Lesa France Kennedy (Principal Executive Officer)
/s! Daniel W. Houser Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer January 27,2015
Daniel W. Houser {Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)
fsf James C, France
James C. France Chaimman of the Board January 27,2015
/s/ Brian Z. France
Brian Z. France Director January 27,2015
s/ Larry Aiello, Ir.
Lamy Aiello, Ir. Director January 27,2013
/sf I. Hyatt Brown
I. Hyatt Brown Director January 27,2015
/s/ William P. Graves
William P. Graves Dircetor January 27, 2015
{s/ Christy F. Hamris
Christy F. Hamis Director January 27,2015

fs/ Morteza Hosseini — Kargar

Moneza Hosseini - Kargar Direclar January 27, 2015

/s{ Edscl B. Ford 11
Edsel B. Ford 11 Director January 27,2015

isf Sonia M. Green

Sonia M. Green Director January 27, 2015
's! Lary Woodard
Lany Woodard Directar January 27,2013
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SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

220 BFB,LLC
a Dzlaware Limited Liabitity Company

Action Sport Image, LLC
a Delaware Limited Liability Company

Americrown Service Corporation
a Delaware Comoration

ASC Holdings, Inc.
a Kansas Corporation

ASC Promotions, Inc.
a Florida Comporation

Califomia Speedway Corporation
A Delaware Corporation
d'b'a Auto Club Speedway

Chicagoland Speedway, LLC
a Delaware Limited Liability Company

Darlington Raceway of South Carolina, LLC
a Defaware Limited Liability Company

Daytona Beach Propernty Headquaners Building, LLC

a Delaware Limited Liability Company

Daytona Beach Propeny Headquarters Holdings, LLC

a Delaware Limited Liability Company

Daytona Beach Property Holdings, LLC
a Delaware Limited Liability Company

Daytena Intemational Speedway, LLC
a Delaware Limited Liability Company

Event Equipment Leasing, LLC
a Florida Limited Liability Company

Event Support, LLC
a Florida Limited Liability Company

Homestead-Miami Speedway, LLC
u Delaware Limited Liability Company

ISC.Com, LI.C
a Delaware Limited Liability Company

15C Properties, 1.LC
a Florida Limited Liability Company

Kansas Speedway Comporation
a Kansas Carparation

Exhibit 21



Kansas Speedway Developmeat Cotp.
a Kansas Corporation

Martinsville Intemational, Inc.
A Delaware Corporation

Michigan Intemational Speedway, Inc.
a Michigan Compomtion

Motor Racing Netwaork, Inc.
a Florida Corporation
d/bfa MRN
d/b/a MRN Radio

Motorsporis Acceptance Corporation
a Delaware Corparation

Motorsports Shared Services, LLC
a Florida Limited Liability Company

Motorsports Authentics, Inc,
a Delaware Corporation

Motorsports Authentics, LLC
a Delaware Limited Liobility Company

North Ametican Testing Cotmpany
a Florida Comporation

Pennsylvania Intemational Raceway, Inc.
a Pennsylvania Comporation

Phoenix Specdway, LLC
a Delaware Limited Liability Company

RacingOne Multimedia, LLC
a Florida Limited Liability Company

Richimond [ntemational Raceway, Inc.
a Delaware Comporation

Route 66 Raceway, LLC
a Delaware Limited Liability Company

SMISC, LLC
a Delaware Limited Liability Company

Southcastem Hay & Nursery, LLC
a Florida Limited Liability Company

Talladega Superspeedway, LLC
a Delaware Limited Liability Company

Volusia Point Propetties, LLC
a Florida Limited Liability Company

Watkins Glen Intemational, Inc..
a Delaware Comporation
d/b/a Watkins Glen Intemational



Exhihit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (Form 5-8 Nos. 333-65868 and 333-164867) pentaining to the 1996 Long-Tenn
Stock Incentive Plan of Intemational Speedway Corporation and the fntemational Speedway Corporation 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan, respectively, of
our reports dated January 27, 20135, with respect to the consolidated financial statemenis and schedule of Intermational Speedway Corporation and the
effectiveness of intemal control over financial reporting of Intemational Speedway Corparation, included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the fiscal
year ended November 30, 2014,

/s Emst & Young LLP
Centified Public Accountants

Jacksonville, Florida
January 27,2013



Exhibit 31.]
Certification of Lesa France Kennedy
1, Lesa France Kennedy, certify that:
1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Intemational Speedway Corporation;

Based on my knowledge. this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a materal facl necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, faifly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, end for, the periods presented in this repon;

The registrant’s other centifying officer(s) and 1 arc responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures {as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)and |5d-15(c)) and intemal control aver financial reporting {as defined in Exchange Act Rutes §3a-15(f) and §5d-15(M) for the
registrant and have:

{a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosurc controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the periad in which this repont is being prepared;

{b)  Designed such intemal control over financial reperting, or caused such intemal control over financial reponting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabifity of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting peinciples;

(c)  Evaluatcd the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of'the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this teport based on such evaluation; and

(d)  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s intemal control over financial reparting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to maternially affeet, the
registrant’s intemal control aver financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of intemal controt over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the sudit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(@) Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal control over financial reponting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and repon financial information; and

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other ecmployces who have a significant role in the registrant’s intemal control over
financial reporting.

Date: 1/23/20135

/sf Lesa France Kennedy

Lesa France Kennedy
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

Centification of Daniel W. Houser

[, Daniel W. Houser, certify that:

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Intemational Speedway Comoration;

Based on my knowledge. this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this repont, fairly present in ail malerial respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report,

The registrant’s other centifying officen(s) and 1 arc responsiblc for establishing and maimaining disclosure controls and procedures {as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(0) for the
registrant and have:

(a)

(b)

()

{d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or causcd such disclosure controls and procedures ta be designed under our supervision, to ensurc
that material infonmation relating to the registrant, including its consalidated subsidianes, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the periad in which this repont is being prepared;

Designed such intemal control over financial reporting, or caused such intemal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,

to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in
accordance with generally accepled accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectivencss
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this repont based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s intemal centrol over financial reporting that occurred during the registant’s most recent fiscal
quatter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual repon) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to matetially affect, the
registrant’s intemal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other centifying officen(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of intemal control over financial reporting, to the

registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (ar persons performing the equivalent functions):

{a)
(b)

All significant deficiencies and matenial weaknesses in the design oroperation of intemal control over financial reperting which are reasenably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and repon financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employces who have a significant role in the registrant’s intemal control over
financial reporting.

Date: 1/23/2015

/s/ Danicl W, Houser
Daniel W, Houser
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer




Exlibit 32
Certification

This centification accompanies and references the Annual Report on Form 10-K for Intemational Speedway Comoration for the period ended November 30,
2014 (the “Report™).

The undersigned certify the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section | 3{a) or 15(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for annual reports
and information contained in the Repon fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Intemational Speedway
Corporation.

The foregoing certification (i) is given to such officers’ knowledge, based upon such officers’ investigation as such officers deem reasonably appropriate; and
(ii) is being fumished solely pursuant 1o 18 U.S.C. §1350 (Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002) and is not being filed as pant of the Report oras a
separate disclosure document.

Dated: January 23,2015

/s!/ Lesa France Kennedy
Lesa France Kennedy
Chief Exccutive Officer

is! Dantel W. Houser

Daniel W. Houser
Chief Financial Officer

“Asigned original of this written statement has been provided to Intemational Speedway Corportion and will be retained by Tntemational Speedway
Comoration and fumished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.”
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Watkins Glen International, Inc

Headcount

Calendar Year 2014

January
February
March
April

May

June

July
August
September
October
November
December

12 Month Avg

WGl MSI Total
32 1 33
34 0 34
37 6 43
52 11 63
93 10 108

108 18 126
153 32 185
152 23 175
106 13 119
72 18 S0
45 2 47
36 1 a7
925 135 1,060
77 11 88

37

g9

160

58

Qtr End

43

126

119

a7

B1



DLN: 44826263134
New York Slate Department of Taxation and Finance "

Quarterly Combined Withholding, Wage Reporting, NYS-45 WEB
And Unemployment insurance Return

Rafarance these numbers in all correspondenca: Mark an X in only one box lo indicats the quarter (a separate
. : P return musl be comgpietad for each quarter) and enler the year.
Ul Employer ; <
registration numbar 23-571081 L Jand - Apri- July 1 - July1- 4 -
- - Mara1l v Jun30 Sep30 -  Sep30 Year

-16-1209033
LG T i Do you affer dependent heallh Insurance benafits {0 any employee? ... Yes 4. No

Employer lagal name: li seasonal employer, mark an X In the box .......
WATKINS GLEN INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Number of employoas o.Firstmonth . b. Second month © o, Third month
Enter the number of full-tlr;-le c?nd p?ri -fime coverad employees . il g rnor!ll_l . ."’.T’.’"f’.'?“’"_"’. :
who worked during or recelved pay for the weak thal includes 32 34 - .
the 12(h day of each month. . S A Disaster refia!
Part A -Unemployment Insurance {U}) mformation Part 8 ~Withholding tax (WT) information
1. Total remuneration pald this quarter ....... 483 353 00 12. New York State tax withheld ............... - 22,&0{8.2&'
2. Rremuneration pald this quarter o 13, New York City tax withheld ..ovevcone T o0
In excess of the W wage basa I A S 175 S‘lf ﬂl:l Lo B W v
SINCE JAARIY T crrrsrsesrmsmrss e "o b 14. Yonkers tax withheld . .oeocsviereenis - 0.00
3. Wages subjecl lo coniributfon 4R pEll : g
................... 287,930.00° 16 Total tax withheld I T
iU RY : 3 g SRhat e {add lines 12, 13, BAd 14) «veevorevereeserse 22,048.20
4. Ul contributions due Ce e Y e : =
(111 O - 8.825° 28,280.08 16, W7 credil from previous L o
i SRST B s T gunn b quartar's relum (S8 MS) coveevevenane : 0.00
5. Re-employment service fund . g AR ; ST :
fHlply HN€ 32 00075} ccrvrerersirissonnss 715,88 17, Form NYS-1 payments made g e
{muiply line 3 x .00075) A e 07 QUAIIEF vvver v censreerreess 22,046.20
6a. [nleresion conlributions ...ccooveevvieen 18, Total payments i :
R ' o 80l 185 16 BNG 17} corvererrrricrsearnins | 6.20
6b. Ul previnusly underpaid with . . {adkd o= 1 ) = esce e .22_'94 o
L S o 00 45 Yotal Wt amounts due (Fiine 1515 M| aemassstti:
; : grealer than lina 18, enter difference) ... - 0.00
7. Tolaloflines 4, 5, Gaand8b .......ccccunes 28,495.96 h LD
I N e e 240, TotaltWI“hom’ripaic;S(ians 1%#:
: lousl || S 0.00 greater than line 15, enter rance e m
8. Entar U praviously cverpa oo : L here and mark an’X /n 20a or 20b) * ..... Fawz e gw w 30.00
9. Total Ul amounts due (i line 7 ae e . . -
is greater then line 8, enter diffarence) ... ~ 28,495,986 20a. Apply to oulstanding 20b. Credit lo next quarter
ok ? o unn ligblliles and/or rafund ......, wlihhoiding tax ........
10, Total Ut overpaid (if line 8 is greater K : - -
than lina 7, enler the ditference ) * ....... _ 21, Total payment due . aic S s
At SR e Ee o {2dd ines 9 AN0 79) ..vesreeresrirsinaesanns 28,495.96

* An overpayment of either tax cannot be used to offset the amount due on the other tax.
’ Part G - Wage Reporting Summary

C  Tolal L tolal remuneration/gross . . . TR
wagas paid this quarter ....oeeerireea : Total number of BMPIOYEES oveverririrearrasennas:

D Tolal gross wages or distribution ............ _ . _ E Total tax withheld .....crivvvceneissinmeressaenes

8lgn yuur relurn. | cerilfy that the lnrormauun on lhls ralum and any aitammanls Is o the best of my knowledge and hehef true corret:t. and cumpleta
-Taxpayers signature 77 Eignersnams CTite

Date o .:.Te:!lep_hum_a nurnbar
04/25/2014 09:07:21 o



DLN: 44926305572

NYS-45 WEB

Mew York State Deparlmeni of Taxation and Finance

Quarterly Combined Withholding, Wage Reporting,
And Unempioyment Insurance Return

Roeferonce those numbers In all correspondance:

Ul Emplayer . . L :
registralion number ._23-51 81 .9
Withholding .

[dertification number - 16-1208038

Employsar lepal name:
WATKINS GLEN INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Nurmher of employeos a. Firstmonth - b.Second month . Third month
Enler the number of full-lime and parl-lime coverad employass o ity ; .e:nn rnt?n. e c.Thlrd.mnnll.r
wha worked during or recelved pay for the waek that includes 52 98 " ;
the 12th day of sach manh. o e ok Digaster refiet
Part A ~Unemployment insurance (U} information Part B ~Withholding tax (WT} Information
1. Total remuneralion pald this quanter ....... : _ 524 920 00 12, New York State tax withheid ......cccenee : I . éD,B‘I 8.49l
2, Rremuneration paid this quarter to 13. New York City fax withield ....oo...... ' " 0.00°
In excess of the Ul waga base 10 5-39 0-0' " B
since January 1 .. B A B 14, Yonkers tax wilhheld ..........ocvniiinneeen 0.00
3. Wages subject lo contribulion P
ine 2 from JE 214,384,00. 15 Tolsl lax withheld o -
(subtract fine 2 from line 1) Mot (82 118 12, 13, NG 14) orvorrrrevrrrrers 20,946.49
4, Ul conlrfhulions due ‘ .. o
UErale .. ....ococreecenenenes . B.B2§ % 21,062.83 16, WT credt fram pravious C g
. . s e - quarter's return (a8 insit} ...ovcccemeerennn | 0.00
& Ra-amployment service fund - L
tiply fi , 160.79 7. Form NYS-1 payments made - :
(muiticly fna 3 X ;0076) e TOF QUEMET +.eoeieseernrssssenrmesssessenaian o 20,916.48_'
5a. Interest on contributlons .......csvimniies 18. Tolel payments % 20 w1844
dd ines 16 8nd 17) wuvvsnssiissearasiinns 6.49
&b. Ul previously underpald with T (acid knes 38 and 17) iy ke
Interes! . uueereieeicnseinsnssansans o044 1etvannne o 554_-7_0 19. Tela) Wt amounts due (if tine 15 is ) L
; : graaler lhan ine 18, enter difference} ... - 0.00
7. Tolal of lines 4, 5, Ga antd 6D ......cceeeiees 21,878.42 A
SRS e 20. Total W"rhoverrfpald (iftine 18 is
! i T 0.00- grealsr then line 15, enler difference o
LR A L R g here end mark an X in 208 or 200} * ,.... 0.00
5. Totat Ul amounts due (ifline 7 ‘s +
is graaler then line 8, enfer difference) ... 21,878.42 20a. Apply lo oulslanding 20h. Credil 1o naxt quarier
ron liabRlties and/or refund ....... withholding lax ........
10, Total W overpald (if fine B is greater
than fine 7, enter tha difference } * 21. Telal paymant dus L i :
{add linas 8 8nd 19) .cveveevensn: ST 2187842

Mark an X In only enae box lo indicate {he quarier (a scparale
relum musl be completed for each quarler) and enter the year.

Jan1- Apr1- July 1 - July 1- ‘g
Mar 34 Jun 30 Sen 30 Seo3n = Year
1 2 3 4 Yy
Do you offer dependent haalth insurance benafils to any employee? ..... Yes / No

T seasonal emplayor, mark un Xin Ihe BOX ...ccvcererrrmrmeiaionaesa s

* An overpayment of either tax cannot be used to offset the amount due on tha othar tax.

Part C- Wage Reporting Summary

C Tolal Ul total remuneration/gross
wages pald this quarter .....ccccoirueeennn.

D Tolal gross wages or distribution ......

Total number of employees ... sisFiErenea |1

E  Tolal tax withheld ..........ccovemeriveiinccnsanne

Slgn your rstum. l certafy that lhe Informatlcn on th]s relum and any atlachmenls Is to lhq best of my knowledge and ballel Irue. curmt:!. and curnplete

Taxpayer's signatura

" Date
07/23/2014 10:67:41

Telephons numbar ;

Elgner's name " Tille



o DLN: 44920718206
Nev: York State Depariment of Taxation and Finance :
Quarterly Combined Withholding, Wage Reporting, NYS-45 WEB
And Unemployment insurance Return

Refarence these numbars In all correapondenca: Mark an X in only one box to Indicate the quarter (a separata
. relum must be completed for each quartor) and enter the year.
o Employer 23-51081 9 Jan 1 Apr 1 July 1 Jul
reglstration number 29~ an 1« pri- uly 1- uly 1 - i
s Mar 31 Jun 20 Sep 20 Sep 30 Year 14
Withholding 1 2z 3 4 Yy
"16-1209038
Identification number Do you offer dependent health Insutance benefils ta any employee? ..... Yes v No
Employer legal name: It seasonal employer, mark an X In the box
WATKINS GLEN INTERNATIONAL, ING.
Numboer of employecs JFirslmenth < © b, Beo : i
Enter Ih?: number of ruII-Urlna and p?n-ﬂt:me covered amp‘:nyeas @ . ru. ".m..‘ - T econd. r.nnn.lh i © Th rd mur.uh :
who workad during or recelved pay for the waek thel includes 153 152 106. ’
the 12th day of aach manth, : . Si 9 R S LA
Part A =Unemployment Insurance (Ul) Information Part B ~Withholding tax (WY) Information
1. Total remuneration paid this quadar ....... 890,180.00 12. Mew York Slale tax withheld ............. . - 38,261.48
2. Rremuneration pald this quarter {o 13, New York Clly lax withhald ................ 0.00
In excess of the Ul wage base 475.444.00 J
since January 1 ........... srsmirnsnsensasntarans Adalhly 14. Yonkers tax withheld ........_ I .00
3. Wapes subjact ta conlributlon . '
514,766.00 15, Tolal tax withheld
(subiract ina 2 from line 1) Widadde (add lings 12, 13, &nd 14) covvroovonson. - 38,261.48
4, Ul contdbullons due J L
N —— 826 50,578.76 18, WT eredit from pravious -
L " ; D825 % ; P guarter's relum (566 Insir,) ........ - 0.00
5. Re-employment senvdce fund . o i B
) berestenmerreseanneen .07 7. Fomm NYS-1 payments made : -
Ll AR s : T JOF QUARE .coremeenssmmsrmsmscscs e 39,261.48
8a. Interest on contsibutians ........ceevee... 18. Total payments ;
(80d Imes 16 and 17) .veeeoreessensonns 39,251.48
8b. Ul pravicusly underpald with v :
L1110 0.00 19, Tolal Wt amounts dus (i fine 15is -
i SR grealer than ftne 18, enter cifferenco) ... 0.00
7. Totalof lines 4, 8, Gz and 6b ................. 50,961.83- :
. S ; : 20, Totam’overpaid (if line 18 i3
N 0.00 grealorthan fine 15, enter difference
8. Enter Ul previously overpald ... ) hero and mark en X In 20e or 205} * ..... 0.00
9. Total Ul amounts duse (ifline 7 + e 3
at line 8, enler ditference) ... £0,961.83 20a. Apply lo outstanding 20b. Credit lo next quarter
Basatitipntacieienien J ' ltabiilies andfos raund ....... withholding tax ........
10. Tolal U overpald (if line 8 Is graater i
than line 7. anter the differencs ) * ... . 21. Total payment dus
. ‘ {add Nes 9 and 19} vuvenieeeseseiseencrsnns 50,961.83

* An overpayment of either tax cannot be used to offset the amount dus on the other tax,
Part C-Wage Reporting Summary

€ Total Ui talal remuneralian/gross
wages pald 1his quarer ........oveeeeeieeens Tete) number of employees ............ Vebasneanses

D Tolal gross wages or distribuiien ............ E  Tolallax withheld .......ccoeuvvscerennesenene

Slgn your raturn: ¢t cerlly thal the Infermalien an this return and any atlachments Is 1o the bast bf my knnwfedge and bellef true, correct, and complete,
Taxpayer's signature ' ‘Signersnama Title

Cate " Talaphone number
10/22/2014 0%:41:24



- DLN: 54920759124
Naw York State Department of Taxation and Finance
Quarterly Combined Withholding, Wage Reporting, NYS-45 WEB
And Unemployment Insurance Return

Raference these numbaers In all corroapondence: Mark an X In only gna bex io indleate the quanter (a separale
: = return must be completed for each quarter} and enter the year.
Ul Employer R
raglstrafion number 23-51081 9 Jan 1 - Apr1i- July 1- Ocl - 14
EEL @ e da Mar 31 Jun 3p Sep 30 Dec3i v Year .
Withholding 1 2 3 4 YY
16-1209038
L LT Do you offer degendunt healih insurance benafils ta any employee? ..... Yes v No
Employer legal name: iF seascnal smplayar, mark 80 X i the BOX woveve i cerensesios s orse s,
WATKINS GLEN }NTERNA'I'_IONAL. ING.
Number of employaes a.Fistmonth - . b.Secondmonth ¢, Third month
Enter the number of full-time and part-time covered employees B e 4 oo 2 T t
who worked during of recelved pay for tha week that Includes 72 45 36 Disaster rellef
the 12th day of each monih. . g : CR
Part A -Unemployment insurance (U)) information Part B ~Withholding tax {WT) information
1. Telal remuneralion pald this quarter ....... i70,389.00 12, New York Stata tax withheld ............... 18,3B9.55
2. Ramuneration paid this quarier lo 13.  New York City tax withheld ................. 0.00
In axcass of the Ul wage base 415.285 Od
6INCE JANUATY 1 wovreesssinnsisssissstniines 1280, 1. Yonkers tax withhetd ................... 0.00
3. Wapes subjact to conlribution e -
ing 2 from line 1) ........ _— . 5,104.00 16. Total tax withheld .
(subtract ling 2 from line 1) beves 55, (acld 1106 12, 18, 800 14) oo 19,388.55
4, Ul contributlons dug : . .
................. e 9.825 5,413.97 16, WT credif from pravious
Sl - * s GUAHACS TLUM [S60 M315) wrveeeesinesns. 0.00
§. Re-employment service fund .o
it I vttt oo 1.33 17, Form NYS-1 payments made
(multiply fine 3 x .00075) e .o ; . LI TV - restastsarmennres 19,388.55
Ba, Intarest on contribUtions ..eossesssesees 18. Totel payments
(8ddd lnes 18 and 17) .....veecvverserecnnn. 19,388.55
8h., Ul previously underpald with
L R — ; _ 000 49, Total Wt amounts due (If ine 15 s -
. : grealer than ling 18, enter differenca) .., 0.00
7. Tolaloflinea 4, 8, Gaand b ................ 5,4565,30
. ' 20. Total WT overpald (if line 18 ;fse
........... a.00 graalor than fine 15, snlar difference
8. Enter Ul previously averpald ...... : : i hera and matkan X in 20808 20b) *..... 0.00
9. Total Ul smounts due (if fine 7 :
Is graster then lina 8, enler difference) ... 5,458,30 20a. Apply to outelanding ! 20h. Credit lo nexl quarter
L ltatiltlas and/or refund ....... withholding tax .......,
10.  Total Ul overpaid (i fine 8 Is grealer : cres
than line 7, enter the diffarence ) * ....... 21. Total payment due
ey {2dd lines 8 8ad 19) ....cceeeserrrrnssnsrisnnne 5,455.30

* An overpayment of either tax cannot be usad to offset the amount due on the other tax.
Part C ~Wage Reporting Summary

C Total Ui talal remuneralion/gross .
wages pald this QUANET .....c..veeviennne 470,388.00 Total number of BMPIOYEES ...ccivieeeirirreraons

D Totat pross wages or distbulion ............ _ E Totaitax withhield ........ooeorerrernieronen e

Sign yoﬁl; raturn: | cadlf} that the lnfurmaﬁon on 'lllii.s relums and any attachments is ta the best of my kncivlec-lga and baliaf t}ue. comecl, and complete.

Taxpayer's signature ’ Signer's name Title

Date  Telephore number
01/23/2015 16:41:39



DLN: 44926263155
New Yotk Slale Dapariment of Taxation and Finence = f
Quarterly Combined Withholding, Wage Reporting, NYS-45 WEB
And Unemployment insurance Return

Reference these numbers in all corresponderica: Mark an X In only ene box lo indicale the quarter (a separale
o B N o return must be completad for each quarter) and enter the year,
Ut Employer
registration number - 46-58972 1 Jani- Apri- - July1- July 1 - T
. : . Mar31 v Jun3o Sep 30 Sep 30 Year :1°
Wilhholding . g 1 2 3 4 23
‘23-1987125
denlification number Da you offer dapendent health insurance benefits o any employee? ..... Yas + No
Employer lagal name: It seasonal amployer, mark an X In the box
AMERICROWN SERVICE CORPORATION o
Number of employaes S.IFIIBII ml.n.‘lth. * -.b. Sec d Ih 3 ..mh': f month
Er':ler Ih?‘ n:mbra‘; ol fuli-time and part-time covered employees : R R or?. mon_ ! .c Trdmnnth :
whao worked during or recelved pay flor the week thal includes % ) G- N
the 12ih day of each month. S ho@ deawls L T wRanS. 2 Disaster rallef
Part A -Unemployment insurance (Ul) information Part B -Withholding tax {WT) information
1. Total remuneralion pald this quader ....... _ 2,901.00 12, New York Slate tax wilhhald ............... I 1,.23.0.94--
2. Rmmuneration pald this quarter lo 13, New York City tax withheld .....c...oconnnee . St 0.00-
In excess of the U wage base ST ape ) b o s w
B s iiam e 14.  Yopkers tax withheld .....cccevnrirernniinns 0.00
3. Wages subjec! to contribution 1 T o T o
! i eresa e 2,901.00 15.  Toial lax withheld Pt Ee e . :
(SEiainn 2lc bnati e i fo e fedd lines 12, 13 80d 14) ..vvvoeerecreroe 1,230.94
¢ lljl :l: ulonsdue ...... - 7.025.% 203.80 16, WT credit from previous s T B T
foeas R T quarter's relum (528 inslt) veriien. 0.00
5. Ra-amployment service fund - — o '
indv §i o e e endETE 42 2.48 17, Form NYS-1 payments made SRR o
muttiply e 3.x ,00075) ' T T -1 : for quarer ... teesssrreb s sanartannas 4,230,94
Ba. Interssl on cantibutions ......eecvecceeece. ' 1B Tolal payments it T TR
T ' fines 16 17) cecrinstrranrssnsnsnnsion 1,230.94
8b. Ul previously underpald with : Lo DU A R A
Interast 000 45 Total Wt amounts dus (if ina 15 s S LT
. ‘e greater than line 18, enter diffarence) .., 0.0
7. Tatel of lines 4, 5, a and 8b ................. 205.98 i i ‘
QL S L - S e 20. Tolal WT averpaid (if line 18 is
: e, 0,00 graaler than fine 15, enter differenca . et
LR L R L e - . SLEEE here and markan X in 20aor 200) * ... : P — °~°_°
9. Total Ul amounts due (i line 7 . .
is grealer than fina 8, entar differance) ... 206.98 20a. Apply lo outsianding 20b, Credit to next quarer
T - liabilittes andfor refund ....... withholding tax ........
10. Total Ul overpald (if line & /s grealer : " v i
than line 7, entar the difference } * ....... ) 21. Tola! payment dus C e . L
. o e {odd lines 9 8Nd 18] wivvsisisnsesscmmensnnns * _ 205.98

“An overpayment of either tax cannot be used to offset the amount due on the other tax.
Part¢ —-—Wa'ge 'Repurtlng' Suinmary ' '

C Tota! Ul tolal remuneration/gross T ’
wapes pald this QUarar ,......coeorreiesens _ Total number of amployess .......cceeu.e rerirases

D Tolal gross wages or distribulion ............ : . E  Total tax withheld .......cvveeeerenrennns rranene
S!g n your r.ah.:fﬂl: .I cenlfy l.h.at ihe. Iﬁforrn.u!iu.n on this relur-n a;tld .any .al.lachm.en.!s. IS lo.ﬂ‘le b.e.sl nf my knot.vledg-é aﬁ& beltéf trué.. cor.re.cl. .and..cor.nﬁ.!elé..
'Taxpéyel’?sélqh'aiur'e et Tl s T T R me e P A

. Date Telej.)hc.me number ._
e4i26r2014 02it0 - 0



DLN: 44820681515

New Yark Stale Dapaitmenl of Taxation and Finance

Quarterly Combined Withholding, Wage Reporting,

NYS-45 WEB

And Unemployment Insurance Return

Reference these numbers in all correspondances:

Ul Emplayer = . .
raglslrglion number _‘_35-53972 1
Withhelding wine

Idenlificalion number 23_'1 887125

Employer legal name:
AME_R_ICROWN _SERVIGE _COR_FOBI_\T}ON )
Number of amployees
Enter the number of full -time and part-lime covered employees

who wotked during or recelved pay for the week thal includes
tha 12th dey of each month.

Part A =Unempiloyment insurance (Ul) information

Mark an X in only ona box lo Indicale the quarer (z separale
return must be completed for aach quarter) and enter the year.

Jan - Api1- July 1 - July - 14 -
Mar 34 Jua 30 Sep 30 Seb 30 Year 1'%
1 2 3 4 YY
Da you offer dependenl health insurance benefits to any employes? ..... Yes 4 No

F seasonal employar, mark an X in the Do ..veonienniieomnscreenermsossisssns

a. First month ;. b. Second moni.h . c.Third month

L E e 10 '“_3 Disaster rellaf

Part B -Withholding tax (WT} Information

1. Tolal remuneration paid this quarter ....... 35,813.00° 12, New York Stale tax withheld ...ccooveurnns 1.559.55
2. Rremuneration pald this quarter to 13.  New York Cily tox withheld «....veoeeveers  8.00
in @xcess of the Ul wage base 1.522.00° - : ey
e - 18, Yorkers (ax WHARed .....oocecs cevirns 0.60
3. Wages subjact to contribution Tare T
b i 1€ T) voveeseisrsnsansons 35,231.00° 18, Tolal tax withheld 5 1
(Setimct fne2 frorm fne ) o (8000 1005 12, 13, 80 19} cvrersrrsmroen 1,859.85
4, i conlribuliona due ‘e . :
10218 cecmecrerrimesnaniiesren 7.026 ¢ 2,479.18 16, WT credit {rom provious e
Ulrate #o : % vl e quarter's retum (598 S} wceeeeenenns e.0o
5. He-employment sarvice fund i. o o
Htiply i g 26,47 17. Form NYS-1 payments made sen
b A R i wifin i for quarter ... erestne 1,658.95
6a, Interost on contibUHONS wvnueienie 18. Total payments 1 655,55
ines 16 and 17} ..... eeeaaaasaseereaes iy R
8b. Ui previously underpald with ; LR ) ' :
Interest v e sy . 91..09 19. Total Wt amounts dua (iflins 15 /s L
ey graslerthan line 18, entar differencs) ... 0.00
7. Tetal of lines 4, 5, 62 and 8D ....cciveeenae 2,596.66 -
T 20, Tolel WT overpald {if line 18 is
3 u i (] e ] 0.00 grealer than line 15, enlsr gifierence $hmm e viog
8. Enter Ul greviously overpa . here and mark an X in 203 o1 200) * ..... 0.00
9, Tota!l Ul amounts dua (ifline 7 ; v
Iz graaier than line B, anter difference) ... - 2,5868.66 20a. Apply o outstanding 20b, Credit lo next quarter
(A liabilities andfor refund ....... withhalding tax ........
10. Total Ul overpald (if tne 8 is grealer
than line 7. enler the dilference } *,...... 21. Total payment due
(add lins 9 80d 15) cverevreneroricranincan . 2,596.66

* An overpayment of either tax cannot be used to offset the amount due on the other tax,

Part C -~Wage Reporting Summary

C Tolal Ui lotal remuneralion/gicas
wages pald this quaner ........eesenien

D Total gross wages or dislribution ........c...

Total number of employaBs ........ccoreereiirerenns

E Tolal tax withbheld ...ovieeeirccnsmminnniasae

. Stgﬁ yéur ratﬁm: ! t;éﬂlfy .tha.t ihé ini’o.rrﬁ:.lilun ;m-!hls }e.l.um. and.any attachments [s to fhe best of my knnwie.d.ge. and balls! lﬁ.ré. cofreé-t, and colﬁlplate. .

Taxpayer's signalure

. Dale Telephone number

07/23/2014 10:46:50 )

Sigher's name Title



DLN: 44920718223
New Yark State Depariment of Taxation and Finance

Quarterly Combined Withhoiding, Wage Reporting, NYS-45 WERB
And Unemployment Insurance Return

Raference these numbars §n ait corraspondence: Mark an X in only one box to Indicate the quarter (a geparate
relurn must be completed for each quarter) and enter the year,
Ul Emplayer ‘
regstrallon humbar 48-58972 1 Jan 1 - Apr1- duly 1 - me1 - 14
Mar 31 Jun 30 Sen a0 Sen 30 Year
Withholding 1 2 3 4 Yy
23-1887125
tdentification number Do you offer dependent health insurance benefits to any employee? ... Yes v No
Employer legal name: l seasonai amplayer, mark an X I e BaX ,v..e.v..ceeereresroooemssn
AMERICROWN SERVICE CORPORATICN
Number of employsea a. First mont b d mont
Enler lhi:umber of fuﬂ-tlr‘ne and part-time covered employees fnun h.. = .Sa:on mtlmlh iy © Third momh. o
who worked durlng or received pay for the waek that Includes 32 23 3
the 12th day of each month. % . i Disaster reflef
Part A -Unemployment insurance (Ul) information Part B -Withholding tax (WT) information
1. Tolal remuneration pald this quarter ....... 113,480.00 12, New York State tax withkeld .......... ' 6,436.83
2. Rremuneration pald this quarier lo 13, New York Cily tax withheld ...... - I G.00
In excess of the Ul wege base : 24 843.00
$inCB JENUALY 1 conne e i 14, Yonkers 1ax WHADEHd ...corc.ccrocorns 0.00
3. Wapen subject to contribullon e
hir: B88.647.00 15. Tolal tax withheld .
(subltract tine 2 fram fine 1) g (add Hnas 12, 13, 810 14) ...oooeeer. 5,436.83
4. Ul contributions due . . .
....... 7.025 6,227.45 18. W7 credlt from pravious - -
— % 3 LE2TA quartar's fetum (56 INSIE) .uveeeeenn. Q.00
£ Re-employmant service fund . . + g
s sorosrsserasnedts 68.48 17. Form NYS-1 payments made
tmultply fne 3 % .00075) . ] for quarlsr ........ _ 6,436.83
6a. Interest on contributions ........oeeereeee 18. Total payments
dd linas 16 80d 17} eeeercvvireenins 36.83
Bb. Ul pravieusly underpaid with ‘ bl L 8.4
IIBPBSL ... o in e et v _ 0.00 19. Total Wt amounts due it fine 15 /s
T . . greater than fine 18, enler diffsrance) .., - 0.00
7. Tolaloflines 4, 5,62 and 6D ......crevrrvenne - 6,203.94"
. ' ' 20. Total WT overpald (i line 18 is
) 0.00 granter then Jine 15, anlar differance
8 Enter Ul previously overpaid . T - here end markan X n 20aor 20b) ° ..... - o 0.00
9. Total Ul amounts dus {if line 7 " s
Is greatsr than line 8, enler diferencs) ... 6,293.94 20a, Apply to oulstanding 206. Credit {o next quarier
: : g Habiltles and/or refund ...... . whhholding tax ........
10, Tolal Ul overpald (if fine § is grealer . !
than fine 7, enter the difference ) * ....... : 21. Tolal paymant due -
: (add lines B 8nd 15) ......ovueereevinierecsnns 6:293.94

* An overpayment of either tax cannot be used to offset the amount due on the other tax.
Part C -Wags Reporting Summary

C  Total LIt total remuneration/gross . :
wages paid this quarter .....ccoirveecnennes 5 Tolal number of employaes .............oe.....

D Total gross wages or distributlon ,........... . E Total tax withheld .......ccieiiecorenerneriens

Sign your raturn: 1 cenlify ihal the infermatiers an this relum apd any attachments is to lhé bast of my knowledga and heilef trua, correct, and complete,
Texpayer's signature ‘Glgnersname o Tille

-Oate = Telephone numbar
10/22/20114 09:57:25



DLN: 54920759156
New York Stats Department of Taxatlon and Flnance 2

Quarterly Combined Withholding, Wage Reporting, NYS-45 WEB
And Unemployment Insurance Return

Rafarence these numbers In all correspondence: Mark an X in only ono box to indicale the quarer {a separale
— . . return musl be compleled for each quarter) and enter the year,
e 46-68872 1 Jan 1 Apr 1 Judy 1 Oct 1 P
reglstration number  *0- 3 an 1 - pri- - Juiyt. - ci- . .
g - ST Mar 31 Jun 30 Sep 30 Decal v Year M
Withholding : - 1 2 3 4 YY
23-1987125 .
Mdenttfication mumber T 2 : Do you offer dependent heallh Insurance benefits lo any employee? ..... Yes ./ No
Employer legal name: il seasonal employer, mak an X in the box
AMERICROWN SERVICE CORPORATION
Numbar of employees o Firstmonth . b. Second month ¢ Third month
Enter Ihin:mbr:r of full -time and part~iime cnuemdlamp[oyees s e TR .rnun" e .c. . rd f:_nth ..
who worked during or receivad pay for the week that includes . 4B’ 8 1:
the 12th day of each manlh. e o B R TR Cisasicr rellat .
Part A -Unemploymant insurance (U1} Information Part B ~Withholding tax (WT) information
1. Tolal ramuneration peid this quarter ....... J _ - 39,868.“ 12, Mew York Stale tax withheld ............... . . “2,1.24.85.
2, Remuneralion paid this quarter to 13.  Naw York Cily lax withheld ............p.... - o 000
In excess of the Ul wage liase 1 B '27 '573 00 Sl it
EINGR JAMUGEY 1 crorcmrssermesarssrtenne TTw e e 14, Yonkers (ax wilhheld .........oovoueeoreeeens : 0.00
3. Wages subjecl lo contribution 1 R Ko i A :
fi 12,235.00. 15. Total lax withheld e Sl
(subtract fine 2 from fing 1) : e {add lines 12, 13, and 14} ,uurverrseerseenne ) 2,924.85.
o Ut ot o o N
ul rc;:‘uwmmf.a 7.025 o 859,51 16, WT credit from previous P MR E e
R o Cr el e quarter's retum {368 instr) .. 0.00
5, Re-amployment service fund R R S : T U
. - 9, 17, Form NYS-1 payments made R 2 i
(mulfiply line 3 x .00075) - Y AR 18 forquarter ........... e RUNRR— — 212485
63, Interest on contrlbufions ...eeeciicinnn . 18. Tolat payments i — ; p———
i e ‘add lines 16 and 17) ....... saeea it e aeaeras . 2,124,886
6b. U previousty underpatd wilh : L ke TR et { nes nd 17) g L AT
interest _ 000 45 Total Wt amounts dus fffine 15 is Y B R
i : grealer than line 18, enter difference) ... - 0,00
7. Tolatoflines 4, S, Gaand &b ............ B68.69 e
R S 20. To{alWTnvefl;pald gfllna 18is
) B 0.00 preater than ling 15, enter difference J T ‘ :
B, - Enter Ul previously overpald L 2l S here and mark an Xin 20ser206) *..... - - boo
8. Total Ul amounts due (if line 7 ‘ T ,
Is greater then tine 8, enter differencze) ... 868.69° 20a.  Apply lo outstanding 20h.  Credit to next quarter
+ o & Bmirem) liabilities and/for refund ....... withholding tax ....... g
10. Total Ul averpaid (if fine 8 Is greater L Tene
than line 7, entar the difference } * ....... : 21. Total payment due o s A s
? = (add fines 9 and 19) ......... 668.69

* An overpayment of ejther tax cannot be used to offset the amount due on the other tax.
- Part C.-Wag'e Repdrting Sumrnary” ; '

C Total Ul total ramuneration/grosa “ o Co T -
wages pald this quarer .........ceeeceen 39,808.00°  Total number of employees ........... atsavEene

D Total gross wages or disiribudion ............ . i o E Tolal tax withheld ..covvvrvveneriirrnacas
Sign y.oua; ralum I'cer.ilfy lﬁal the Inforrﬁallon on this falurn aﬁd any llachmeﬁts Is to the beSt.nf rhy know!édge éad.h-eliaf lma éorr.e.ct.. and compléle. o
Taxpayer's sfgnature ST S ' 'Signersneme 0 7T qge T o o

Dale - : Teleérhone number
01/23/2016 16:55:12°
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Watkins Glen International: Schuyler County Industrial Development Agency (SCIDA)
Tax Exempt Bond Financing: Project Benefits

Watkins Glen International is the premier road race facility in North America, and an integral component
of New York sports, entertainment, and tourism industry. Since its founding in the late 1940°s, Watkins
Glen International (WGI) has hosted a wide range of motorsports races, including Formula | (20 years),
SCCA, NASCAR, IMSA, Indy Car and many other major racing series from through-out the world. In
addition, the facility is active throughout the year promoting other events such as: Finger Lakes Wine
Festival, Vintage Car festivals, community events and automobile clubs.

WGI has continually promoted tourism activities within Schuyler County and surrounding counties.
According to the STREDC Regional Plan, Travel and Tourism was the second highest employment
cluster in the Southern Tier. According to data from Tourism Economics, visitors spent approximately
$804 million in the Southern Tier in 2010, up nearly 9% from the previous year. WGI racing and regional
events attracted almost 170,000 visitors annually with over 75% coming from outside a 50-mile radius. in
addition to the headliner events, WGI attracted over 20,500 people via track rentals, small events, and
promoters test days which account for over 44,000 additional visitor days in the region and almost 20,000
room nights, all leading to additional non-state and foreign tourist investment in the region.

The STREDC has adopted a Global Marketing and Export Strategy to attract international investment and
creating jobs. The plan highlights international visitors as a primary strategy for investment, and
specifically identifies Watkins Glen International as a world renowned tourism destination with “name
recognition on the international level.” WGI's status as the premier road racing track in North America
has been compromised by two critical issues: 1) the track is severely deteriorated jeopardizing our draw
of top drivers and fans; 2) NASCAR legend Jeff Gordon is a major partner in a new facility in Canada
which is in the center of 3 of our top 5 international markets.

WGI has become one of the region’s largest employers and creates an estimated 2,025 permanent jobs for
local residents directly or indirectly from its operations mostly in hospitality, retail trade, and
transportation, while over 800 jobs are seasonal and are provided to local underemployed residents from
distressed areas including Elmira, Corning, and other communities in Tioga and Chemung Counties.

The track is anticipated to attract the following with their modernization project.
* New driving school programs for youth

* World Rally Cross events. Premiere series in the US attracting 16-35 years olds
* K&N NASCAR Series. Permanent addition to our NASCAR schedule

* Open Wheel series

» Ferrari Challenge for the iong term

* Green Grand Prix enhancement

* Alfred State College Auto Mechanics seminars

* Cornell University Alternative Fuel testing

In recognition of this award from the SCIDA, WGI is committed to advancing Schuyler County’s
economic needs through a community-wide benefit. WDI will provide job training and educational
information, to either the local high schools or BOCES, that specifically focuses on economic
development related to tourism destinations and associated job needs. Michael Printup, President of WG,
has expressed his commitment to give back to the community and support local development initiatives.
It is envisioned that this educational seminar to graduating youth and the job training sessions will help
foster local economic growth in and throughout Schuyler County.

Attachment: E
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Short Environmental Assessment Form
Part 1 - Project Information

Instructions for Completing

Part | - Project Information. The applicant or project sponsor is responsible for the completion of Part 1. Responses
become part of the application for approval or funding, are subject to public review, and may be subject 1o further verification.
Complete Part 1 based on information currently available. [fadditional research or investigation would be needed to fully
respond to any item, please answer as thoroughly as possible based on current information.

Complete all items in Part 1. You may also provide any additional information which you believe will be needed by or useful
to the lead agency; attach additional pages as necessary to supplement any item.

Part 1 - Project and Sponsor Information
The proposed action, a repaving project on an existing site, is determined to be a Type Il action and therefare exempt from further review

Name of Action or Project:

Waikins Glen Intemalional Speedway Improvements

Project Location (describe, and attach a location map):

Walkins Glen Intemational Speedway, 2790 County Roule 16, Waltkins Glen, NY 14891

Brief Description of Proposed Action:

Walkins Glen Inlemational will underlake a complete road race track modernization project. The raceway is 3.4 miles of asphalt and concrete
paved road course and was last resurfaced in 1998. Time has attribuled lo several critical deficiencies with the existing track and property. WG
recsived funding through NYS ESD and Market NY to complete improvemenis in order {o address these critical safely deficiencies. Since the
allocation of funding WGI has delermined that the “boot” of the track also needs improvements, which were not included in the awarded grant
application. Withoul the modernization improvements, top lier drivers and fans will migrate to the new track in Canada, jeopardizing our ability
to retain our NASCAR event and potentially causing a closing of the facility. This additional project will remave and replace the existing track
and repave porlions of the aprons/runoffs, and pit road pavement, create and install new catch fences and guide rails, and improve drainage

Name of Applicant or Sponsor: Telephone: gg7.535.2485

Michae! Printup E-Mail: i p@theglen.com

Address:
2790 County Route 16

City/PO: State: Zip Code:
Watkins Glen NY 14891

1. Does the proposed action only involve the legislative adoption of a plan, local law, ordinance, NO ! YES

administrative rule, or regulation?

If Yes, attach a narrative description of the intent of the proposed action and the environmental resources that El
may be affected in the municipality and proceed to Part 2. [fno, continue to question 2.

2. Does the proposed action require a permit, approval or funding from any other governmental Agency? NO | YES

If Yes, list agency(s) name and permit or approval:

NYS £SO - Funding
Market NY - Funding D -

3.a. Total acreage of the site of the proposed action? 844 (est) acres
b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed? built site_acres
¢. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned

or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor? 844 (est) acres

4. Check all land uses that oceur on, adjoining and near the proposed action.
[CJUrban [JRural (non-agriculture) [JIndustrial [JCommercial [CResidential (suburban)
ClForest ClAgriculbture OlAquatic  [Z)Other (specify): racetrack
[CIParkland
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5. s the proposed action, NO N/A
a. A permitted use under the zoning regulations? D D
b. Consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan? D :

6. Is the proposed action consistent with the predominant character of the existing built or natural YES
landscape?

N

7. 1s the site of the proposed action located in, or does it adjoin, a state listed Critical Environmental Area?
If Yes, identify:

e
=
7]

[]

8. a. Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in traffic above present levels?

b. Are public transportation service(s) available at or near the site of the proposed action?

c. Are any pedestrian accommodations or bicycle routes available on or near site of the proposed action?

e
o)
7]

NN

9. Does the proposed action meet or exceed the state energy code requirements?
If the proposed action will exceed requirements, describe design features and technologies:

-
[52]
w

N

10. Will the proposed action connect to an existing public/private water supply?

If No, describe method for providing potable water:

-
=
wn

[

Not applicable

11. Will the proposed action connect to existing wastewater utilities? YES
If No, describe method for providing wastewater treatment:

Not applicable

12. a. Does the site contain a structure that is listed on either the State or National Register of Historic YES

Places?
b. Is the proposed action located in an archeological sensitive area?

13. a. Does any portion of the site of the proposed action, or [ands adjoining the proposed action, contain
wetlands or other waterbedies regulated by a federal, state or local agency?

b. Would the proposed action physically alter, or encroach into, any existing wetland or waterbady?
If Yes, identify the wetland or waterbody and extent of alterations in square feet or acres:

|
RIEERE ) 3l ) (3 O EO00RE R EDEORE

ORECO

14. 1dentify the typical habitat types that occur on, or are likely to be found on the project site. Check all that apply:

if Yes,

[ Shoreline CIForest {7 Agricultural/grasslands O Early mid-successional
1 wWetland O Urban [ Suburban
15. Does the site of the proposed action contain any species of animal, or associated habitats, listed NO | YES
by the State or Federal government as threatened or endangered? D
16. Is the project site located in the 100 year flood plain? NO | YES
17. Will the proposed action create storm water discharge, either from point or non-point sources? NO | YES
a. Will storm water discharges flow to adjacent properties? I ~o [Jves D
b. Will storm water discharges be directed to established conveyance systems (runoff and storm drains)?
If Yes, briefly describe: [CJno  [A1ves
Existing system - no alterations
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18. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that result in the impoundment of NO | YES
water or other liquids (e.g. retention pond, waste lagoon, dam)?
If Yes, explain purpose and size: .
= |
19. Has the site of the proposed action or an adjoining property been the location of an active or closed NO | YES
solid waste management facility?
If Yes, describe: ; |:|
20. Has the site of the proposed action or an adjoining property been the subject of remediation (ongoing or NO | YES

completed) for hazardous waste?
If Yes, describe:

L]

T AFFIRM THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED ABOVE IS TRUE AND ACCURATE TO THE BEST OF MY

KNOWLEDGE

App[icantjsponsor name: Watkins Glen International’ Michae! Printup, PI'BSidE_nl Date:

Signature:

PRINT FORM Page 3 of 3




EAF Mapper Summary Report Friday, Aprit 17, 2015 10:19 AM

Disclaimer: The EAF Mapper Is a screening tool intended to assist
W kLIS s preject sponsors and reviewing agencies In praparing an environmantal
1] assessment form (EAF). Not all questlons asked in the EAF are

2 s 1 answered by the EAF Mapper. Additional Information on any EAF
v by :"MPG"‘ *5, question can be obtained by consulting the EAF Workbooks. Although
Saaxe Parh ] the EAF Mapper provides the most up-to-date digital data avaitable to
| DEC, you may also need to contact local or othar dala sources in order
E to obtain data not provided by the Mapper. Digital data is not a
L i!‘ substitute for agency determinations.
i
A= T 3 : i
& i i
J 61 Oty Montréal ;‘)
. = A
% i
Orange Mon tour cﬁh:ml:tl‘l!l é\"ﬁl
Iy gaenis VT
4 - Rocq‘um': ? } H Oc‘:f:zﬁ
: ) ™ iE_Ilnlrcut Buttil Mh:m? ma Boston
3 3 Tovidence
Scues EsII'i. HERE, Delcrme USES, _Cleveland Hnrﬁm?
Intermag, inrement F Corp . NRGAN, Bsri ' - Y
Beaver 2apan, METI, Esri Ching (Heng Kbng), Esn FERRERETAD S Ny Votke
Dams [Theiland), TemTom, I‘vtapmylnc'ié t#d Pittzhur%h H '-bﬁ‘ g mrtlp s Intesmap,
CrenStiestilap cenbibuloes, endlthe BIS o drf TS in g e mat . NRCAN,
___ Use Cammuniy I eteran wisr | Washington. Esti sepan, METI, Esrl China

Part 1/ Question 7 [Critical Environmental No
Area)

Part 1 / Question 12a [National Registerof No
Historic Places]

Part 1 / Question 12b [Archeological Sites] No
Part 1 / Question 13a [Wetlands or Other Yes - Digital mapping information on local and federal wetlands and
Regulated Waterbodies) waterbodies is known to be incomplete. Refer to EAF Workbook.

Part 1/ Question 15 [Threatened or No
Endangered Animal]

Part 1/ Question 16 [100 Year Flood Plain]  Digital mapping data are not available or are incomplete. Refer to EAF
Workbook.

Part 1/ Question 20 [Remediation Site] No

Short Environmental Assessment Form - EAF Mapper Summary Report
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